Borough Council of

L
=)
King’s Lynn & i -’%—f
West Norfolk ) ‘? {

Cabinet

Agenda

Tuesday, 4th February, 2020
at 3.30 pm

in the

Council Chamber
Town Hall

Saturday Market Place
King’s Lynn






'*'\:\
»w

King’s Lynn & '—
{

Borough Council of

West Norfolk M

King’s Court, Chapel Street, King’s Lynn, Norfolk, PE30 1EX
Telephone: 01553 616200
Fax: 01553 691663

CABINET AGENDA

DATE: CABINET - TUESDAY, 4TH FEBRUARY, 2020

VENUE: ASSEMBLY ROOM - TOWN HALL, SATURDAY
MARKET PLACE, KING'S LYNN PE30 5DQ

TIME: 3.30 pm

As required by Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities
(Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information)
(England) Regulations 2012 - Item 19 below will be considered in
private.

Should you wish to make any representations in relation to the meeting
being held in private for the consideration of the above item, you should
contact Democratic Services

1. MINUTES

To approve the Minutes of the Meeting held on 7 January 2020 (previously
circulated).

2, APOLOGIES
To receive apologies for absence.

3. URGENT BUSINESS

To consider any business, which by reason of special circumstances, the
Chair proposes to accept, under Section 100(b)(4)(b) of the Local
Government Act 1972.

4, DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Please indicate if there are any interests which should be declared. A
declaration of an interest should indicate the nature of the interest (if not
already declared on the Register of Interests) and the agenda item to which it



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

relates. If a disclosable pecuniary interest is declared, the member should
withdraw from the room whilst the matter is discussed.

These declarations apply to all Members present, whether the Member is part
of the meeting, attending to speak as a local Member on an item or simply
observing the meeting from the public seating area.

CHAIR'S CORRESPONDENCE

To receive any Chair’s correspondence.
MEMBERS PRESENT UNDER STANDING ORDER 34

To note the names of any Councillors who wish to address the meeting under
Standing Order 34.

Members wishing to speak pursuant to Standing Order 34 should inform the
Chair of their intention to do so and on what items they wish to be heard
before a decision on that item is taken.

CALLED IN MATTERS

To report on any Cabinet Decisions called in.

FORWARD DECISIONS (Pages 6 - 9)

A copy of the Forward Decisions List is attached

MATTERS REFERRED TO CABINET FROM OTHER BODIES

To receive any comments and recommendations from other Council bodies
which meet after the dispatch of this agenda.

NOTICE OF MOTION 5/19 CLLR DE WHALLEY - CLIMATE CHANGE
(Pages 10 - 35)

NOTICE OF MOTION 4/19 - CLLR A KEMP - HARDINGS WAY (Pages 36 -
258)

NOTICE OF MOTION 6/19 CLLR F BONE - HARDINGS WAY (Pages 259 -
265)

FINANCIAL PLAN 2019/2024 - TO FOLLOW

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY FOR 2020/21 AND PRUDENTIAL
INDICATORS FOR 2019/20 AND 2022/23 - TO FOLLOW

CAPITAL PROGRAMME AND RESOURCES 2019-2024

KING'S LYNN AREA TRANSPORT STUDY (Pages 266 - 289)




17.

18.

19.

To:

HUNSTANTON COASTAL MANAGEMENT PLAN (Pages 290 - 298)

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

The Cabinet is asked to consider excluding the public from the meeting under
section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 for consideration of the item
below on the grounds that it involve the likely disclosure of exempt information
as defined by paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act, and that the
public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information.

PRIVATE ITEM

Details of any representations received about why the following reports should
be considered in public will be reported at the meeting.

NAR VALLEY PHASE 4 (TRADITIONAL BUILD) (Pages 299 - 309)

Members of the Cabinet

Councillors R Blunt, | Devereux, P Gidney, P Kunes, A Lawrence, B Long
(Chair), G Middleton and E Nockolds

For Further information, please contact:

Sam Winter, Democratic Services Manager 01553 616327
Borough Council of King's Lynn & West Norfolk

King’s Court, Chapel Street

King’s Lynn PE30 1EX



FORWARD DECISIONS LIST

Asst Dir — D Gagen

Date of Report title Key or Decision Maker | Cabinet Member and Lead List of Public or Private
meeting Non Key Officer Background Meeting
Decision Papers
4 February
2020
Notice of Motion — Climate Non Council Environment Public
Change Asst Dir D Hall
Budget Key Council Leader Public
S151 Officer
Capital Programme Key Council Leader Public
S151 Officer
King’s Lynn Area Transport | Non Cabinet Development Public
Study Asst Dir — S Ashworth
Notice of Motion 4/19 — Non Council Development Private - Contains
Harding’s Way Asst Dir — M Henry exempt
Information under
para 3 —

e information
relating to the
business affairs of
any person
(including the
authority)

Notice of Motion 6/19 — Non Council Development Public
Harding’s Way Asst Dir S Ashworth
Nora 4 Key Cabinet Project Delivery Exempt Private -

Contains exempt
Information under
para 3 —
information
relating to the
business affairs of
any person
(including the
authority)

8 wa)| epuaby



Acquisition

Asst Dir — M Henry

Hunstanton Coastal Key Cabinet Environment Public
Management Plan Asst Dir — S Ashworth
Treasury Management Key Council Leader Public
Strategy for 2020/21 and S151 officer
Prudential Indicators for
2019/20 to 2022/23
Date of Report title Key or Decision Maker | Cabinet Member and Lead List of Public or Private
meeting Non Key Officer Background Meeting
Decision Papers
17 March
2020
Capital Strategy Key Council Leader Public
S 151 Officer
Salters Road, King’s Lynn Key Cabinet Project Delivery Private - Contains
~ Asst Dir — D Gagen exempt
Information under
para 3 —
information
relating to the
business affairs of
any person
(including the
authority)
Potential Compulsory Non Council Development Potential
Purchase Order Compulsory
Purchase Order
Future High Streets — Stage | Key Cabinet Business Development Future High
2 bid for funding Streets — Stage 2
bid for funding
Towns Fund — Town Deal Non Cabinet Business Development
Board Asst Dir — D Hall
Scrutiny and the Executive Non Council Leader Public
Protocol Chief Executive
Strategic Property Key Cabinet Corporate Projects and Assets Private - Contains

exempt
Information under




para 3 —
information
relating to the
business affairs of
any person
(including the
authority)

Update to the Major Project
Board Terms of reference

Non

Cabinet

Leader
Asst Dir — M Henry

Public

Development Options —
Hunstanton

Key

Council

Project Delivery
Exec Dir — C Bamfield

Private —
Contains exempt
information under
para 3 —
information
relating to the
business affairs of
any person
(including the
authority)

Appeal against Business
Rates application

Non

Cabinet

Leader
S151 officer

Private —
Contains exempt
information under
para 3 —
information
relating to the
business affairs of
any person
(including the
authority)

Date of
meeting

Report title

Key or
Non Key
Decision

Decision Maker

Cabinet Member and Lead
Officer

List of
Background
Papers

Public or Private
Meeting

21 April
2020




Date of
meeting

Report title

Key or
Non Key
Decision

Decision Maker

Cabinet Member and Lead
Officer

List of
Background
Papers

Public or Private
Meeting

April 2020

Major Housing Project 2

Key

Council

Project Delivery
Exec Dir — C Bamfield

Private - Contains
exempt
Information under
para 3 —
information
relating to the
business affairs of
any person
(including the
authority)

Southend Road and
Hunstanton Bus Station

Key

Council

Project Delivery
Asst Dir — D Gagen

Private - Contains
exempt
Information under
para 3 —
information
relating to the
business affairs of
any person
(including the
authority)




Agenda Item 10

REPORT TO CABINET

Open/Exempt Would any decisions proposed :

Any especially | Mandatory/ Be entirely within Cabinet’'s powers to decide  ¥ES/NO

affected Need to be recommendations to Council YES/NO

Wards Discretionary /

ALL Is it a Key Decision YES/NO
Operational

Lead Member: CliIr lan Devereux Other Cabinet Members consulted: Clir B Long

E-mail: clir.lan.devere est-norfolk.gov.uk
vereux@w gov-u Other Members consulted:

Lead Officer: Dave Robson Other Officers consulted:
E-mail: dave.robson@west-norfolk.gov.uk | Ged Greaves, Henry Saunders, Alan Gomm
Direct Dial: 01553 616302

Financial Policy/ Statutory Equal Impact Risk Environmental
Implications Personnel Implications Assessment Management Considerations
YES/NO Implications YESNO ¥ES/NO Implications YES/NO
YES/NO If YES: Pre- YES/INO
screening/ Full
Assessment

Date of meeting: 4t February 2020

CLIMATE CHANGE MOTION TO COUNCIL 5/19

Summary

Motion 5/19 proposes that a Climate Emergency be declared and the district and
Borough Council be carbon neutral by 2030. The Motion also calls for additional
work to be completed and setting up various panels and groups.

Recommendations: -

1 That officers be requested to prepare a climate change policy & separate climate
change strategy with action plan

2 That Cabinet consider the attached report and determine one of the following:

a To fully recognise the evolving climate crisis and work towards Borough
Council carbon footprint neutrality and net zero district carbon emissions. The
dates will be determined taking into account emerging policies at the national
and local level.

b If the Council chooses not to declare a Climate Emergency then the reason
for this decision should be made clear.

¢ Declare a Climate Emergency and leave a target date blank until the Carbon
Audit and further policy work has been carried out.

d Declare a Climate Emergency with a target date of 2050 which would be in
line with the Government target and Paris Agreement.

e Declare a Climate Emergency with a target date of 2030 which would be in
line with various environmental groups and the 5/19 Motion.

f Declare a Climate Emergency with a target date of 2041 in line with the
Tyndall Centre report

3 The current 12 month UEA Intern post should be extended to a temporary 2 year
fixed term post.

10




Reason for Decision

1 To ensure the Council is able to mitigate its carbon footprint

2 To consider and respond to Motion 5/19

3 To ensure the work plan and other areas of work are progressed

1 Background

1.1 Motion to Council 5/19 was submitted to Full Council in October 2019
by Councillor M de Whalley. Council referred the matter to Cabinet to
consider the issue further and then report back to Full Council in due course.
Cabinet have requested a report to consider the Motion and its potential
impacts.

2 Options Considered

2.1 Officers have considered Motion 5/19 and the detailed response to
each section is attached.

3 Policy Implications

3.1 Management Team and Cabinet have previously considered the wider
issue of Climate Change. A discussion paper was prepared and submitted to
Management Team which resulted in team plan for climate change being
drawn up. Management Team agreed to a phased approach as detailed in
the team plan.

3.2 The Corporate Business Plan has included several environmental
themes and climate change work areas.

3.3 The Local Plan Task Group is also considering what policies should be
included within the revision of the Local Plan.

3.4 A climate change work plan for 2019/20 has been agreed and is being
implemented. One of the items is to draw up a climate change policy for
adoption and develop a climate change strategy with action plan. The carbon
audit of the Council’s activities has been completed and can be used as a
baseline going forward. The climate change policy is being drafted and
should be available in late April/ early May 2020. The climate change strategy
and action plan will be developed later in 2020/21.

3.5 The Norfolk Chief Executives have recently agreed to set up a Norfolk
District’'s Climate Change Group which will allow collaborative working on
environmental and green issues. This group will be led by the Chief Executive
of BCKLWN and will allow the Borough Council to review and develop its own
polices within this area. The first meeting has been arranged for January
2020, where its terms of reference will be agreed.

11




4 Financial Implications

4.1 Management Team have agreed to provide a £25,000 budget for
2019/20.

4.2 Many aspects of the proposed Motion 5/19 will require additional
resources and finance. These are currently not budgeted for. Once Cabinet,
in consultation with Management Team, confirm which proposal will go ahead
then a more detailed resource and financial impact can be determined.

4.3 The current UEA Intern has proved invaluable in developing this area
of work in the short time he has been in post. We would not have completed
the current work without his input. To ensure the work plan and other areas of
work are progressed we recommend the UEA Intern post should be extended
to a temporary 2 year fixed term post. No budget has been allocated for
financial years 20/21 and 21/22 and therefore this will need to be agreed.

5 Personnel Implications

5.1 A UEA Intern was initially appointed in September 2019 for 4 months
which has now been extended for 12 months. This extra resource will enable
the carbon audit of the Borough Council to be completed, and will allow work
to start reviewing the whole district CO, bubble and some work on the
Council’s climate change policy and climate change strategy & action plan in
due course.

6 Environmental Considerations

6.1 DEFRA, BEIS, the Met Office and Environment Agency jointly
published UKCP18 Science Overview report on this subject in November
2018. This report provides a scientific basis for a new set of climate change
predictions and tools to access climate data.

Main findings:

e All of the top ten warmest years have occurred since 1990.

e Average annual temperatures between 2008-2017 are 0.8°C warmer
than the average between 1961-1990.

e There will be a move towards warmer, wetter winters and hotter, drier
summers. However, natural variations mean that some cold winters,
some dry winters, some cool summers and some wet summers will still
occur.

e Hot summers are expected to become more common. In the recent
past (1981-2000) the probability of seeing a summer as hot as 2018
was low (<10%). The probability has already increased due to climate
change and is now estimated to be between 10-20%.

e UK coastal flood risk is expected to increase over the 21st century and
beyond under all emission scenarios considered. There will be an
increase in the frequency and magnitude of extreme water levels

12



6.2

around the UK coastline. This increased future flood risk will be
dominated by the effects of time - mean sea level rise, rather than
changes in atmospheric storminess associated with extreme coastal
sea level events. There may also be changes in tidal characteristics.
London sea level change rise by year 2100 is expected to be between
0.53m to 1.15m.

The Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change have published a

special report on the impacts of global warming of 1.5°C.

6.3

6.4
state:

They state:
e Unchecked, a 1.5°C rise will occur by year 2040.
e Unchecked, a 2°C rise will occur by year 2060.

The UN published their emissions gap report in November 2019. They

e 2018 Emissions recorded a record high of 51.8 GtCO2e in 2018
without Land Use Change (LUC) emissions and 55.3 GtCO2e2 in
2018 with LUC.

e Fossil CO2 emissions, from energy use and industry, dominate total
GHG emissions and reached a record 37.5 GtCO2 per year in
2018, after growing 1.5% per year in the last decade and 2.0% in
2018.

o Fifteen of the 20 wealthiest nations have no timeline for a net zero
target. The UK is one of the five nations with a target (2050).

e Emissions have gone up by 1.5% per year in the last decade.

e The Earth is on course to experience a temperature rise of 3.2°C by
the end of the 21st century.

e The world needs to cut emissions by 7.6% every year for the next
10 years to meet the 1.5°C target.

e If urgent action is not taken then the 1.5°C goal will be out of reach
before 2030.

e The top four emitters (China, EU28, India and the United States of
America) contribute to over 55% of the total GHG emissions over
the last decade excluding LUC.

e The top seven (including Japan, Russia and international transport)
account for 65%.

e G20 members contribute 78%.

o China emits 26% of global emissions (excluding LUC).
The United States of America emits 13% of global GHG
emissions.
The European Union emits 8.5% of global GHG emissions.
India emits 7% of global GHG emissions.
The Russian Federation emits 4.8% of global GHG
emissions.
Japan emits 2.7% of global GHG emissions.
International transport (aviation and shipping) emits around
2.5% of global GHG emissions.

13



6.5 2019 is on track to become either the third or even second warmest
year on record. In the England, we have seen the highest recorded
temperature of 38.7°C set on 25" July 2019 at Cambridge and we have had
the 5" wettest autumn on record (348.4mm during Sept to November).

7 Statutory Considerations

7.1 There is no legal duty to declare a Climate Emergency.

8 Equality Impact Assessment (EIA)

8.1 A pre-screening EIA has been completed and is attached. No adverse
issues have been identified.

9 Risk Management Implications

9.1 The likely climate change impacts to the district will impact certain
service areas.

9.2 Planning will need to consider which polices should be taken forward
for the local plan. The development management side of planning will need to
consider the potential impacts on development as sites come forward for
planning permission.

9.3 Emergency Planning will need to continue to plan, prepare and
respond through the multi-agency Norfolk Resilience Forum to any climate
related civil emergencies that may arise in the future.

9.4 The Flood and Water Management Team will need to continue through
the Hunstanton Coastal Management Plan and the Wash East Coastal
Management Strategy and the Surface Water Management Plan ensure that
coastal, fluvial and pluvial flooding is kept under review.

10 Declarations of Interest / Dispensations Granted

10.1 None

11 Background Papers

Review of Motion 5/19

Climate Change Team Plan 2019/20

UKCP18 Science Overview Report

IPCC, 2018: Summary for Policymakers

UN Environment Programme Emissions Gap Report 2019

Tyndall Centre Report: Setting Climate Commitments for King's Lynn and
West Norfolk

14



Pre-Screening Equality Impact
Assessment

Borough Council of
King’s Lynn &
West Norfolk }

{o
&;;1,

Name of policy/service/function

Climate Change Motion 5/19 Review

Is this a new or existing policy/
service/function?

New / Existing (delete as appropriate)

Brief summary/description of the main
aims of the policy/service/function being
screened.

Please state if this policy/service is rigidly
constrained by statutory obligations

Motion to declare climate emergency and other
working options. Cabinet Report explains how
climate change is currently being moved forward and
details where there is cross over or duplication with
existing work and proposals. Concerns raised over
resources required to implement some of the
proposals.

No statutory requirement to declare climate
emergency.

Government target set to be carbon net zero by
2050.

Question Answer
1. Is there any reason to believe that the
policy/service/function could have a o < = o
specific impact on people from one or = “g = §
more of the following groups according to n%_) % % 5
their different protected characteristic,
for example, because they have particular Age X
needs, experiences, issues or priorities or
in terms of ability to access the service? Disability X
Gender X
Please tick the relevant box for each Gender Re-assignment X
group.
Marriage/civil partnership X
NB. Equality neutral means no negative Pregnancy & maternity X
impact on any group. Race X
Religion or belief X
Sexual orientation X
Other (eg low income) X

15




Question

Answer Comments

2. Is the proposed policy/service likely to
affect relations between certain equality
communities or to damage relations
between the equality communities and the
Council, for example because it is seen as
favouring a particular community or
denying opportunities to another?

¥Yes / No

3. Could this policy/service be perceived
as impacting on communities differently?

¥es / No

4. Is the policy/service specifically
designed to tackle evidence of
disadvantage or potential discrimination?

¥es / No

5. Are any impacts identified above minor
and if so, can these be eliminated or
reduced by minor actions?

If yes, please agree actions with a member
of the Corporate Equalities Working Group
and list agreed actions in the comments
section

¥es / No Actions:

Actions agreed by EWG member:

Claire Dorgan

If ‘yes’ to questions 2 - 4 a full impact assessment will be required unless comments are
provided to explain why this is not felt necessary:

N/A

Decision agreed by EWG member: Clare Dorgan

Assessment completed by:

Dave Robson

Name
Job title Environmental Health Manager - Environment
Date 23.12.2019

16




Motion to Council 5/19

(5/19), Submitted by Councillor M de Whalley (original 1 b removed by way of
amendment proposed by J Moriarty and agd at cncl)

1. This council recognises that:

a. Local Government exists to ensure the wellbeing of its population through its statutory and
moral authority across a wide range of economic and social aspects of local life.

b. Recent climate changes have had widespread impacts on human and natural systems. This
and other factors have led to a crisis in ecology and biodiversity.

C. West Norfolk is already at a high and increasing risk of the effects of climate change which
endangers the population. This council has the legal and moral responsibility to act both across its
own corporate activities and those wider economic and social issues over which it has regulatory
control and influence.

d. The 2015 Paris Agreement, which the UK has ratified, sets a temperature target of limiting
global heating well below 2°C with efforts to achieve 1.5°C.

e. “For King's Lynn and West Norfolk to make its fair contribution to delivering the Paris
Agreement's commitment to staying ‘well below 2°C and pursuing 1.5°C’ global temperature rise, then
an immediate and rapid programme of decarbonisation is needed.”

f. The 2018 Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change report showed that “impacts are much
greater if 1.5°C is exceeded.”

g. The social and economic costs of delayed action far outweigh those of rapid mitigation and
adaptation to the 1.5°C target.

2. For the above reasons the Borough Council of King’s Lynn and West Norfolk declares
a climate and biodiversity emergency and commits to the following actions:

a. Ensure that every decision made by this council takes into consideration the impact on
climate change and biodiversity as the top priority.

b. Achieve carbon neutrality by 2030, or earlier, across the Borough Council’s own corporate
activities.
C. Use all Council regulatory means (such as local plan, transport, regeneration etc.) to ensure

that the relevant aspects of life across West Norfolk become net zero carbon by 2030, or earlier,
across the population to meet the Borough Council’s fair share of the UK commitment to the Paris
Agreement temperature target.*

d. Not to exceed a Borough population-wide all-time “energy only” budget of 8 million tonnes of
CO2 (or equivalent) emissions, as calculated recently to meet the Paris Agreement temperature
target.

17



e. Prepare a report, within six-months of this motion, outlining how West Norfolk can sufficiently
reduce carbon emissions through energy and other Council strategies, plans and contracts to ensure
the above commitments are met.

f. Include a full carbon footprint for the Borough with future trajectories.

g. The above report will be overseen by the formation of a Climate Change and Biodiversity task
group which will report to the appropriate Council body.

h. Review and performance monitoring of climate change strategy will take place every six
months.

i. Establish a West Norfolk Climate Change Partnership with key stakeholders & Government
departments to develop new strategic and policy approaches.

j- Invite contributions and instigate a wide-ranging programme of community engagement and
awareness within the next six months.

K. Lobby Westminster to deliver the legislation and resources necessary for the required
changes.

l. Provide adequate staff, time and leadership to effect the above.

* Tyndall Centre, Manchester, “Setting Climate Commitments for King's Lynn and West Norfolk”,
October 2019.

Response to Motion 5/19

2. For the above reasons the Borough Council of King’s Lynn and West
Norfolk declares a climate and biodiversity emergency and commits to the
following actions

The UK Parliament declared a Climate Emergency on 1% May 2019. The Rt. Hon.
Michael Gove, MP Secretary of State for the Environment at the time agreed there
was a Climate Emergency. Since October 2019; 261 District, County, Unitary and
Metropolitan Councils have declared a Climate Emergency (around 64%). Some
have just declared a Climate Emergency, some have declared a Climate Emergency
with a target date of 2050 and others have declared a Climate Emergency with a
target date of 2030.

As of 27/11/2019, Breckland, North Norfolk and Norwich councils have declared a
climate emergency. South Norfolk, Norfolk County Council, Great Yarmouth and
Broadland have not declared a climate emergency.

The Local Government Association (LGA) passed a motion at its 2019 annual
conference in support of the UN Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) and the
role of local government in delivering them. This included a declaration of a ‘Climate
Emergency’ and committed to supporting councils in their work to tackle climate

18


https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-politics-48126677
https://www.climateemergency.uk/blog/list-of-councils/
http://lga.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s22163/Motion%20UN%20Sustainable%20Development%20Goals.pdf

change by providing a strong unified voice for local government, and sharing best
practice across all councils.

Options for the Borough Council are:

e To fully recognise the evolving climate crisis and work towards Borough
Council carbon footprint neutrality and net zero district carbon emissions. The
dates will be determined taking into account emerging policies at the national
and local level.

e If the Council chooses not to declare a Climate Emergency then the reason
for this decision should be make clear

e Declare a Climate Emergency and leave a target date blank until the Carbon
Audit and further policy work has been carried out.

e Declare a Climate Emergency with a target date of 2050 which would be in
line with the Government target and Paris Agreement.

e Declare a Climate Emergency with a target date of 2030 which would be in
line with various environmental groups and the 5/19 Motion.

e Declare a Climate Emergency with a target date of 2041 in line with the
Tyndall Centre report

After consultation regarding the legal consequences of declaring a climate
emergency, it has been identified that the declaration of a climate emergency has no
legal effect. However, depending on the terms of the declaration, it could have public
law implications. The declaration may create material considerations, legitimate
expectations and may trigger the duty to act consistently.

It is interesting to note that in recent months there have been multiple calls for many
other policy issues to be declared emergencies:

e High streets emergency — District Councils Network.

e Air quality public health emergency — Health and Social Care Secretary Matt
Hancock.

e Food poverty health emergency — British Medical Journal.

e Youth violence social emergency — Home Affairs Committee.

2(a). Ensure that every decision made by this council takes into consideration
the impact on climate change and biodiversity as the top priority

Council must consider a wide range of issues when making decisions, some are
statutory and others local or follow existing Council Policies. Some areas for
example have a wide remit to consider Climate Change such as Planning
Development and the Local Plan. Some others such as Environmental Permit
already have this as a core pollution issue but must follow Legislation and Statutory
guidance rather than local policy.

19


https://districtcouncils.info/press-releases/high-streets-emergency/?fbclid=IwAR381Aig8Iv4BR7VvYtQQ31yR1dhVx2GhSp0wBB7wTJvkEJRcezJQkIQdHw
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/air-pollution-is-a-health-emergency
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/air-pollution-is-a-health-emergency
https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/health-25201759
https://www.localgov.co.uk/MPs-declare-youth-violence-to-be-social-emergency--/47900

The council is already under a general Duty of Best Value to “make arrangements to
secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised,
having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.”

Under the Duty of Best Value, therefore, authorities should consider overall value,
including economic, environmental and social value, when reviewing service
provision. Authorities also have a statutory duty to consider social value for services
above specified procurement thresholds at the pre-procurement stage. Authorities
can however apply the concept of social value more widely than this and the
statutory guidance recommends that authorities consider social value for other
contracts (for example below the threshold or for good and works) where it is
relevant to the subject matter of the contract and deemed to be beneficial to do so.

The draft Corporate Business Plan, commented upon by all of the council’s policy
review and development panels, proposes six priorities of equal weight, one of which
is “Protecting and enhancing the environment including tackling climate change”.

The Cabinet Decision Paper has already added “Environmental Issues” as one of the
considerations when reporting on matters. This will enable Cabinet to consider
environmental issues as part of their decisions. Criteria for how to assess
environmental issues are being drawn up.

The phase “Top Priority” is ambiguous and needs further clarification.

2(b). Achieve carbon neutrality by 2030, or earlier, across the Borough

Council’s own corporate activities.

The Government have set a UK wide target to be carbon zero by 2050. Cabinet have
already requested a Carbon Audit for the Council’s carbon footprint to be
undertaken. Work on this has started and is expected to be completed by January
2020. Until the baseline is known, we will not know what actions are required to
achieve carbon zero and over what timeline this can be completed.

The medium/long term financial sustainability of the council is uncertain pending the
outcome of the current Government’s proposed spending review and financial
settlement. This will be delayed by the 12 Dec 2019 general election. The council’s
capital resources are focused on generating financial returns to help meet future
revenue requirements of existing service provision. Borrowing rates from PWLB
have recently increased and thereby reduced investment yields and revenue
streams. Additional financial pressures may arise related to business rates if the
NHS is successful in challenging the current charging practice. Consequently, it is
uncertain how this will affect our ability for the Borough Council to achieve carbon
neutrality by 2030.

20


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/418505/Revised_Best_Value_Statutory_Guidance_final.pdf

What is meant by “corporate activities”? Does this mean central functions or
everything the BCKLWN is involved in? This phrase is ambiguous and needs further
clarification.

2(c). Achieve District CO2 zero by 2030.

Currently, the Government have set a UK wide target to be carbon zero by 2050.
Other targets have also been suggested by third parties. The Tyndall Centre for
Climate Change Research has given the Borough of King’'s Lynn and West Norfolk a
95% carbon neutrality target of 2041.

The BEIS data for the district shows that there are many activities and sectors that
the Council does not have any direct (legislation) or policy impacts over. Work has
started on reviewing the district carbon bubble and researching the different sectors
and which ones the Council has the ability to change and adapt and which the
Council has little or no influence.

As an example, the gas power station (commissioned gas power station B) is an
example of nationally important infrastructure. Additional generation capacity could
be brought online outside of the council’'s control and significantly impact upon the
borough’s CO2 emissions. Additionally, car and lorry manufacturers are anticipated
to maintain sales of internal combustion engine vehicles beyond 2030 and forecasts
for electric vehicle sales indicate these will not have replaced existing internal
combustion engine vehicles by 2030. The Government’s Freight Carbon Review
2017 states:

‘Developing a decarbonisation strategy for HGVs is challenging for two key
reasons. Firstly, although electric drivetrain options are available for smaller
HGVs, the technological solutions for larger HGVs are at a relatively early
stage of development and not yet available for deployment across the HGV
fleet. Secondly, the complex nature of the road freight sector, which
comprises a diverse mix of vehicle configurations, vehicle weights, duty cycles
and fleet sizes, means there is not a single industry-wide decarbonisation
solution and a range of measures will be needed”

With regards to tackling domestic there are implications for retro-fitting renewable
energy powered central heating and hot water systems across the district’s entire
housing stocking. Mainly, do we have the commercial capacity to deliver this?
Permitted development rights could also hinder action on new and altered dwellings.

Concessionary bus fares for public transport are not covered by BCKLWN and
insufficient to boost public transport, address air quality and congestion. Therefore,
the BCKLWN has little power to incentivise individuals to start using public transport.

21


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/590922/freight-carbon-review-2017.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/590922/freight-carbon-review-2017.pdf

National climate change targets are unlikely to be met unless councils are given
long-term funding, devolved powers and easier access to complex government
funding pots (Local Government Association).

This is a very wide ranging area that requires more detailed work before any
conclusions can be reached. Additionally, this area of work will require more
resources and a longer timeline than the Council Carbon Audit to complete.

2(d). Not to exceed a Borough population-wide all-time “energy only” budget
of 8 million tonnes of CO2 (or equivalent) emissions, as calculated recently to
meet the Paris Agreement temperature target.

Based on the Tyndall report we only have 8 years (from 2019) to start reducing our
emissions significantly. If we don’t, then by 2027, we will have used up our entire
carbon budget of 8 megatons CO2.

This brings up questions regarding the motions 2(b) and 2(c). In order to not exceed
our all-time “energy only” budget of 8 megatons CO2e (set by Tyndall); we would
need to adhere to their consistent 95% emissions reduction target of 2041. Yet the
above motions require the BCKLWN to be carbon neutral by 2030 and borough
emissions to be zero 2030. This is not in line with the Tyndall centre’s own emission
pathway for the borough, bringing into question the possibility of the borough being
carbon neutral in 10 years.

There doesn’t appear to be much consistency and pragmatism in terms of the
targets being suggested. We have one motion suggesting the council is carbon
neutral by 2030. The next motion suggests borough carbon neutrality also by 2030. It
doesn’t appear realistic to expect the entire borough to be carbon neutral within the
same timeframe set for just the BCKLWN.

We currently have three timelines; 2030 will put the borough in line with various
environmental groups and the 5/19 motion. 2041 will put the borough in line with
Tyndall report projections for 95% emissions reductions. Finally, 2050 will put the
borough in line with the government’'s UK wide carbon zero target. A factor that
needs to be given thought is what impact the BCKLWN will feel from other councils
and sectors declaring earlier targets than 2030/50.

Currently, further work needs to be carried out to determine the best timeline for
reducing the borough’s carbon emissions. We need to establish which timeline is the
most pragmatic and achievable, based on what sectors the borough council can
realistically influence. The BCKLWN’s scope of influence is important in
understanding where it is possible to achieve extreme emissions reductions. There
needs to be an aspect of realism involved when setting our targets, especially with
regards to the required cultural change that is needed to reduce emissions. Future
timescales should consider a start-up time.

22


https://www.local.gov.uk/about/news/climate-change-goals-hinge-funding-and-powers-local-areas

Currently the district’'s emissions profile highlights large emissions from the
commercial and industry sector and the road transport sector. In order to tackle
these sectors, we first need to identify the borough council’s scope of influence over
these sectors, helping us identify which timeframe is most achievable. A breakdown
of the district’s emissions can be found below.

S trib to KL&WN 2017 CO €02 Emissions (k)
ector contribution to 2
amissions Sector 2017|% Total
Industrial and Commercial 697.5 50%
Road Transport 389.4 28%
Domestic 245.9 17%
® Industrial and Commercial LULUCF 72.5 5%
= Road Transport Total 1!405-3
Domestic
C02 Emissions (kt)
®Land Use, Land Use
Change, Forestry Sector 2005 % Total
Industrial and Commercial 72B.5 46%
Road Transport 390.6 24%
Domestic 4041 25%
LULUCF 772 5%
Total 1600.2636

The Committee on Climate Change (CCC) has assessed the impact on
competitiveness to business. They suggest that the major costs are limited to those
in high energy and resource use industries or high exposure to export markets.
Therefore, the Government needs to continue to set out policies and support over
time to help these industries implement the changes required. These macro-policies
are beyond our scope to influence.

Many of the national issues such as aviation, shipping, and decarbonising the energy
supply, and developing carbon extraction technology are not within the regional or
local remit. Thus, the majority of these costs will be covered and allocated at national
level.

2(e). Prepare a report, within six-months of this motion.

Work has started and is ongoing in several areas. We do not believe that the work
that is required will be completed within 6 months. Management Team have agreed
a time table to complete the Carbon Audit and some policy work. We anticipate that
this can be achieved with the current resources. Some other areas such as the Local
Plan may have a different timeline.

We expect that this will be taken forward and a more pragmatic approach and
timeline is required with the current resources available.

23



Our current work plan and timeline is as follows:

September 2019:

e Set up a climate change officer working group (CCOWG).
e Agree terms of reference and work plan for CCOWG.
e Appoint a student intern. Start the Carbon Audit of the BCKLWN.

October 2019:

e Engage with the NA LEP regarding district CO2 emissions work.

November/December 2019

Arrange COCWG meetings as required

Start background work on policies/ best practice/ strategy options
Start background work on district CO2 bubble

Consider use of UEA Environmental Consultancy

January 2020:

e Attend Norfolk District’s Climate Change Group
e Complete the carbon audit of the BCKLWN.
e Report to MT/ Cabinet

March 2020 onwards:

e Consider best practice and develop strategy options for consideration.

April 2020 onwards:

e Adopt a Climate Change Strategy.

e Review of district CO2 emissions — Unlikely to be completed this financial
year

e Engage with local stakeholders and interested parties as required.

A report could be a brief update. The scale, scope and content will need to be
agreed so that it would be deliverable.

We could also have an idea of policies and strategies being taken forward. We can
present the carbon audit within 6 months with a general update on other work
streams.

2(f). Include a full carbon footprint for the Borough with future trajectories.

As per 2(b) above, the Council will be completing a Carbon Audit and then Council
can agree a timeline/target. This would require monitoring and reporting on the
carbon savings and how they have been achieved.

24



We are currently in the process of reviewing the BEIS local authority emissions data
for the borough. As per 2(d) above we have a timeline presented by the Tyndall
report entitled ‘Setting Climate Commitments for King’s Lynn and West Norfolk’. This
timeline sets out proposed future trajectories (based on an 8 megaton carbon
budget), that culminates in 95% carbon neutrality by 2041.

However, as mentioned we need to look further than a footprint in order to set future
trajectories. Currently within the district carbon bubble, there are installations and
operations that the council is unable to influence. These need to be taken into
account and properly investigated, in order to set achievable future trajectories.
Unfortunately, the Tyndall report doesn’'t seem to take into account the council’s
scope of influence when setting future trajectories. Before trajectories are set, further
work need to be done in order to identify a practical carbon neutrality timeline.

When setting future trajectories for borough emissions, monitoring and reporting of
carbon savings is required. Therefore, trajectories could be updated post-
implementation of strategies and policies, to give a realistic trajectory based on what
is being done.

How will we calculate the trajectories? We do not have the resources of the Tyndall
Centre to calculate a meaningful trajectory. A trajectory is only part of the overall
response of a community leader. The trajectory should be accompanied by an
assessment to inform the impact upon the borough’s economy in terms of
investment required, consequent impact on GDP/GVA, etc. and a transition plan.

Is there a regional/sub-regional target? We are not aware that the New Anglia LEP
has done this.

The CCC has assessed the impact on competitiveness to business — suggesting that
the major costs are limited to those in high energy and resource use industries or
high exposure to export markets, and therefore the Government needs to continue to
set out a set of policies and support over time to help these industries implement the
changes required. Therefore these macro-policies are beyond our scope to
influence.

Many of the national issues such as aviation, shipping, and decarbonising the energy
supply, and developing carbon extraction technology are not within the regional or
local remit, and therefore, the majority of these costs will be covered and allocated at
national level.

2(g). The above report will be overseen by the formation of a Climate Change
and Biodiversity task group which will report to the appropriate Council body.

25



Management Team and Cabinet have agreed to setting up an Officer working group
to prepare the Carbon Audit and help develop a Climate Change Policy. As with any
policy this will then go through the normal scrutiny review process.

In setting up a Climate Change and Biodiversity task group, there is a risk of
replicating work and using scarce officer resources. There are also other groups
such as the Local Plan Task Group which are already working on environmental
matters which will feed in to the general policy.

It is not clear how the proposed Climate Change and Biodiversity task group will
interact with other similar task groups. What is the task group’s term of reference,
what are its aims, objectives, what scrutiny will be applied and how it will be
resourced?

Instead, it could be considered setting up an invite only De-carbonising Group made
up of big emitters, NA LEP etc. There already appears to be interest from other
council’s. Norfolk County Council mentioned in their environmental policy that they
want to engage with partners and neighbours.

The Norfolk Chief Executives have recently agreed to set up a Norfolk District's
Climate Change Group which will allow collaborative working on environmental and
green issues. This group will allow the Borough Council to review and develop its
own polices within this area.

2(h). Review and performance monitoring of climate change strategy will take
place every six months.

The council publishes a corporate business plan monitoring report that is monitored
by Corporate Performance Panel every six months. Progress with key actions that
contribute towards to the proposed priority of “Protecting and enhancing the
environment, including tackling climate change” would be included within this report.

A small number of new measures such as % reduction in energy usage relative to a
baseline e.g. Q1, 2019 compared to Q1, 2018, solar power generated/equivalent
CO2 avoided, etc. could be included within the indicator suite that is reported
guarterly to Environment and Community Panel. The council’s performance indicator
suite and related targets will be reviewed in May 2020 which should align with the
development of the climate change strategy.

We could develop a KL&WN Carbon Management Plan (similar to the one done by
Norwich CC). Once we have done the carbon audit, looked at the borough emissions
and developed policies and strategies, a document like the one linked below might
be worth preparing. It would tell the public what has been done over the last few
months and things in the pipeline for the future. It will give a comprehensive review

26



of where the borough council is at, with regards to its own emissions and the carbon
bubble.

Once we have established a timeframe and potential targets, a new version of this
document could be written up every 3-5 years or for each new target period, so as to
collate in one place what we have done and highlight, where we are with meeting our
targets and show what further things that we are doing.

The Environment and Community Panel (E&CP) have received updates on climate
change work in September 2019 and December 2019.

2(i). Establish a West Norfolk Climate Change Partnership with key
stakeholders & Government departments to develop new strategic and policy
approaches.

This appears to duplicate the proposed Climate Change and Biodiversity task group
and its terms of reference, aims, and objectives will need to be clearly defined. There
also appears to be an overlap with existing forums and partnerships that already
exist and that could be more ready used to forward the elements of Climate Change.
One example is the New Anglia LEP.

If all local authorities did this, it could create significant demands upon some
agencies and organisations resources to support their participation e.g. The
Environment Agency, Highways Agency, BEIS, LEP, etc.

There could also be a move to establish a county, sub-regional or regional
partnership. We could consider setting up an invite only De-carbonising Group made
up of big emitters, LEP, etc. This would allow us to share commercially sensitive
information about plans and progress.

We could raise this with the West Norfolk Strategy Group, to coordinate activity,
investments, etc. for BCKLWN, Freebridge, NHS, CWA, etc.

2()). Invite contributions and instigate a wide-ranging programme of
community engagement and awareness within the next six months.

Community engagement will be a key task but will need to be led by a coherent
policy and strategy.

We intend to establish a community forum to inform the development of our policy
and to inform wider change across the borough. This will be a part of our climate

27



change policy and strategy. The terms of reference, timescale and resources
required will be established as part of our strategy development. We need to be
mindful of how these local forums work within the existing and evolving network of
partnerships within the borough and across the county.

This area of work will need to be suitably resourced. It is not clear what workload this
entails and therefore, the level of resources that will be required. It is not known if
this can be achieved within six months, within existing staff workload or if additional
resourcing will be required.

2(k). Lobby Westminster to deliver the legislation and resources necessary for
the required changes

This should form part of the overall strategy going forward but as we do not have a
policy yet it is unclear what the Council wants to lobby for. It is not known if this can
be achieved within existing staff workload or if additional resourcing will be required.
This is the LGA’s role, who is already undertaking this, as highlighted in a report to
the LGA’s Improvement and Innovation Board on 29 October 2019.

2(1). Provide adequate staff, time and leadership to effect the above.

Management Team and Cabinet have agreed to fund a UEA Internship post for 4
months to complete the Carbon Audit, review technical data, look into the boroughs
emissions and assist with drawing up policies. It is clear that some of this work will
take longer than 4 months and additional staff resources will be required to complete
it.

Considering the Motion and forward scanning, it is clear that additional resources are
to be required over the next 2 years to develop, adopt and then implement any
polices. The scale of the workload will be dictated by Management Team and
Cabinet but it will not be completed with the existing resources.

We now have a corporate officer group led by service manager reporting to the
Major Projects Board.

The Climate Change lead is within the Environment Portfolio supported by Leader of
the Council. Scrutiny is by the E&CP.

28



o
Borough Council of &5/‘.\?
King’s Lynn & K:i‘—?”’—‘is
West Norfolk }@'@’ \

Climate Change Work Plan
2019 to 2020

29



4.

5.

Contents

Introduction
Background
Profile of Council
Scope of Service

Organisation / Staffing

Table A - Key Functions and Responsibilities

Table B — Section Objectives 2019/20

Table C — Local Performance Indicators

30



11

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.1

4.2

4.3

Introduction

The Climate Change Officers Work Group (CCOWG) covers a wide number of teams
across the Borough Council. This work plan covers how the CCOWG will implement the
review of Climate Change across the Borough Council. The key functions and
responsibilities are contained in Table A, Group Objectives for 2019/20 are contained in
Table B and Local Performance Indicators are contained in Table C.

Background

Climate Change has been recently been raised at several Full Councils Meetings by
members of local environmental groups. The Environment Portfolio Holder has agreed to
carry out a review of the carbon foot print of BCKLWN.

In addition it was also agreed to review the combined CO2 emissions of the district. New
Anglia LEP is also considering this area and this work may assist in updating the Carbon
emissions inventory of the district.

Management Team considered a Climate Change discussion paper in July 2019 on what
actions should be taken towards this area. They have agreed to set up the CCOWG to
review and consider this area and make recommendations going forward.

As well as setting up the CCOWG it was agreed that a Student placement/ Intern from a
suitable faculty be employed on a short term/ temp basis to assist with the carbon footprint
review and next steps.

Profile of Council

The Borough has a population of 151,600 and covers an area of 550 square miles. There
are approximately 64,000 households in the Borough.

There are 101 Parish and Town Councils. The Borough has a mixed urban/rural
population. The largest population centres are King’s Lynn, Hunstanton, Heacham and
Downham Market.

There are 55 Elected Members and a Cabinet style leadership with a series of policy and
performance panels. Climate Change is within the Environment Portfolio with scrutiny by
the Environment & Community Panel. There are two Parliamentary Constituencies.

The Borough is one of seven District Councils within the Norfolk County Boundary.

The District has the third largest CO2 footprint of any district authority in England. The
2017 overall figure is 1400 Kt of CO2.

Scope of service
The key function and responsibilities of the Group are listed in Table A below.
The section objectives are listed in Table B below.

The local performance indicators are listed in Table C below.

31 3



5 Organisation / Staffing

5.1 This Section Plan will be delivered through the Climate Change Officers Work Group. Resources
from other Departments are listed in 5.3 below.

5.2 The managerial and specialist responsibilities for service delivery are as follows:

Name Position Area FTE
Dave Robson Environmental Health Manager Group Chair 0.2
Ged Greaves Senior Policy & Performance Officer Policy Advice 0.1
Henry Saunders | Climate Change Officer Intern Audit & Advice 1
Robert Wiseman | Greenspace/Database Officer Utilities Information ??

5.3 Certain aspects of this plan rely on resource from other Departments within the Borough Council

Areas for consideration:

Lead Department

Council buildings

Property Services

Vehicle fleet Open space/ Transport Manager
Equipment Open space

Green spaces, trees and woodland Open space/ Planning

Lease cars Finance

Refuse fleet Refuse & Recycling/ Kier

Staff travel plan Policy

Digitalisation Finance

Leisure buildings

Alive West Norfolk

New housing builds

Corporate Projects

Planning policy

Planning Policy

Shoreline management

Flood & Water Man/Planning Policy

Transportation

Planning Policy

ICT infrastructure

ICT

Borough housing stock

Housing

32




A. Key functions and responsibilities

1 Complete audit of BCKLWN Footprint

2 Complete review of whole District emissions

3 Set up Climate Change Officer Working Group (CCOWG)

4 Consider best practice and work towards being a climate change exemplar authority

5 Help develop and implement the council’s climate change policy and strategy framework including targets and
action plan

6 Engage with local stakeholders and interested parties

7 Provide updates to Management Team, Cabinet and E&C Panel as required

B. Section Objectives 2019/20

Target Date

1 Set up CCOWG Sept 2019

2 Agree Terms of Reference and work plan for CCOWG Sept 2019

3 Appoint Student Intern Sept 2019

4 Start the Carbon Audit of the BCKLWN Sept 2019

5 Engage with NA LEP regarding district CO2 emissions work October 2019

6 Consider use of UEA environmental consultancy module November/December 2019
7 Start background work on policies/ best practice/ strategy options November/December 2019
8 Start background work on district CO2 bubble November/December 2019
9 Engage and participate in the county group. November 2019 onwards
10 Complete Carbon Audit of BCKLWN January 2020

11 Report to MT/Cabinet January 2020

12 Consider best practice and develop strategy options for consideration March 2020 onwards

13 Adopt Climate Change Strategy April 2020 onwards

14 Engage with local stakeholders and interested parties April 2020 onwards

15 Review borough CO2 emissions — Unlikely to be completed this financial year April 2020 onwards

C. Section Local Performance Indicators ‘

Ref. Description Target Actual
CC.1 Complete review of BCKLWN Carbon footprint
CC.2 Organise and Chair CCOWG meetings

33



ve



List of Current BCKLWN Climate Change Strategies

Current strategies/work

1.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.
15.

In 2012 solar panels were installed onto some council owned properties (including King’s
Court).

The BCKLWN have commissioned a Re: fit of its estate through Ameresco. This will improve
energy efficiency and provide over 400 tonnes of CO, reductions per year.

A small tree planting programme is taking place in early 2020, which will see a few hundred
trees be planted in King’s Lynn.

The lease car strategy has been updated, whereby from the 18th June 2019 lease cars can
only be hybrid petrol/electric or fully electric.

The Mayor’s car is now a hybrid.

There has been a push to reduce the ICT carbon footprint. “Free Cooling” was introduced,
which allows DX AC Units to be turned off during the cooler periods throughout the year. ICT
now only rely on DX AC units during the hot summer months now. ICT have also virtualised
most of their server estate, which reduces the physical hardware in their datacentre. Both
initiatives saw an electricity saving of £8k+ per year and a carbon reduction of 35 tonnes per
year.

A climate change officer working group has been set up.

A graduate intern has been appointed to aid climate change work. This was initially a 4
month internship, which has now been extended to 12 months.

We have completed a carbon audit for the BCKLWN’s 2018/2019 emissions, which highlights
a 25% reduction in emissions since 2014/2015.

We will be using a green tariff for electricity for the 2020/2021 financial year. This will
reduce our scope 2 emissions to 0 tonnes CO,, which equates to a reduction of 31%.

We are working with the UEA Environmental Consultancy module, which will provide us will
consultancy papers on ways to reduce our emissions.

The corporate business plan includes climate change as one of its priorities: “Protecting and
enhancing the environment including tackling climate change”.

A county group has been established to work with other Norfolk councils on our emissions
reduction journey: The Norfolk Climate Change Partnership.

We have developed a draft climate change policy.

We have established a climate change work plan for 2019/2020 and will do the same for
2020/2021.

Future/ongoing work

1.

2.

We have set up a number of working groups to help reduce council emissions:

a. Tree planting and climate change working group.

b. Housing policy and climate change working group.

c. Planning policy and climate change working group.

d. Re:fit and climate change working group, which has started looking into a Re:fit #2
We are reviewing the district emissions bubble.

3. We will be developing a climate change strategy for 2021.

35



Agenda Item 11

REPORT TO CABINET

Open Would any decisions proposed:

Any Be entirely within Cabinet’s powers to decide NO
especially Discretionary | Need to be recommendations to Council YES
affected

Wards Is it a Key Decision NO

Lead Member: Clir Peter Gidney (Portfolio Other Cabinet Members consulted:

Holder for Project Delivery)

E-mail: clir.peter.gidney@west-norfolk.gov.uk Other Members consulted:

Lead Officer: Matthew Henry (Assistant
Director Property & Projects)

E-mail: matthew.henry@west-norfolk.gov.uk
Direct Dial: 01553 616272

(Chief Executive;

Other Officers consulted: Lorraine Gore

Financial Policy/Personnel | Statutory Equal Impact Risk
Implications Implications Implications Assessment Management

Implications
YES NO NO NO YES

If not for publication, the paragraph(s) of Schedule 12A of the 1972 Local Government Act

considered to justify that is (are) paragraph(s)

Date of meeting: February 2020

NOTICE OF MOTION 4/19

Summary

Notice of Motion 4/19 was submitted to Full Council in September 2019 in
respect of proposed works affecting Harding’s Way, King’s Lynn. This report
sets out the background to the project and the wider policy initiatives
developed by the Council over a period of time. The purpose of this report is
to enable Cabinet to consider the Notice of Motion and determine whether, or
not, to accept the requests made under this Notice.

Recommendation
It is recommended that:

1. Cabinet consider the requests made under Notice of Motion 4/19
together with the background information set out within this report; and

2. Cabinet rejects the proposals set out in the Notice of Motion 4/19.

36




Reason for Decision

The Council has progressed a number of significant regeneration initiatives
within the borough over several years with inputs from a variety of other public
bodies and agencies. Significant amounts of funding have been secured from
partner agencies to facilitate these initiatives that will help drive the growth,
development and sustainability of King’'s Lynn as a sub-regional centre. The
requests made under Notice 4/19 are considered contrary to long-standing
Council policies.

1.0
1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.0

2.1

Introduction

Notice of Motion 4/19 was submitted to Full Council on 17t October
2019 relating to proposed works to Harding’s Way, King’'s Lynn. The
proposed works are set out in more detail later in this report.

Notice of Motion 4/19 was submitted by Councillor Alexandra Kemp,
which requested that :

“Council urges Cabinet, in the strongest terms, to review all work
planned to be done on or around Hardings Way, under (but not limited
to) Planning Permission 17/01008/F, in the hope that they will not move
the bus lane north, or infroduce any new roads across it, and not allow
any additional types of traffic onto it, or diminish any of its current
features which enable pedestrians, prams and buggies to use it
unhindered by traffic; in order to prevent detrimental impacts.”

The full Notice of Motion can be seen at Appendix 1 to this report.

The above Notice of Motion was stimulated by the Council’s approved
planning application to construct two/three access points into potential
development sites at the southern end of the Waterfront Regeneration
Area (and to the north of the Nar Ouse Regeneration Area) located off
Harding’s Way and the requirement to submit an application to vary the
Traffic Regulation Order affecting this road.

The Planning Permission 17/01008/F and layout drawings can be seen
at Appendix 2 to this report.

The Notice of Motion relates to the roadway known as Harding’s Way
that was developed, and funded, under the Central Government’s
“‘Community Infrastructure Fund” (CIF) initiative. More information on
CIF can be found later within this report.

Purpose of this report

A Notice of Motion (4/19) has been submitted for consideration by
Cabinet, which needs to be addressed.

37




2.2

2.3

3.0
3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

The Notice of Motion requests that the Council does not bring forward
sites for development and does not make use of Harding’s Way for the
purposes the Central Government grant funding was intended.

The specific issues set out within the narrative to the Notice of Motion
have not been specifically addressed as it is considered that these
issues have been covered in the statutory/regulatory processes of:

e the planning application process (Borough Council of King’'s Lynn
and West Norfolk (as local planning authority)); and

e the Traffic Regulation Order processes (Norfolk County Council (as
local highway authority)).

Background

The Council has progressed a number of significant regeneration
initiatives within the borough over several years. The two main
initiatives within King’s Lynn have been the Nar Ouse Regeneration
Area and the Waterfront Regeneration Area. These regeneration
initiatives have been progressed by the Council with inputs from a
variety of other public bodies and agencies. Significant amounts of
funding have been secured from partner agencies to facilitate these
regeneration initiatives that will help drive the growth, development and
sustainability of King’s Lynn as a sub-regional centre.

The Nar Ouse Regeneration Area (NORA) and the Waterfront
Regeneration Area (WRA) have been progressed with a view to
connecting the two areas and ultimately linking these areas to King’s
Lynn town centre.

Both the NORA and the WRA sites comprise challenging brownfield
sites with multiple issues.

The Council, with its partner agencies, has invested significantly in the
delivery of the NORA and the WRA to help bring these sites forward for
development. This includes:

e Land assembly - acquisition of sites by private treaty negotiation
and compulsory purchase orders (CPO’s)

e Contaminated land remediation

e Strategic surface water infrastructure civil engineering works at the
River Nar

e Significant highway infrastructure — Nar Ouse Way (connecting the

A47 with Southgates roundabout) and Harding’s Way (connecting
Wisbech Road with Boal Street)

38



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

4.0
4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

e Development of a new school (St Michael’s)

e Development of residential housing — both by the private sector and
the borough council.

¢ A hotel development
e A Pub Restaurant development

In addition to the above the council is about to embark on the delivery
of:

e secondary highway infrastructure on the NORA Enterprise Zone
area to enable development sites to come onto the market; and

e the development of speculative commercial units to be leased to
potential occupiers

The two current initiatives above are again facilitated by partner
agencies, particularly with regard to funding arrangements via
Business Rates retention to fund the secondary road infrastructure
costs, and a long-term repayable grant from the New Anglia Local
Enterprise Partnership (NALEP) for the development of the speculative
units.

Overall the regeneration initiatives are intended to provide
opportunities for business development, employment, places for
residents to live and the associated infrastructure to facilitate the
sustainable growth of King’s Lynn.

The proposed developments at the southern end of Harding’s Way
form part of the overall regeneration proposals for King’s Lynn.

Development Proposals for the southern end of Harding’s Way

As mentioned above, the council has been progressing the NORA and
WRA regeneration initiatives over a period of time. Like many other
property development led regeneration initiatives nationally these
development proposals were impacted by the 2008 global recession
and progress was stalled until fairly recently.

As the general property, and particularly the housing, market has
improved the council has been looking to progress a number sites for
development, including sites at the southern end of Harding’s Way.

The council commissioned Chaplin Farrant (architects) to undertake
design and feasibility work for a number of development options at the
junction of Wisbech Road and Harding’s Way. This preliminary work is
attached at Appendix 3.

Owing to the proximity of the traffic light controlled road junction onto
Wisbech Road it was considered appropriate to design, and seek

39



4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

5.0

5.1

5.2

planning permission, for the junction set-up to service the proposed
development sites. Norfolk County Council were appointed as the
borough council’'s agent to undertake this design work and submit the
planning application. Planning Permission was granted on 6
September 2017, subject to satisfying some pre-commencement
conditions.

On the planning permission [17/01008/F] Condition 11 stated : “No
works shall commence on the site until the Traffic Regulation Order for
the amendment to the bus only route has been secured by the
Highway Authority.”

Norfolk County Council, on behalf of the borough council, then
progressed two Traffic Regulation Orders (TRO’s) in respect of
Harding’s Way and later on in respect of the junction between
Harding’s Way and Wisbech Road, namely:

e THE NORFOLK COUNTY COUNCIL (KING’'S LYNN VARIOUS
ROADS (BUS AND CYCLE LANE) AMENDMENT ORDER 2018;
and

e THE NORFOLK COUNTY COUNCIL (KING'S
LYNN)(PROHIBITION OF RIGHT AND LEFT TURNS)
AMENDMENT ORDER 2018

Copies of the Norfolk County Council TRO Notices can be seen at
Appendices 4 and 5 respectively.

These TRO’s have been processed, following consultation, by Norfolk
County Council and are currently awaiting completion by signing and
sealing by the relevant authority.

The borough council has not yet decided on the form of development it
wishes to pursue on the sites at the southern end of Harding’s Way.
Subject to the outcome/decision made on Notice of Motion 4/19, and
the content of this report, a separate Cabinet Report will be submitted
by the Portfolio Holder for Project Delivery later in 2020 once a full
options appraisal exercise has been undertaken.

Community Infrastructure Fund

As stated earlier within this report (1.4), Harding’s Way, along with a
number of other strategic highways improvements within King’s Lynn,
was funded via the Central Government’'s Community Infrastructure
(CIF) initiative.

The Community Infrastructure Fund was a Central Government
initiative created jointly between the Department of Transport and the
Department for Communities and Local Government. The then
Minister of State for the Department of Communities and Local
Government (Housing) Margaret Beckett released the following written
Statement on 27t March 2009 :

40



“My hon. Friend Paul Clark, the Under-Secretary of State for
Transport, and | are today announcing £170 million of capital support
from the Community Infrastructure Fund for 29 transport projects in the
growth areas and growth points that will help to unlock housing, and a
further 26 projects that are being invited to submit full business cases
for further consideration.

The housing market is experiencing significant challenges as a result of
turbulence in the global financial markets. The growth areas and
growth points are playing a critical role in helping us to meet these
challenges, with plans to build 35 per cent. above previously planned
levels. But if the infrastructure support for these new homes is not in
place, their construction will be delayed when we need them most,
hampering the economy'’s recovery. This means we need to be
investing today in tomorrow's infrastructure. The long-term challenge to
meet the housing needs of an ageing, growing population, while
helping families and first time buyers priced out of the property market,
remains. The Government are committed to promoting the long-term
stability of the housing market and meeting the long term challenge of
increasing housing supply.

The Community Infrastructure Fund is one of Government's key
mechanisms for supporting housing growth. As a joint Communities
and Local Government and Department for Transport fund, it is
designed to specifically support small and medium scale transport
schemes that unlock housing growth. One hundred million pounds has
already been allocated to 13 schemes in the Thames Gateway. A
further £200 million has been ring-fenced to support the growth areas
and growth points over the CSRO7 period.

Today's announcement allocates £170 million of this for 29 transport
schemes in the growth areas and growth points that will support the
delivery in housing growth over the next two years. The list projects
include:

New public transport facilities, such as the new South East
Hampshire Bus rapid transit scheme;

41


https://www.theyworkforyou.com/mp/?m=1594
https://www.theyworkforyou.com/glossary/?gl=23
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Community_Infrastructure_Fund
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Communities_and_Local_Government
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Communities_and_Local_Government
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Thames_Gateway

5.3

5.4

New road and junction improvements, such as the improvements
to the Southgate area of Kings Lynn which will support the
development of 900 new homes;

Innovative transport solutions that will ensure smoother traffic
flows and reduced congestion such as the A14 ramp metering
scheme in Kettering and the urban traffic management scheme in
Aylesbury; and

Schemes to improve sustainability, such as the Wichestowe
Pedestrian and Cycle Bridge which will provide a sustainable
means for the new development at Wichelstowe to access the
town centre in Swindon

Another 26 schemes from the second round growth points have been
shortlisted to submit full business cases for consideration for a further
£30 million from the community infrastructure fund together with any
remaining funding from the first round. This includes projects to provide
a new rail station at Chorley, new cycling facilities at Ellesmere

Port and road improvements to service high frequency bus services in
Newcastle.

The Community Infrastructure Fund is being managed on behalf of
Government by the Homes and Communities Agency. This funding is
in addition to the £833 million already provided to the growth areas and
growth points from the growth fund over the CSRO7 period.

Further details of the schemes that have been allocated funding have
been placed in the Library of the House.”

As can be seen from the above the Community Infrastructure Fund
was very much intended for the purposes of helping deliver housing
developments, with King’s Lynn being specifically mentioned in the
Secretary of State’s Press Release.

The “Norfolk County Council Round Two Expression of Interest Form”
and the “Community Infrastructure Fund CIF 2 — King’s Lynn South
Transport Major Scheme — Full Business Case” documents can be
seen at Appendices 6 and 7 respectively.

42


https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Kings_Lynn
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/A14
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ellesmere_Port
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ellesmere_Port
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Homes_and_Communities_Agency
https://www.theyworkforyou.com/glossary/?gl=252

7.0

7.1

7.2

7.2.1

7.2.2

Policy Implications

The Nar Ouse Regeneration Area (NORA) and the Waterfront

Regeneration Area (WRA) are long standing policies for the Council.

This is supported by a number of Cabinet Reports and Cabinet

Decisions. Within a number of these reports there has been explicit

reference to housing development accessed via Harding’s Way,

namely :

e Cabinet (3 February 2009) : “Waterfront Regeneration Project
Appraisal”; and

e Cabinet (15t December 2009) : “Waterfront Regeneration Area

Project Review”

Below, set out for ease of reference, are some relevant excerpts from
the Cabinet Reports. Full copies of these reports can be found on
InSite.

Cabinet (3 February 2009):

“A route from Wisbech Road to Boal Street through the Waterfront
Regeneration Site. This route will serve a dual purpose. It will provide
the access roads to the north and south of the site and allow public
transport and emergency vehicles to pass through the site. Only public
transport and emergency vehicles will be able to pass through the site.
This movement will be controlled by automatic barriers in the centre of
the site.” [para 3.5.8 (3)]

“The CIF funding will provide the core transport infrastructure for the
Waterfront Site. It will be crucial that the route is designed and

constructed fit for the proposed dual purpose.” [para 3.5.10]

Cabinet (15t December 2009) :

“The CIF public transport route is constructed to a standard which
would allow development as proposed in the indicative masterplan
along that part of the route which would not require eventual
realignment to allow for the construction of a marina basin. Budgetary
provision of £500,000 is made available for the upgraded route.”
[Recommendation 11]

The indicative masterplan can be seen at Appendix 8 to this report.
43



8.0

8.1

8.2

8.3

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

11.0

11.1

11.2

“In parallel with the progression of the waterfront scheme, a bid by
Norfolk County Council, supported by the Borough Council, for £5.3m
funding from the Community Infrastructure Fund (CIF) to implement a
package of transportation improvements in King’s Lynn was approved.
This includes a public transport road link across the waterfront area
from Wisbech Road to Boal Quay which will include an access which
will be built to a specification to open up the southern part of the
waterfront site for development. A planning application for this route
was approved on 5" November. Construction of the road has to be

completed by March 2011 to secure the CIF funding.” [para 1.3]

Financial Implications

The Council, Central Government, and various public bodies and
agencies have committed significant funds to facilitate the regeneration
initiatives in King’s Lynn. Most notably £5,330,000 was secured under
CIF to develop Harding’'s Way, together with other highway
improvements, to facilitate housing growth within the town.

The Council has committed capital resources in the acquisition of sites
to help deliver its growth and regeneration ambitions. If the proposed
works are not delivered there will be a significant negative impact on
the sites’ values.

If the works at the southern end of Harding’s Way are not commenced
the Council will be unable to release the adjacent land for
development. Note that there is currently private sector interest in
these sites.

Personnel Implications

None

Statutory Considerations

None

Equality Impact Assessment (EIA)

Please see pre-screening report attached.

Note that Norfolk County Council has undertaken an Equality Impact

Assessment as part of its TRO exercise(s) relating to Harding’s Way.
The draft NCC EIA is attached at Appendix 9 to this report.

44



12.0 Risk Management Implications

12.1 The borough council needs to approve the signing and sealing of the
Traffic Regulation Orders before any works commence.

12.2 The Planning Permission for the proposed junction works, if not
commenced before June 2020 will expire and a new application will be
required.

13.0 Declarations of Interest / Dispensations Granted
13.1 None apparent

14.0 Background Papers

14.1 Cabinet Report (3 February 2009) : “Waterfront Regeneration Project
Appraisal’

14.2 Cabinet Report (15t December 2009) : “Waterfront Regeneration Area Project
Review”

15.0 Appendices

Appendix 1 Notice of Motion 4/19 — submitted by Clir A Kemp

Appendix 2 Planning Permission 17/00108/F

Appendix 3 Chaplin & Farrant Development Options

Appendix 4 Traffic Regulation Order : THE NORFOLK COUNTY COUNCIL
(KING’S LYNN VARIOUS ROADS (BUS AND CYCLE LANE)
AMENDMENT ORDER 2018

Appendix 5 Traffic Regulation Order : THE NORFOLK COUNTY COUNCIL
(KING’S LYNN)(PROHIBITION OF RIGHT AND LEFT TURNS)
AMENDMENT ORDER 2018

Appendix 6 The Norfolk County Council Round Two Expression of
Interest Form

Appendix 7 Community Infrastructure Fund CIF 2 — King’s Lynn South
Transport Major Scheme — Full Business Case

Appendix 8 Waterfront Regeneration Area — indicative masterplan (2009)

Appendix 9 Norfolk County Council Draft Equality Impact Assessment

45



Borough Council of
King’s Lynn &
West Norfolk

COUNCIL MEETING

Agenda

Thursday, 17th October, 2019
at 6.30 pm

in the

Assembly Room

Town Hall

Saturday Market Place
King’s Lynn

46



Borough Council of
King’s Lynn &
West Norfolk

King’s Court, Chapel Street, King’s Lynn, Norfolk, PE30 1EX
Telephone: 01553 616200
Fax: 01553 691663

Dear Councillor

You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of the Borough Council of King’s
Lynn and West Norfolk which will commence at 6.30 pm on Thursday, 17th
October, 2019 in The Assembly Room, Town Hall, Saturday Market Place,
King’s Lynn to transact the business shown below.

Yours sincerely

Lorraine Gore
Chief Executive

BUSINESS TO BE TRANSACTED

1. PRAYERS
2, APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

3. MINUTES

To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the Meeting of the Council held
on 5 September 2019. (previously circulated).

4, DECLARATION OF INTEREST

Please indicate if there are any interests which should be declared. A
declaration of an interest should indicate the nature of the interest (if not
already declared on the Register of Interests) and the agenda item to which it
relates. If a disclosable pecuniary interest is declared, the member should
withdraw from the room whilst the matter is discussed.

5. MAYOR'S COMMUNICATIONS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

To receive Mayor's communications and announcements.
6. URGENT BUSINESS

To receive any items of business which in the opinion of the Mayor are urgent.
7. PETITIONS AND PUBLIC QUESTIONS

47



10.

11.

To receive petitions and public questions in accordance with Standing Order
9.

REVIEW OF PROPORTIONALITY (Pages 12 - 13)

CABINET MEMBERS REPORTS

In accordance with Standing Order 11.1 to receive reports from Cabinet
Members in the following order and under Standing Order 11.2 (a) Members
of the Council may ask questions of the Cabinet Member on their reports and
Portfolio areas:

(Councillors are reminded that this is a question and answer session not
a debate.)

1) Business Development - Councillor G Middleton (Pages 14 - 15)
2) Commercial Services - Councillor P Kunes (Pages 16 - 17)

3) Development - Councillor R Blunt (Pages 18 - 21)

4) Environment - Councillor | Devereux (Pages 22 - 23)

5) Housing - Councillor A Lawrence (Pages 24 - 26)

6) Project Delivery - Councillor P Gidney (Pages 27 - 28)

7) Deputy Leader and Culture, Heritage and Health - Councillor Mrs E
Nockolds (Pages 29 - 31)

8) Leader and Resources - Councillor B Long (Pages 32 - 34)
MEMBERS QUESTION TIME

In accordance with Standing Order 11.2 (b), Members of the Council may ask

any questions of the Chairman of any Council Body (except the Cabinet).
RECOMMENDATIONS FROM COUNCIL BODIES

(Members are reminded this is a debate, not a question and answer
session)

To consider the following recommendations to Council:

1) Cabinet: 24 September 2019 (Pages 35 - 38)

CAB53: Boal Quay — Gallery Proposal
CAB54: Nar Ouse Enterprise Zone Implementation and Delivery
CABS55: Heritage Action Zone — Chapel Street

48



12.

NOTICES OF MOTION

To consider the following Notices of Motion:

(3/19), submitted by Councillor J Moriarty:

In 2018 this Council introduced a new system for sifting planning applications.
Said scheme was subsequently reviewed in early 2019.

On both occasions the council breached its own Scheme of Community
Involvement (SCI) by failing to consult key partners in the planning process,
namely Parish Councils.

It is agreed there will now be a consultation exercise with Parish Councils,
said exercise to be overseen by an appropriate panel or body of elected
councillors.

(4/19), submitted by Councillor A Kemp:

Lynn Transport Plan and Hardings Way Bus Lane

A large number of Constituents across the Borough, including South Lynn and
the Friars, and from the Walpoles to North Runcton and Setchey, are now
aware of the harm, distress and adverse impact on disabled residents, people
in mobility scooters, families with children and prams, retired residents, those
less able to walk and children walking to school, in the South Lynn community,
the Friars and other parts of the Borough, for whom Hardings Way is the only
safe route into town, if Council goes ahead with its plan to run a road through
the Buggy Pavement & Safe Route to Schooi, and allow traffic, HGV’s and two
other roads across the Wisbech Road part of Hardings Way Rus Lane; and
want 10 avoid the detrimental impacts.

In 2609, a bid for £5.3m funding from the Community Infrastructure Fund (CIF
2) to implement a package of transportation improvements in King’s Lynn, was
approved at the Borough's Cabinet.

This included a public transport road link across the waterfront area from
Wisbech Road to Boal Quay.

This public transport link was Hardings Way.
The purpose of Hardings Way was to speed up buses through the bus lane
and reduce congestion, air pollution and emissions from buses from London

Road, from the town centre and from the gyratory.

Members - and the local community - were advised that it was envisaged that
the road would never be a through traffic route, with the exception of buses.

The Transport Statement said that * the route would initially be used by 13
buses per hour, off peak, in each direction throughout the day, rising to an

49



anticipated 15 per hour from 2016 and 17 per hour from 2021. During peak
hours, initial estimates are that 22 services per hour will use the route (0800 to
0900 and 1700 to 1800 Monday to Friday) It is likely that by 2021 the weekday
am/pm peak could be up to a maximum of 26 per hour in each direction. There
would be significantly less bus movements in all off peak periods”.

The Development Control Board said:

“The provision of the bus route is expected to reduce bus journey times,
equating to a time saving of 4 minutes for AM peak inbound journeys and 3
minutes for PM peak outbound journeys.

In addition to extended scheduled journey times currently experienced at peak
periods, extended layover times between journeys are planned throughout the
day to provide a robust schedule that enables services to recover from
unpredictable operational delays”.

Lynn Transport Strategy

Hardings Way will underpin the success of the West Lynn Park and Ride,
under consideration in the Lynn Transport Plan. Shuttle buses, using Hardings
Way as the fast route tc town, will encourage drivers to leave their cars
outside the town, avoid the town centre queues and reduce congestion and
emissions.

Hardings Way Bus Lane has a strategic role to play in further reducing traffic
entering Lynn. The aspiration must be to increase the flow of buses and make
Lynn a carbon neutral town.

Planning Application September 2017

However, by a planning application of Sept 2017, the Borough granted itself
planning permission that would place general traffic and and maximum HGV's
on a fifth of Hardings Way, build three access stub roads for 5C houses on
Hardings Way South and move the bus lane north 15m north; and instructed
Norfolk County Council to amend the two Traffic Orders that banned general
traffic on Hardings Way.

There was no highways impact assessment.

The County Council has destroyed the road specification for Hardings Way
and it is uncertain if it was built to withstand maximum weight vehicles that the
traffic orders would permit.

The Traffic Orders allows general traffic and maximum weight HGV's on the
first 125m of the bus lane, even though the feeder road, Wisbech Road, has a
7.5 tonne weight limit.

The Equality Impact Assessment said that disabled people would suffer a
significant detriment.

50



The access for the private firm placing maximum HGV’s on the bus lane, and
the other two accesses, would be paid for by the Borough Council.

There have been 1,400 online and written objections to general traffic on any
part of Hardings Way.

There is a 38 degrees petition.

123 written objections to the Traffic Orders were sent to Norfolk County
Council.

Flood Risk

The Hardings Way South area was flooded in the Great Flood of ‘53, in the
floods of ‘78 and Hardings Way was flooded during the storm surge

Tidal Hazard Mapping for the River Great Ouse shows the site is located in a
high flood risk area, where the mapping identifies inundation to depths of up to
2m in a flooding event, over the development’s lifetime. The Local Plan Task
Group is being approached over concerns regarding the suitability,
sustainability and safety of Hardings Way South as a location for people’s
homes.

Disability and Protected Groups

This Council has just appointed a new Disability Champion for the Borough,
and is committed to understanding, listening and improving life for disabled
residents.

The western pavement along Hardings Way South is a key walking route into
town for disabled people including buggy users, for families with prams and
young children, and for the whole community. It encourages people to leave
their cars at home and walk into town.

Hardings Way is the only safe route into town.

Implementation of the planning permission would allow an unsignalled
crossing in the wide western pavement, and introduce points of conflict with
cars, parked cars and HGV’s in turning manoeuvres, putting disabled buggy
users, cylists and other vulnerable users at risk.

It would affect safety and independent use of the road for those less able to
walk.

People in Buggies do not feel safe using London Road unaided to get into the
town centre, as it has sloping pavements with an uneven surface and several
road accesses that are not safe to cross, as they are not traffic lit and have
inadequate drop kerbs.

51



Hardings Way Buggy Lane in contrast, has a wide smooth pavement on a flat
surface that is easy for buggies to negotiate.

People with disabilities want to lead fulfilling lives and get to town under their
own steam.

The implementation of the traffic orders would affect the independence and
safety of disabled residents and the attractiveness of cycling into town. People
would be deterred from getting into town under the own steam.

Hardings Way links into National Cycle Lane 1.
Hardings Way South is also used by parents to teach children to cycle.

Hardings Way South is part of the safe route to school for children at
Whitefriars Primary.

The former Head of Whitefriars School was promised by the County Council is
2009 that general traffic would never be allowed on the Bus Lane, because of
concerns about poliution near the adjacent school playground.

Hardings Way was built on waste ground that was the traditional walking route
intc town for residents and plavs an important ole in heaithy lifestyles and

H s T PN - A 1) i1 ey g 1gmy b i e b f
improving public health outcomas in the deprived area of South Lynn,

In view of the disruption to the efficient working of the bus fane and to Lynn’s
Transport Strategy, the high flood risk to building in Hardings Way South, and
the impact on older and disabied residents and young families if the Traffic
Orders and planning permissicn were implemented, and in view for the
strategic imperative to reduce traffic from entering the historic town centre:

Council urges Cabinet, in the strongest terms, to review all work planned
to be done on or around Hardings Way, under (but not limited to)
Planning Permission 17/01008/F, in the hope that they will not move the
bus lane north, or introduce any new roads across if, and not allow any
additional types of traffic onto it, or diminish any of its current features
which enable pedestrians, prams and buggies to use it unhindered by
traffic; in order to prevent the detrimental impacts.

(5/19), Submitted by Councillor M de Whalley

1. This council recognises that:

a. Local Government exists to ensure the wellbeing of its
population through its statutory and moral authority across a
wide range of economic and social aspects of local life.

52



b. The human influence on the climate system is unequivocal, and
recent man-made emissions of greenhouse gases are the
highest in history.

c. Recent climate changes have had widespread impacts on
human and natural systems. This and other factors have led to
a crisis in ecology and biodiversity.

d. West Norfolk is already at a high and increasing risk of the
effects of climate change which endangers the population. This
council has the legal and moral responsibility to act both across
its own corporate activities and those wider economic and social
issues over which it has regulatory control and influence.

e. The 2015 Paris Agreement, which the UK has ratified, sets a
temperature target of limiting global heating well below 2°C with
efforts to achieve 1.5°C.

f. “For King's Lynn and West Norfolk to make its fair contribution to
delivering the Paris Agreement's commitment to staying ‘well
below 2°C and pursuing 1.5°C’ global temperature rise, then an
immediate and rapid programme of decarbonisation is needed.”

g. The 2018 Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change report
showed that “impacts are much greater if 1.5°C is exceeded.”

h. The social and economic costs of delayed action far outweigh
those of rapid mitigation and adaptation to the 1.5°C target.

2. For the above reasons the Borough Council of King’s Lynn and West
Norfolk declares a climate and biodiversity emergency and commits to
the following actions:

a. Ensure that every decision made by this council takes into
consideration the impact on climate change and biodiversity as
the top priority.

b. Achieve carbon neutrality by 2030, or earlier, across the
Borough Council’'s own corporate activities.

c. Use all Council regulatory means (such as local plan, transport,
regeneration etc.) to ensure that the relevant aspects of life
across West Norfolk become net zero carbon by 2030, or earlier,

53



across the population to meet the Borough Council’s fair share of
the UK commitment to the Paris Agreement temperature target.*

Not to exceed a Borough population-wide all-time “energy only”
budget of 8 million tonnes of CO2 (or equivalent) emissions, as
calculated recently to meet the Paris Agreement temperature
target.

Prepare a report, within six-months of this motion, outlining how
West Norfolk can sufficiently reduce carbon emissions through
energy and other Council strategies, plans and contracts to
ensure the above commitments are met.

Include a full carbon footprint for the Borough with future
trajectories.

The above report will be overseen by the formation of a Climate
Change and Biodiversity task group which will report to the
appropriate Council body.

Review and performance monitoring of climate change strategy
will take place every six months.

Establish a West Norfolk Climate Change Partnership with key
stakeholders & Government departments to develop new
strategic and policy approaches.

Invite contributions and instigate a wide-ranging programme of
community engagement and awareness within the next six
months.

Lobby Westminster to deliver the legislation and resources

necessary for the required changes.

Provide adequate staff, time and leadership to effect the above.

* Tyndall Centre, Manchester, “Setting Climate Commitments for King's Lynn
and West Norfolk”, October 2019.

6/19 Submitted by Councillor F Bone

This Council notes:-

Hardings Way in South Lynn was built as part of a £5.3 million Government
funded scheme to allow the NORA development to proceed and to help
reduce pollution on London Road

54



When planning permission was granted, in 2009, it was for public transport,
and not general traffic. Prohibition Orders were put in place to prohibit traffic
entering Hardings Way from Wisbech Road.

A senior highways engineer of Norfolk Highways Authority who advised the
Norfolk Casualty Reduction Partnership Board on highways safety issues
wrote to state that Hardings Way was only for pedestrians, cyclists and public
transport and was not safe for any other use.

Therefore, this Council calls on the Cabinet to bring a report to this Council
detailing all aspects of Hardings Way to include, but not exclusively,
implications of a nature that cover:

Legal

Financial

Social

Environmental

Highways Safety

Highways Impact Assessment

This Council instructs the Chief Executive to write informing Norfolk County
Council that this Council will not fund any and all work carried out in
association with Hardings Way until this Council has considered the report
from Cabinet.

Lorraine Gore
Chief Executive

55



i——‘\['.._‘g W ()( o

Borough Council of
Our ref. 17/01008/F . y
Planning Officer: Mrs H Morris Klng S Lynn &
Council Information Centre: 01553 616200 Option 3 West NorfOIk

E-mail: borough.planning@west-norfolk.gov.uk

Borough Council of King’s Lynn And West Norfolk ;F-e'ieh‘i, Tﬂ‘?‘\"z’*pgr} & Geoff Hall

c/o Norfolk County Council el 7t Fant d .
Miss Alisa Magar Hopment Liept Executive Director

Martineau Lane
Norwich Environment and Planning
NR1 2DH | ] x SEP L-);!

7 September 2017 '

Dear Sir / Madam ,

Decision Date: 6 September 2017 el LU
Development:  Construction of three new access roads off the southern end of Hardings Way and relocation of bu

gate
Location: Hardings Way King's Lynn Norfolk
Applicant: Borough Council of King's Lynn And West Norfolk

Town & Country Planning Act 1990

PLEASE FIND ATTACHED A COPY OF YOUR PLANNING PERMISSION FOR THE ABOVE PROPOSED
DEVELOPMENT. HOWEVER, YOU SHOULD READ THE NOTES BELOW AS FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH
CONDITIONS IMPOSED ON THE ATTACHED PLANNING PERMISSION COULD RENDER THE DEVELOPMENT
UNAUTHORISED OR REQUIRE THE SUBMISSION OF A FURTHER FORMAL APPLICATION

1. This planning permission is granted in strict accordance with the approved plans. [t should be noted that;

a) Any variation from the approved plans following commencement of the development may constitute unauthorised
development and may be liable to enforcement action.

b) You or your agent or any other person responsible for implementing this permission should inform the Development
Control Section immediately of any proposed variation from the approved plans and ask to be advised as to the best
method of resolving the matter. This may require the submission of a new formal application.

2. We have a formal process for discharging conditions which involves completing a form or writing to us with sufficient
information to allow us to fully assess the information, and submitting an appropriate fee.

The form can be downloaded from our website at http://www.west-norfolk.gov.uk/Default.aspx?page=24452 or you can
request a form to be sent to you. Although there is a national target of 8 weeks to deal with these requests we will
endeavour to deal with these sooner, particularly the more straightforward requests.

3. This permission is granted subject to conditions and it is the site owner and the person responsible for the
implementation of the development who will be fully responsible for their compliance throughout the development and
beyond.

4. If there is a condition that requires work to be carried out or details to be approved prior to the commencement of the
development, this is called a “condition precedent”. If a condition precedent is not complied with, this may render the
whole of the development unauthorised and you may be liable to enforcement action or need to submit a further formal
application.

5. If this development involves any works of a building or engineering nature, please note that before any such works are
commenced it is the applicant’s responsibility to ensure that, in addition to planning permission, any necessary consent
under the Building Regulations is also obtained. Advice in respect of Building Regulations can be obtained from CNC
Building Control who provide the Building Control service for the Borough of Kings Lynn & West Norfolk. Their telephone

number is 0808 168 5041 or enquiries@cncbuildingcontrol.gov.uk and their website is www.cncbuildingcontrol.gov.uk.

6. If your development results in the need to have a new address then you are advised to do this as soon as the
development commences. The application form and fee schedule is available on our website http://www.west-

norfolk.gov.uk/default.aspx?page=23895. Alternatively, you can email the Address Management Team at

snn@west-norfolk.gov.uk for more information.

Yours faithfully

o e\

Executive Director
Environment and Planning

King’s Court, Chapel Street, King's Lynn, Norfolk PE30 1EX
Tel: (01553) 616200; fax: (01553) 691663
DX 57825 KING'S LYNN

Chief Executive — Ray Harding

www.west-norfolk.gov.uk >0



ENVIRONMENT AND PLANNING West Norfolk

King’s Court, Chape/ Street, King's Lynn, Norfolk PE30 1EX

Tel:
Fax:
DX:
e-mail:

Borough Council of

King’s Lynn &

(01553) 616200

(01553) 616652

57825 KING'S LYNN
borough.planning@west-norfolk.gov.uk

NOTICE OF DECISION - GRANT OF PLANNING PERMISSION

Borough Council of King's Lynn And West Norfolk Reference No: 17/01008/F
¢/o Norfolk County Council

Miss Alisa Magar Application

Martineau Lane Registered: 2 June 2017
Norwich

NR1 2DH Parish: King's Lynn

Details:

Construction of three new access roads off the southern end of Hardings Way and
relocation of bus gate at Hardings Way King's Lynn Norfolk

The Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended)

The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015

Permission is granted for the carrying out of the development referred to above in accordance with the
application and plans submitted subject to compliance with the following conditions:

1.

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date
of this permission.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved
plans: drawing nos. PK6062-HP 1-002C and PK6061-HP1-004.

No works shall commence on the site until such time as detailed plans of the roads, footways,
cycleways, foul and surface water drainage have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. All construction works shall be carried out in accordance with the

approved plans.

No works shall be carried out on roads, footways, cycleways, foul and surface water sewers
otherwise than in accordance with the specifications of the Local Planning Authority.

Prior to the use of the development hereby permitted the vehicular access shall be provided and
thereafter retained at the position shown on the approved plan (drawing no. PK6062-HP1-002C) in
accordance with the appropriate highway specification. Arrangement shali be made for surface
water drainage to be intercepted and disposed of separately so that it does not discharge from or
onto the highway carriageway.

Prior to the commencement of the use hereby permitted a visibility splay shall be provided in full
accordance with the details indicated on the approved plan. The splay shall thereafter be maintained
at all times free from any obstruction exceeding 0.225 metres above the level of the adjacent
highway carriageway.

Prior to the commencement of any works a Construction Traffic Management Plan which shall
include information regarding the secure fencing to be used and retained at all times during
construction to stop any access to Hardings Pits shall be submitted to and approved in writing with
the Local Planning Authority in consultation with Norfolk County Council Highway Authority.

For the duration of the construction period all traffic associated with the construction of the
development will comply with the Construction Traffic Management Plan and use only the
Construction Traffic Access Route and no other local roads unless approved in writing with the Local

Planning Authority.

57

www.west-norfolk.gov.uk



9. Notwithstanding the details indicated on the submitted drawings no works shall commence on site
unless otherwise agreed in writing until a detailed scheme for the off-site highway improvement
works as indicated on drawing number PK6062-HP1-002C and to include information regarding
secure fencing have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in
consultation with the Highway Authority.

10. Prior to the commencement of the use hereby permitted the off-site highway improvement works
referred to in condition 9 shall be completed to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning
Authority.

11. No works shall commence on the site until the Traffic Regulation Order for the amendment to the

bus only route has been secured by the Highway Authority.
The Reasons being:

1. To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990, as amended by Section 51
of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004,

2. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3 To ensure satisfactory development of the site and a satisfactory standard of highway design and
construction.

4, To ensure satisfactory development of the site and to ensure estate roads are constructed to a

standard suitable for adoption as public highway.

5. To ensure satisfactory access into the site and avoid carriage of extraneous material or surface
water from or onto the highway.

6. In the interests of highway safety.

7. (n the interests of maintaining highway efficiency and safety.

8. In the interests of maintaining highway efficiency and safety.

9. To ensure that the highway improvement works are designed to an appropriate standard in the

interest of highway safety and to protect the environment of the local highway corridor.
10. To ensure that the highway network is adequate to cater for the development proposed.

11. In the interests of highway safety.

o A

Executive Director, Environment and Planning
On behalf of the Council
6 September 2017

1. itis an OFFENCE to carry out any works within the Public Highway, which includes a Public Right of
Way, without the permission of the Highway Authority. This development involves work to the public
highway that can only be undertaken within the scope of a Legal Agreement between the Applicant
and the County Council. Please note that it is the Applicant's responsibility to ensure that, in addition
to planning permission, any necessary Agreements under the Highways Act 1980 are also obtained.
Advice on this matter can be obtained from the County Council's Highways Development
Management Group based at County Hall in Norwich.

Public Utility apparatus may be affected by this proposal. Contact the appropriate utility service to
reach agreement on any necessary alterations, which have to be carried out at the expense of the
developer. If required, street furniture will need to be repositioned at the Applicants own expense.

Please note that any conditions that may be attached to this decision notice form an integral part of the

permission. Failure to comply with any conditions could lead to enforcement action or the need to submit a
further formal application.

58



In accordance with the NPPF, in determining this application for planning permission, the Borough Council
has approached it in a positive and proactive way, and where possible has sought solutions to problems to
achieve the aim of approving sustainable development. As such the development hereby approved is

considered to represent sustainable development.

The case officer who dealt with this application was Mrs H Mortis, telephone number 01553 616481,

59



Notes relating to decisions on planning applications:

This permission refers only to that under the Town and Country Planning Acts and does not include
any consent or approval under any other enactment, byelaw order or regulation.

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the local planning authority to refuse permission or
approval for the proposed development, or to grant permission or approval subject to conditions, he
may appeal to The Planning Inspectorate in accordance with Section 78 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990. Appeals must be made within 6 months unless subject to an enforcement notice
(see below). (Appeals must be made on a form which is available from The Planning Inspectorate,
Customer Support Unit, Room 3/15 Eagle Wing, Temple Quay House, 2 The Square, Temple Quay,
Bristol BS1 6PN, telephone 0303 4445000). The Secretary of State has power to allow a longer
period for the giving of a notice of appeal but he will not normally be prepared to exercise this power
unless there are special circumstances which excuse the delay in giving notice of appeal. The
Secretary of State is not required to entertain an appeal if it appears to him that permission for the
proposed development could not have been granted by the local planning authority, or could not
have been so granted otherwise than subject to the conditions imposed by them, having regard to
the statutory requirements (*), to the provisions of the development order, and to any directions
given under the order. He does not in practice refuse to entertain appeals solely because the
decision of the local planning authority is based on a decision given by him.

Appeal time limits where the same development is subject to an enforcement notice

28 days from the date of the refusal or the expiry of the period which the local planning authority
(LPA) had to determine the application, where the enforcement notice is served before the
application is submitted:;

28 days from the date of the refusal or the expiry of the period which the LPA had to determine the
application, where the enforcement notice is served before the decision on the application is
reached or the determination period has expired; or

28 days from the date the enforcement notice is served, where the enforcement notice is served
after the decision or expiry of the period which the LPA has to reach a decision on the application,
unless the effect would be to extend the period beyond the usual time limit for cases not involving an
enforcement notice.

These time limits apply where an enforcement notice has been served no more than two years
before the date of the application or where it is served on or after the date of the application,
regardless of whether an appeal was lodged against the enforcement notice and provided the notice
is not withdrawn prior to the expiry of the time limits outlined above.

If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the local
authority or by the Secretary of State of the Environment, and the owner of the land claims that the
land has become incapable of reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered
capable of reasonably beneficial use by the carrying out of any development which has or would be
permitted, he may serve on the Council or the county district in which the land is situated a purchase
notice requiring that council to purchase his interest in the land in accordance with the provisions of
Part VI of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

In certain circumstances, a claim may be made against the local planning authority for
compensation where permission is refused or granted subject to conditions by the Secretary of State
on appeal or on a reference of the application to him. The circumstances in which such
compensation is payable are set out in Section 114 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

(") The Statutory requirements are those set out in Section 76(6) of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 namely section 70 and 72(1) of the Act.

Time Limits for Aopeals

Householder planning applications against refusal or to remove/amend conditions = 12 weeks
Minor Commercial and Advertisement Consent Appeals = 12 weeks
All other appeals = 6 months

For more information please see website; http:/mww.planningportal.gov.uk/planning/appeals

17/01008/F

60



=4
CNC

Building Control

After Planning comes Building Control

Building Control is a statutory requirement on the vast majority of building projects
(including internal alterations and conversions) irrespective of whether planning permission
has been required or not.

It is the process of ensuring projects are completed in accordance with the building
regulations and exists to ensure that the safety and well-being of any person is not
compromised by changes or work that takes place.

CNC Bunlcfmg Cohtrol ¢an help’in numerous ways, mcludmg

Technical input and pre-submission advice

Guidance on applying for and registering an application
Becoming part of your design team

Ensuring projects are completed timely and to budget, including
providing advice and guidance on related facets such as energy
reports, acoustic issues, air tightness testing and fire strategy.

In essence, CNC will support you through your project from pre-planning and commencement
all the way to project completion and issuing of certification.

For more information or to obtain a quotation, please use one of the following:
Email - quotations@cncbuildingcontrol.gov.uk
Phone — 0808 168 5041

CNC Building control provides the statutory building control functions for the Local Authority areas of Kings Lynn
and West Norfolk, Fenland, South Norfolk, Norwich City, and Broadland.

4 R
{/ Bo.rcug? Council of @ NORWICH g Femaﬂd )\{ ,ﬁ.
{Broadiand ) Kirg's Ly & 1 City Council s South Norfolkl
—~ West Norfolk Fenland District Council cou



5548175 RN SISO T G

49

‘NMTIHOE Ag uonesapisuod Jo} ‘Juawdo[aaapal Joj suodo
1O JaqWINU B pawIojul Uay} sey Yolym ‘sisAjeue ajis B sulejlos Apnis siyl

‘uuA s, Buny ‘Aepp sBuipiel / peoy Uoagsipg Yo Salis om) JO JusLudolanapal
ayy 1oy Apmis Ajjiqisesy e 1no Aued o} (NMIMOE) NIOHON IsaM pue
uuAT s, Buny Jo 1ouno? ybnosog ay) Aq pebebus uaaq aaey juene4 ujdey)

Toponpoa

91, uer 2906

uoISNPO.U|

NMIMO4

uuA s,Buny ‘Aepp sBuipieH 7 peoy Yoagsipm

AdNLS ALNIgISY3d

62



o

s1zorans £

13

sBuiping ainyes; Aepunog
Kemajeb, Jo) Aunpoddoy usa)sam Lo saal) Bulsixg

'S9OUAJSP POOY WO S)YBUS] ING £ SUOZ POO| UIYIM
S1 9)IS 8y} Jey) sajeolpul dew pool Aousby Juswuoliaug ay) :ysiy poold

"Bale UONBAIDSUOD B UILIIM JOU SI 8)IS 8L} :eale UOIJRAIISUOD

/ 4
" 3 ) ~
'8 9IS jo isea-yuou d oY [ENUIpIERI Y ¥ _—-w . _
ayy 0} suoyeys Buidwnd sbeujelp ale alay] "ens sy} Jo ANUIDIA 8y} Ul seb T NMTHOB ) ) sBulfemp fsiols ¢
sulew pue | g ‘sbeuleip MS B Md 191EM SUBL ‘DL)D3J3 SUBW S) aI8L)) =y Eppe =2 \ - ~ .
‘SIU} WOl "S|qe|leAR SpeW Ussq 9ARY BIEP 19SSE 8)is Bunsix] :sadiales | \ .r v -

“uepodul ssa| aq o} Jybnou) ate asayy ybnouye
‘$9)IS BU} UO SQRIYS pue $931) Buipass J|9s JS|[BUS SNOUEA 0S[e S 819y Y
8N Jo Auepunog uiasam sy Buoje saar Bupsixs aie alsy] :buidesspue]

YHOU B} WOy Passa0oe s1 Uyolym ‘g 91IS Uo Jun [euysnpul Bunsixa
By} Unm pajeioosse Buipueispiey jo eale Ue S| 818U 1SHIOM Jeuax

‘d8)s
uo Jun jeuysnput ‘Aa10)s a|buls ‘pasnsip Bulsixe ue s| 819y (w104 Jing - e
7 ey A AES I, as
- -
‘pue| UIBYLIoU Judde(pe SUY) WOoJ) PIsSeIdE 9q : - dll‘llll.l\._.lh

os[e UeD (g a)IS) aUs U1a)sea o] "Aep SBUIPIEH WO S| $5090Y 1§S890Y

*8)noJ sng ay} Jo uolPNsuod ayy Humoljo) aseds
usaih uado se Ya| usasq sey pue NMTHOG Ag PAUMO sI a)Is 8| :asM

fmiois gz

*alls 9} JO }SaM pUB YInos oy} o} ale sBuljiamp
|efjuapisal pue ‘JSea-yuou sy} o) aJe suojess buidwnd sbeuelp ‘Yuou
2y} 0} 81 SHUN [LISNPUI ‘B)IS 3Y) JO Jsam-Upou 8y} 03 s1 sjid s BuipreH

*ypou sy 0} wryj Ajgjewixoldde

S191JU9D UMO ] U] ‘2A)ua7 UMO| ULAT s,Bury 0) YUl SNg MAU B SB pajeasd
sem ABpA s BulpieH se ‘uonoun( mau Ajaane|al e st siy) “Aepp s Buipiey
puUe peoy Yoagsipi Jo uonoun( ayj uo puel jo s|goled om} saidnooo da)Is 8y

EUCH ¥ UofEan | ails
A= R oo bommao |

oL uer /908 _ e
AT
sishjeuy sjiS

wogds undo usmb
- gl 5. Bupsey

NN

NMTAO4

uuAT s,6upy ‘Aepp sBuipleH / peoy UYoadsipa

YHou oy Builiamp juaoefpe
$$9008 3)IS 40) Apunpoddo wioly / 0} Bupjoopsag

AdNLS AlLNigIsv3d



‘eale alis 9|qedo[eAsp Ay} SUILLIBISP (MW SIY} SE ‘Uoles0]

19BX® S]i 2UlWIBIEP 03 pakamns si sbeulelp punoiBiapun Bunsixa ayj Jely
asIApe aMm ‘ssalbord sweyos e pnoys “ejep 1asse Jajepp uelbuy paijddns
s\ tod se ale (Sjusases pajeloosse pue) sunl abeutelp Bunsxs aly

40 UCHED0] U} JRY) PaWNSSE aABY oM ‘Apnls ANiqISES) S1U) JO SISEq 8y} 104

‘palinbal
$3INsesll 92USY|IS34 POOY 8yl PaUIBHSISE 0} JNO PaLIED 84 piNoys
ASAINS S{AS| painsesW pue Y 4 pajielap e ‘ssaiboid awayds e pjnoys

“(speol  syjedjoo) Buysixa o} Jusokelpe “o'1) abueya jans|

B 9]BPOWIWIOIO. 0] LLOOJ JUBIDIYNSUI S| 819Y) 2J8UM Ssaa0E padda)s pajeain
10 ‘sjena] ays ay) dn Buipjing Aq paaalyoe aq UED SiU} ‘s|jaas| pasodoid pue
Bunsixe usamiag 92UBIAHIP W ) B U0 paseq "SjoAd] alis ay) 104 aA)eDIpUl
SI S} pawNsse aq ued )i ‘jeY Ajgeuocseal sI 3)is sY) sy “alis siUl 0] Juadelpe
wg'y - Wiy Uoamiaq 8q 0} peoy YOBGSIAA JO [9AS] S} S8jedlpul a)is
VHON NMIHDE 32 J0 ASAINS S[BAS| BU) JOASMOH “paulIaiap Alojeinooe
9 JoU UBD 3)iS 3y} JO [9A3] By} ‘ASAIns pajlejap B JO Iouasge sy} U]

payoealq
oG 0] 8/oM SEOUBJBP POOY Y] Ji 'Sjoaye abueys sjewo Bulpnjou;

JUBAD UWLIO}S JRBA-00 L Ul | B WO BUISUE SPOOY BSS/ [BIANY JO JOAS] JSBI8I0)
o] Aq popoooXs 9q JOU M WY F JO [9AS] SIYL JBY) 8J0U O} Uo saoh

11 "painbal aie QOV WG} J0 S[9AS] J00P PAUSIUY JeU} Y4 8} Ul S8J0U SI 3

“ayis siU} uo A|dde os[e pjnom JuSLISSISSY YSiy Poold

Buipuodsaliod ay) ul pajou saInseal ay) Jey) sUNSSE 0] djqeuoseal oq
pinom Yl ‘Apnis AJljigises) siy) Jo sesodind auyj 1o} ‘pROY YO9GSIAA UO YInos
8y 0} JusLIdo[oASP (BHUBPISEI YHON NIMMOE o4 Jo Awixold syt 0} ang

k>
2UOZ 3SIy POO| UIYIM S| BlIS aU) Jey) sajeolpul Aouaby Juswuodiaug ay |

Hsy

9, uep 1908

SjuIel)SU0Y) NS

NMTIOgG

uui s.Buny ‘Aepa sbuipieH / peoy Uoagsipn

AdNLS ALINIgISY3d

4

dew jesse Iajemalse Jajep UelBuy

Vi s v
0 = e e 4 (=

puada) dew

CO00L 1 =51 qrG 0¢3d

X us Wkl @ — =
(eeg . T ieds o s Bunmz a0 deipoas @) g 083l
pue m;&ZWC mc_::m_& e} am—\a poc|4 “eale sy 1oj $21d0y (O “awel doe(d 4O 2podised e AUl



seoeds g1
[RIIBUIWOD

seoeds Z-paq ¢
so0RdS G'L - peq g
soeds | -peq |
jeguepisay

TSpiepuEs BubpEd

(19 1un JeIRIBWWOY 9A0GE Siey [eUOHIPPE BUIPNIOUL I "ouLE)
€9 ¥ SIS Y04 SLINN TVILNAQISIY "ou9Z TvLOL

€Y @ 0051

L == =
0, o 0

vid
uonebnsaau| ig
Hoday s jsuodry

swslog $20IAIRS

JeuapIsay
NAATHOE shemyBiy
Buiuueld

° 4 0} slang
SN
g N
/VO
>
O.AO .

¢ s 0 0 0 0

AemajeB, uuoy
JUN [210J3LWOD B
sBuljjemp Aal0)s ¢
JUBWASEd Wi
% abeuesp Buysixg

e

HUM [B104aWUI0D
oA0qe Sjeld ‘oug
[eUONIPpE 9|qISSOd

lenuapisal
Asu03s 7 Bunsixg

|et:

(ubsgg/ / wbsQ) 020 siun

(ybs2£92 / Whsgye) 1D N
|ersJawito)
Buisnoy sjqepioye aq o} 8A0qe JO %0Z ‘SI0N
sbuiemp ou/ el
‘oul €Z10ld  (ubsGl6 / wbsgg) sasnoy paq ¢
‘oug 9Z-pz sjold  {(ybseg/ / wbsg/) sasnoy paq g
‘oug 22-0Z siold (ybsgeg 7 wbsog) sje peq |
[enuspisey
18 uondo ‘g 3lIS
sBujjomp “oug L i1
“ouy 61-8) ‘Z-L Slold  (4bsg16 / wibsgg) sasnoy paq g
'oug  L1-GL ‘Li-6siold  (ubseg/ s wbsQy) sesnoy paq g
"oug #1-21 '8-¢ siold (ybsgeg / wbsog) siey peq |

lenuapisay
Ly uondo ‘v LIS

TONEpoLIWoo3Y jO 9|NPayds

/90

91, uer
s
! (fewiewwiog 3 159Y) 19 % Ly uondo - ueld aNS YoIeNs 9100
P vana |
: NMIMOg

AW LATFOMNE

UuuAT s,6uny ‘Aepp sBuipieH /7 peoy Yoagsip

AdNLS ALlIgISv3d

21015 § 7 BUSIX]

{au0z pjing-ou
WG| Yim) suoyers
Buidwnd ms 2 Md

JUILESES WE
g abeuiesp Buysixg

1odap A=uo)s
9|Buis Bunsixgy

sid s,BuipieH



~
5

SALABHOT KNS SR L SR

ev @ 0051

42

lenuapisal
Aa101s ¢ Bunsixg

uoieBysanu] ajig
yoday s )suoqly
EELIINETS
shemyBiy
Buiuueld

-0} pelang
-

swayog
[enuapIsay
NAMT®OE

* o o 0 0 o

Aemalef, uuoy
sBuljjamp Ast0)s ¢

'sild s BulpieH
1e eoeds uado Jo Ajwixord 9s0[d 0} 2np d)is uo papinoid aoeds usdo oN

TSpIepUEs 99945 USID

|enjuaplsas
Asu0)s Z Bunysixg

o QUIVS)IIS SeUD

soords 7 - paq ¢
saopds G L -paq z
soeds 1 -poq |
[eRuUapISSY /3

Buisnoy sjqepioye 8q 0} SAOGe JO %0Z SION
sBujjromp ouzz 1ejof

“oup 2212 'L sjold  (4bsgle / whbsgg) sashoy peq ¢
‘ous  0Z-8l ‘Pl-6s10ld  (ubsgg/ /wbsp/) sesnoy paq Z
‘oug LL-G1 '8-€ sjold (ybsgeg / wbsqg) syey poq |
lenuapisay

Zv uondo ‘v aLIs

d 31Is

sburping
,8injeg), eoues U]

: ("1s9y psseasou]) zv uondo - Ueld S)IS Y0IeYS 200

{suoz pjing-ou
wg | Yum) suonels
Buidwnd ms 2 M4

: NAMTOG

eweses wg
g abeurelp Busixg

I UuAT s.buny ‘Aepp sbuipieH / peoy Yoadsipn oug s Bupie

AdNLS ALINTIgISY3d



Sickang A

S5U DL TR

12

'V 9IS e papiaoid soeds uado Aue el Jow aq 0} psuinsse
$1 JUsLLISa {enuspisal 8y} Jo} sjuswaiinbal Bujuued aseds uado ay]

sbutjjomp "oug

‘ouz
‘ouz
‘oug

TSpiepuels soeds Ust0

s808dS 91
[RIOIBWILIOD

seoRdS 7 - pog £
$80RAS G'L - Pag 7
80eds | - p8qg |
fenuspisey

TSpIupuEs buppeg

(ubseg/ / wbsoz) 20 suun
(ybse6.L2 / Whspez) 1O uun
jelssswmwo)

buisnoy afqepiojie aq 0} SAOQE JO %07 “SION
21T}

g-Flold  (UbsGLe /wbsgg) sasnoy paq ¢

1-9s10ld  (ybsgg, / wbspy) sasnoy peq g

68 ¢l siod (ubsgeg / wbsQg) sjey paq L

[euapisay

zg uondo ‘g ALIs

UOEPOWIIODDY JO INpayds

AT
: 9\, uep 190G
AT
I (lersewwog fews 3 isey) zg uondo - UE|H SHS YOIONS £00
.- |
: NMTMOg

J uuAT s Bupy ‘Aepp sbuipiey ; peoy :oogm_

AdNLS AlLlNigISv3d

£V ® 00§}
T
woz oL 0
Y4 e swayog
uoneBiisaau) dlS e lenuspisay
NAMIHOE
uoday sjsuoqly
SDOINSG e
sfkemyblH o
Buluueld o

o} pslang

Kemalef, swioy
Hun |eoJawwo)

WSLWISSED WE
9 abeulesp Buysixg

[elosB WO
£s101s 67 Bunsixg

{auoz ppng-ou
WG| Yiwm) suonels
Buidwind pms 8 M4

juswasEs W
» sbeuelp Bunsixy

jodap Aasois
ajbuis Buysixg




W 8IS 1e papinoid aokds usdo Aue IA JoWw aq 0} pawnsse
sl juslua(a |eruapisal ay} Jo} sjuswalinbal Buluued soeds uado sy

THplupuEs s9eag UedD

sooeds 7 - pog &
S80BdS G -Pag T
ooeds | -peq |
repuspisay

SRIEpUEs BUPPE]

BuIsSnoy 8jqepIoyR 8 0} BAOYE JO %02 OION

sBugifomp -ouzy jezol

(ybsg |6 / wbsgg) sesnoy paq ¢
(ybsgg/ 7 wbsz) sesnoy paq Z
(ybsgeg / wbspg) siey pag |
|enuspisay

zg uondo ‘g LIS

‘ouy 21-91 ‘8 '¥101d
ouy 6 'L-G siold
‘oug G1-01 ‘-1 siold

on 3% JO o|npayas

2908

91, uer

(lenuspisey) £g uondo - ue|d IS Y219)S 00

NMIHO8

WY 13310k

uuAk s,buny ‘Aepp sBuipiel / peoy Yoagsipn

AdNLS ALINIGISVY3d

4 S — —

£V @ 0064

02 oL 0

N

Va4 e awsYyog
uoneblsaAul BUS e jenuapisay
NMTHOG

voday s)suoqly e
SOOINIBS e
shemubl{ o
Buiuueld e

o} joslang

Aema)ed, uuo)
sBuljjamp Aaso)s ¢

JusWIsSED W
9 afeurelp b1

[E10J3WWI00
Aauo)s G'Z Bunsixg

sbuiping
2Jmes), aoueiUg

(auoz pjing-ou
WSL Upm) suonels
Butdwnd Mms 2 M4

JuSWases we
g abeulelp Buysixg

jodap Aai0)s
21buis Buisixg




700 RNETEY SEEUELT STy

42

“9YS SIY) Ul PajSaiaul dle S)uBUS)

{eI1213WWO02 JI Ulep3dse o) pabebua sie sjuabe jsobbns am ‘pansind aq
uondo [elosewwod B pnoys ‘paysi|qeiss aq 01 194 si 90eds [B1918WLIOD 10}
puewap sy Juswdojpasp jenUapISaL 10} puBWAP [1aUab B S| 8J15U) ISIUA

“(Jepis 1o $$91dXT 09S9] ) 810JS SOUBIUBAUOD [|EWS B 8¢ PNoD

JUSWIAIS [EIDJOWWIOD YL JUBUI) O] PASEs| 9q JUAWA[S |BIDIBLILIOD BU}
pINOYs alIs ay} ul Jsa1ajul uiia) Buoy e dasy 0} NAMTHOE MO|[e osfe pinom
sy 1di9oal feydes 1sag oYy 9AIB plnom JUSW[S (BIOISWILIOD B Papnjoul

1ey) awsyos [[eeno ue jey) 1sabbns am ‘pasedaid suondo au) utol4

“3[qelA aq pinod

JusLUsie [elIsWWoD B Jey) palsabbns sousuiwold s a)1s sy Juswsale
Jersawiwiod Burkiea e epnjoul 1ey) suondo Jayuny om) pue (sjesodold y alg
sy} Buuoiw) uogido Jenuapisal |le uy “paledaid usaq aney suondo 9aiy )
g9us

‘PAIWO / PaoNpal

2q 0) 32eds uado a)Is-Uo Moj|e pJnod sjid s BulpieH jusdelpe sy Je soeds
uado ay) Jo Anixoid sy ‘sisuueld sy Yiw SUOISSNOSIP aunbal pinom YIS
uo aoeds uado Joj pasu ay] “pasedaid usaq saey suondo [ERUSPISSI OM |
VY aUS

*d 9 ¥ SAUS 10} IN0 paled usaq aney suoldo juswdofensp Jo Jaquinu Y

_ 91, uer /906

i uoISN|oU0D

13N

: NMTIOZ

d uuA s,Bury ‘Aepp sBuipieH / peoy yosgsipy

AdNLS AlLlTIgiIsv3ad

£

69



*’%f) Peols

THE NORFOLK COUNTY COUNCIL (KING’S LYNN, VARIOUS ROADS)
(BUS AND CYCLE LANE) AMENDMENT ORDER 2018

The Norfolk County Council propose to make an Order under the Road Traffic
Regulation Act 1984, the effects of which will be to reduce the extent of U23679
Hardings Way operating as a Bus and Cycle Lane, to allow general traffic to enter
and proceed in the length of road specified in the Schedule below. It is also
proposed to move the existing bus gate 15 metres north to enable access to the
northernmost parcel of land.

The Norfolk County Council (King’s Lynn, Various Roads) (Bus and Cycle Lane)
Order 2015 will be amended by the deletion of the length of road specified in the
Schedule below. The current restrictions on the remaining length of U23679
Hardings Way will remain the same.

A copy of the above Order, a Statement of Reasons for making the Order, and a
plan may be inspected at Norfolk County Council, County Hall, Norwich and at the
offices of King’s Lynn and West Norfolk Borough Council, King’s Court, Chapel
Street, King’s Lynn, PE30 1EX during normal office hours.

Any objections and representations relating to the Order must be made in writing
and must specify the grounds on which they are made. All correspondence for
these proposals must be received at nplaw, Norfolk County Council, County Hall,
Martineau Lane, Norwich, NR1 2DH, marked for the attention of Miss J Batten by
29" May 2018. They may also be emailed to trafficorders@norfolk.gov.uk.

The Officer dealing with the public enquiries concerning these proposals is Ms A
Magar; telephone 01603 306473.
SCHEDULE
In the Borough of King’s Lynn

U23679 Hardings Way From its junction with the C8 Wisbech Road for a

distance of 125 metres northwards

DATED this 4" day of May 2018

\ Ty
j/‘i«ﬁ[w\ l//{fw)(}(,ma/

Abdus Choudhury
Practice Director

County Hall,
Martineau Lane,
Norwich. NR1 2DH
Note: Information you send to the Council will be used for any purpose connected
with the making or confirming of this Order and will be held as long as reasonably
necessary for those purposes. It may also be released to others in response to
freedom of information requests.

JLB/ 57432 (King's Lynn Notice)18

70



Rpoed e

THE NORFOLK COUNTY COUNCIL (KING’S LYNN)
(PROHIBITION OF RIGHT AND LEFT TURNS) AMENDMENT ORDER 2019

The Norfolk County Council propose to make the above Order under the Road
Traffic Regulation Act 1984, the effect of which will be to remove the turn
restrictions, to allow vehicles:

1) proceeding along C8 Wisbech Road to make a right turn into the U23679
Hardings Way; and

2) proceeding along C8 Wisbech Road to make a left turn into the U23679
Hardings Way;

to facilitate access to new developments.

The Norfolk County Council (King’s Lynn, Bawsey, Grimston, South Wootton,
Castle Rising and Sandringham) (Prohibition of Right, Left and ‘U’ Turns) Order
2014 will be amended by the deletion of turns 1) and 2). This Amendment will hot
permit traffic other than buses and authorised vehicles to proceed beyond the bus
gate on Hardings Way.

This Order is associated with the following order; The Norfolk County Council
(King’s Lynn, Various Roads) (Bus and Cycle Lane) Amendment Order 2018,
which was advertised on 18" May 2018.

A copy of the above Order, the Statement of Reasons for making the Order and a
plan may be inspected at Norfolk County Council, County Hall, Norwich and at the
offices of King’s Lynn and West Norfolk Borough Council, King’s Court, Chapel
Street, King’s Lynn, PE30 1EX during normal office hours.

Any objections and representations relating to the Order must be made in writing
and must specify the grounds on which they are made. All correspondence for
these proposals must be received at nplaw, Norfolk County Council, County Hall,
Martineau Lane, Norwich, NR1 2DH, marked for the attention of Miss J Batten by
2 April 2019. They may also be emailed to trafficorders@norfolk.gov.uk.

The Officer dealing with the public enquiries concerning these proposals is Kurt
Booth telephone 0344 800 8020.

DATED this 8" day of March 2019

o ]
fa 1
! i

[
5 : i@

Sy i fAdr, LAty
MG LA A ,,r‘(;{,/«(w{qﬁr{,’/

Abdus Choudhury
Practice Director

County Hall,
Martineau Lane,
Norwich. NR1 2DH
Note: Information you send to the Council will be used for any purpose connected
with the making or confirming of this Order and will be held as long as reasonably
necessary for those purposes. It may also be released to others in response to
freedom of information requests.

JLB/ 57432 (King’s Lynn Notice)19 71



THE NORFOLK COUNTY COUNCIL
(KING’S LYNN, HARDINGS WAY AND WISBECH ROAD)
(PROHIBITION OF RIGHT. LEFT AND ‘U’ TURNS) ORDER 2011

The Norfolk County Council, in exercise of their powers under Sections 1(1), 2(1), 2(2) and
122 and Part Il of Schedule 9 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (hereinafter
referred to as “the Act’} and of all other enabling powers, and after consultation with the
Chief Officer of Police in accordance with Part 11l of Schedule 9 to the Act, hereby make
the following Order:-

1.

in this Order:

‘bus” has the same meaning as in Section 22 of the Traffic Signs Regulations and
General Directions 2002”

“public service vehicle” has the same meaning as in Section 1 of the Public
Passenger Vehicles Act 1981; (not taxis)

“local service” has the same meaning as in Section 2 of the Transport Act 1985.
(does not include school vehicles);

‘pedal cycle” has the same meaning as in s11 of Schedule 4 to The Local
Authorities” Traffic Orders (Procedure)(England and Wales) Regulations 1996,

Save as provided in Article 7 of this Order no person shall, except upon the
direction of a traffic warden or a police constable in uniform, cause any vehicle
proceeding along the westbound carriageway of the C8 Wisbech Road to make a
right tumn into the north-bound carriageway of Hardings Way.

Save as provided in Article 7 of this Order no person shall, except upon the
direction of a traffic warden or a police constable in uniform, cause any vehicle
proceeding along the eastbound carriageway of the C8 Wisbech Road to make a
left turn into the northbound carriageway of Hardings Way.

Save as provided in Article 7 of this Order no person shail, except upon the
direction of a traffic warden or a police constable in uniform, cause any vehicle
proceeding along the westbound carriageway of the C8 Wisbech Road to make a
‘U’ turn into the eastbound carriageway of the C8 Wisbech Road at its junction with
Hardings Way.

Save as provided in Article 7 of this Order no person shall, except upon the
direction of a traffic warden or a police constable in uniform, cause any vehicle
proceeding along the eastbound carriageway of the C8 Wisbech Road to make a
‘U’ turn into the westbound carriageway of the C8 Wisbech Road at its junction with
Hardings Way.

Save as provided in Article 7 of this Order no person shall, except upon the
direction of a traffic warden or a police constable in uniform, cause any vehicle
proceeding along the northbound carriageway of the new access road to the south
of Hardings Way at its junction with the C8 Wisbech Road to make a ‘U’ turn into
the southbound carriageway of that new access road.

72



Nothing in Articles 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 of this Order shall apply so as to prevent any
person from causing a vehicle to proceed along the lengths of road specified in that
Article if the vehicle being used is:

()
(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)
(f)

for fire brigade, police or ambulance purposes;

in the service of a local authority or water authority in pursuance of statutory
powers or duties;

in connection with the maintenance, improvement or reconstruction of that
length of road or the laying, erection, alteration or repair in or adjacent to that
length of road of any sewer, water, flood defence, sluice control, or gas or
electricity apparatus or of any telecommunications apparatus as defined in
the Telecommunications Act 1984;

authorised by the Harding’s Pits Community Association Ltd and/or its
nominated contractors to do so for grounds maintenance.

a bus, being a public passenger vehicle being used as part of a local service;

is a pedal cycle.

This Order shall come into operation on the 27" day of May 2011, and may be cited
as the Norfolk County Council (King’s Lynn, Wisbech Road and Hardings Way)
(Prohibition of Right, Left and ‘U’ Turns) Order 2011,

Insofar as any provision of this Order conflicts with any provision of any previous
Order relating to the lengths of road specified in Articles 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 of this
Order, that provision of this Order shall prevail.

Dated this 23" day of May 2011

THE COMMON SEAL of
THE NORFOLK COUNTY
COUNCIL was hereunte

affixed in the presence of:-

e TR :‘-Fkﬁbkk‘"‘i«‘&.-"{\;;’fg

E
i

e S S Tt i O

Head of Law 20s2b

LPISMC/King stynnporiutums

73



Bppendin (o

o0
¢ Department for

g .
o, COmmunitice Transport

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE FUND — ROUND TWO
EXPRESSION OF INTEREST FORM

Project Name: King’s Lynn South Transport Major

Local Authority Area: King’s Lynn & West Norfolk Borough Coungil
Growth Area/Growth Point: King’s Lynn

Project Location: King’s Lynn Town Centre and South Lynn

LA Project Promoter: M. Jackson

Lead Contact

Name: Kevin Ward
Tel: 01603 638073
E-mail: kevin.ward@norfolk.gov.uk

Please attach all relevant supporting documentation when submitting your questionnaire,
making sure that the project’'s name (and where applicable, the question number that the

information refers to) is clearly referenced on each additional sheet.

Once you have completed this Expression of Interest form it should be e-mailed to
both cif2@dft.gsi.gov.uk and cifZ@communities.gsi.gov.uk

Please also copy it to your Government Office contact and ensure your Regional
Assembly/Regional Development Agency — or for London boroughs, Transport for London

— are aware of your submission.

The deadline for submission is 21 April 2008.

74




NOTES

We recognise that in some cases residential development may be directly dependent
upon implementing the proposed transport investment, €.9. because of lack of access or
 because of planning constraints arising from an expectation that the transport network
will be severely over capacity during morning and evening peak periods. In otherr éésés
the development may occur anyway, but the transport proposal would contribute to the
sustainability of a new development through reducing or eliminating the impact on other

transport users, or minimising other adverse impacts such as on local air quality.

It is currently anticipated that value for money appraisal of each shortlisted proposal will

be conducted in two parts, as follows:

Part 1: For trips arising from planned residential development that is fully
dependent upon part or all of a proposed scheme (ie where the development could
not go ahead without the scheme): an assessment will be made of the impact the
additional trips associated with that development have on existing users on the transport

network, as well as the other benefits and costs arising from the new development.

Part 2: For trips arising either from planned residential development that is not
fully dependent on the scheme (ie where the scheme mitigates the effects that the
new housing development would have on the transport network), or from dwellings
that already exist: a standard benefit/cost ratio consistent with webtag methodology will
nment-related traffic is cansidered in both the do-minimum
(ie assuming a situation without the transport investment) and the do-something (with the

investment) scenario.

We would envisage that most schemes will involve a combination of these two parts, such
that a combined appraisal of the non-dependent and dependent development elements

will be made. Note that all schemes will require a part 2 assessment.

Sections 1 and 2 of the following questionnaire distinguish between these two parts of the

assessment.

75 2



SECTION 1: KEY INFORMATION

Q1.1 Please provide a brief description of your scheme, outlining:

i) The key issues/problems it addresses

With origins dating back to the 121 century, King's Lynn is a bustling market town with
three weekly markets and is the economic centre for a large area of West Norfolk.
King's Lynn’s historic past is well preserved with many churches, guildhalls and fine
houses forming a considerable part of the town centre. Situated on the bank of the river
Great Ouse, King's Lynn still maintains a thriving maritime scene with both fishing boats
and much larger vessels frequenting the port. The Boal Quay area of King’s Lynn is
enjoying a renaissance, with regeneration and redevelopment bringing new life to this
part of town.

A £250 million initiative to regenerate the King's Lynn area has been implemented and
will include a South Lynn Millennium Community, a business park, regeneration of the
waterfront area, improved community facilities, new commercial developments, new
schools and a relocation of the College of West Anglia. A significant part of this is
formed by the Nar Ouse Regeneration Area (NORA). NORA has been identified as a
Millennium Community and is a partnership between King's Lynn and West Norfolk
Borough Council, English Partnerships, East of England Development Agency, the
Environment Agency, Norfolk County Council and developers Morston Assets.

The King’s Lynn area has a requirement for growth totalling 7,000 new homes. The
South Lynn area will incorporate a total of 2,250 homes with the LDF likely to identify
further growth requirements in the immediate area. To date, NORA has created 450
homes out of a possible 900. The full potential of the development is currently restricted
by transport issues, with a cap set at 450 homes due to capacity issues at several key
junctions in the area. With key junctions at capacity, and town centre air quality issues,
an integrated and sustainable package of transport schemes must be implemented in
King's Lynn to create a transport infrastructure that will support and benefit the 7,000
homes planned for the area.

The masterplans for the Waterfront Regeneration Area and Nar Quse Regeneration Area
identify that 1,200 direct and indirect jobs will be facilitated as result of the
comprehensive redevelopment of the sites. The scheme identified will enable
sustainable links to the residential and employment areas. The wider economic benefit of
the scheme will facilitate the opening of additional employment land and redevelopment
of vacant industrial sites which will provide approximately 1,500 FTEs.

King’s Lynn town centre suffers from severe traffic congestion during the peak periods,
particularly at the Southgates roundabout where traffic from the East (Hardwick Road),
West (Wisbech Road) and South (Nar Ouse Way) directions meet with traffic travelling
out of town on London Road. The town centre gyratory system often reaches gridlock
and currently creates significant extra mileage for all bus services travelling to and from
the bus station. This additional mileage for all vehicles in the town centre has created air
quality issues and an Air Quality Management Area has been established. Transport
links around King’s Lynn are poor with the A47 intersections at capacity, creating
difficulties for commuters and businesses. This is further compounded by summer
tourist traffic travelling to the seaside resorts such as Hunstanton, Sandringham and the
North Norfolk Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty.

76




The scheme that we are submitting will enable the removal of the cap on the NORA
development and will allow the creation of a further 450 homes plus a further 1,350
homes in the surrounding areas. This will be achieved by significantly improving the
public transport network to and from South Lynn and within the town centre itself.
Improved facilities for walking and cycling will encourage modal shift and provide an

~opportunity for formalised schemes such as Safer Routes To School. The current
Southgates roundabout will be redesigned to improve traffic flow and improve journey ~ -
times.

e A new bus, cycle and pedestrian lane will be built through the NORA development
providing a quicker, safer and more pleasant route from South Lynn to the town
centre. This lane will link new homes to shopping, leisure and employment
opportunities. It will also improve public transport journey times and reliability.

o Town centre bus priority lanes will be put in place on and around the gyratory
system to allow buses quicker and easier access to the bus station. This will reduce
the overall mileage covered by buses entering and exiting the bus station and will
subsequently improve the town centre air quality.

« Cycling facilities will be improved with a total of 5 schemes. Pelican crossings will
be upgraded to puffin, designated cycle lanes will be put in place and links to the
National Cycle Network route will be generated.

e Southgates roundabout will become a signal controlled junction with a bypass lane
for traffic travelling from Wisbech Road to Nar Ouse Way. Traffic flow throughout the
King’s Lynn area will benefit with a significant improvement in journey time variability
for all traffic.

o Key signalled junctions will be upgraded to provide Selective Vehicle Detection
(SVD) to allow buses to pass with a minimum wait. SVD improves bus journey times
without creating significant disbenefits for other road users.

I

ii) The main stages of the project’s delivery plan:

1) Implement town centre bus priority measures
2) Implement cycling schemes

3) Install SVD at key signalled junctions

4) Southgates Roundabout/Junction

5) NORA bus lane

L i

iii) Estimated start and delivery date for the project (with phasing dates where
appropriate):

Allowing for planning consent:
Phase 1 works commence 03/09 for items 1, 2 and 3
| Phase 2 works commence 06/09 for items 4 and 5

77



Delivery for items 1, 2 and 3 by 05/10
Delivery for items 4 and 5 by 03/11

Please attach any maps or plans of the project with your Expression of Interest.

Q1.2 Where relevant, is this scheme supported by the Local Delivery
Vehicle or Growth Point Partnership?

i) Yes v
ii) No
iii) N/A

Please support your answer

The overall strategic ownership of the Growth Point Programme of Development is with
the West Norfolk Partnership, which is the Local Strategic partnership for the Borough
Council area.

The co ordination of the implementation of the Programme of Development is with the
King’s Lynn Urban Development Board, which includes representation from Borough
Council of King's Lynn and West Norfolk, Norfolk County Council, East of England
Development Agency, English Heritage, and Norfolk Chamber of Commerce along with
invited voluntary and private sector representatives.

Q1.3 Costing

i) Please provide estimates of the scheme’s outturn costs, £m

2008/09 2009/10 2010/11
Total Scheme Cost 0.5 1.5 3.33
Developer Contribution To be agreed as part of the planning process on the

basis that Norfolk County Council operates a Standard
Transport Charge which pools funds in this area for use
in delivering the King's Lynn Area Transport Strategy.
Norfolk County Council aim to introduce this by

2009/10.
Other Contributions — please
identify
CIF2 Funding required 0.5 1.5 3.33

Total 5,330,000
ii) If revenue funding is needed, please outline the amount that is required and the
source of the revenue funding (NB CIF2 funding is not available for revenye funding)

| The County Council as part of its Local Transport Plan Smarter Travel Choices Strategy J

5
78



implements behavioural change initiatives and marketing campaigns that further develop,
support and sustain the Council's programme of Local Transport Plan schemes.

If this bid is successful then the project will be supported by behavioural change initiatives
and marketing campaigns funded as part of the County Council's Smarter Travel Choice

interventions.

iii) What is the status of other funding streams needed for the project?

i) Secured
ii) Identified but not secured |V Growth Point Status
iii) Not yet identified Developer

Contributions

iv) N/A — not needed SR

iv) Where relevant, please provide details of funding (total funding required,
sources, status) for the post 2011 period

Not required

v) Please provide information about the base for the cost esiimates (eg based on
Q3 2007 prices), allowance for risk (QRA or contingency) and assumptions about

inflation

Cost estimates for all schemes are based on previous studies undertaken and further
detailed studies would be required to confirm an exact cost per scheme. Cost are based

on current rates.

SECTION 2: STRATEGIC FiT

Q2.1 s this scheme included in and consistent with your Growth
Area/Growth Point Programme of Development? (NB For Eco-towns and
successful New Growth Points we would expect any bids to support the Eco-
town/Growth Point application and any emerging Programme of
Development)

i) Yes v
ii) No
iii) N/A

Please support your answer

79 6




The scheme forms an integral part of the three top priorities identified in the Programme
of Development as submitted to DCLG September 2007.
Priority 1 — Nar Ouse Regeneration Area Housing — Traffic Mitigation
Priority 2 — Waterfront regeneration Scheme, Boal Quay
Priority 3 — Implementation of the proposals identified in the King's Lynn Area
Transportation and Land Use Strategy

Q2.2 Supporting Development'

i) How many homes does the project support?

The scheme directly supports 900 new homes but also will support the provision of some
1,350 extra homes on previously developed land in this part of King’s Lynn. With
improvements at Southgates roundabout and in the town centre, the impact of the
scheme will improve traffic flow throughout the King’s Lynn area as a whole, and will
directly and indirectly benefit all 7,000 homes planned for the area.

|

if) Are any of the homes stated in Qi) fully dependent upon part or all of the
proposed scheme? (eg because of lack of access or because of planning constraints
arising from an expectation that the transport network will be severely over capacity
during morning and evening peak periods)

If so please complete the following box outlining the number and type of homes
dependent on the schemes and briefly state the reasons why the development is
dependent upon the proposed transport scheme.

Please provide as specific and accurate as numbers as possible.

| Additional dwellings

| 1,800 (all on PDL)

|

Previously Developed Land Total Derelict Currently in | Vacant

(PDL) use

Hectares developed 30ha 20ha 10ha

Non PDL Total Urban Urban Infill | New

Extension Settlement

Hectares Developed

Dwelling Size 3+ Bedrooms 2 Bedrooms 1 Bedroom

Number of dwellings Not known at Not known at Not known at
this time this time this time

Number of “affordable” 30% target

dwellings (as recognised by

the local planning body)

' For guidance and definitions, please refer to National Land Use Database
(http://www.nlud.org.uk/draft one/land use classfland use class index.htm) and Planning Policy

Statement 3 (_http://www.communities.oov.uk/oublications/olanninqanddbuildinq/ops3housinq )

80



Reason(s) for dependency

This bid will provide valuable funding to deliver a scheme that will release the cap set at
450 homes within NORA. This cap is linked to capacity at key junctions and releasing
this requires traffic mitigation measures to be in place. This would allow an extra 450
homes on this brownfield site and will promote further regeneration throughout the South
Lynn area. A further 1,350 homes are planned for development in the immediate locality

and will benefit from the improved links created by the scheme.
The wider King’s Lynn area will also benefit from the scheme, with town centre
improvements providing cleaner air and quicker public transport journeys to town for all
residents and visitors.
The Local Transport Plan includes a number of investments in transport and is subject to
a Member approved programme of delivery until 2011. The capital cost of this scheme is
such that it is not possible to fund it from the LTP integrated transport budget. Diverting
resources from the LTP would prevent the implementation of other transport schemes
that are pivotal in encouraging a shift to more sustainable modes. The CIF funding will
allow more immediate action to take place without impacting on the overall plan and
targets set for Norfolk. This impetus will also assist the attainment of housing targets and
increasing employment opportunities in the area through a programme of regeneration.

iii) Does the scheme support any other types of development (community,
commercial etc)?

i) Yes v
ii) No

If so, please provide details of the developments and whether they are fully
dependent upon part, or all, of the proposed scheme

Directly Dependent

- New Campus for the College of West Anglia

- Anglia Ruskin University Campus

- King’s Lynn Enterprise Centre and Live/work Units

_ Waterfront Regeneration Scheme — Commercial Development and Marina

Partly Dependent

- Hardwick Industrial Estate Extension

- Redevelopment of the former Campbell’s factory site

- King’s Lynn Town Centre Retalil Expansion

- Provision of community facilities, new primary school and health facilities associated
with the Millennium Community

All the above developments are identified in the Growth Point Programme of
Development

iv) Please provide additional details of economic, social and environmental impacts
of new development, residential or otherwise, that is fully dependent on the
scheme (eg wider economic benefits, environmental costs).

81 8




Improvements to the air quality in Air Quality Management Area covering Railway Road,

Austin Street, Blackfriars, St James Road and London Road in King's Lynn.

College relocation offers an opportunit
infrastructure to be built-in to the devel

issues to be considered prior to construction.

y for travel planning and sustainable transport

opment and for an holistic approach to transport

SECTION 3: TRIP DEMAND & JOURNEY RELIABILITY

Guidance: Please provide details of sources of evidence, including any
modelling and economic appraisals (such as BCR), used to inform your

responses.

Questions 3.1 and 3.2 relate to the “do-minimum”
and forecast conditions on the scheme’s location

proposed scheme. Note that these questions should be completed for all

proposals.

Q3.1 Disregarding any effects of the proposed scheme, excluding any

trips from developments which could not go ahead without the

scheme, but including any trips from planned developments which
could go ahead without the scheme, please detail:

scenario, that is to say existing
disregarding the effects of the

i) Levels of flows on immediate links and/or junctions with queues and delays

An up to date traffic model is currently being developed and further information for a
detailed application will be available in the forthcoming months.

Using data from the current model, traffic flows and counts at Southgates roundabout are

shown below:

Observed Link Counts approaching Southgate

Island
Description Direction AM (8.00-9.00) PM (17.00-18.00)
Car LGV | HGV Car LGV HGV
A148 Out South Gates IN 336 50 7 513 36 7
B1144 Vancouver Avenue IN 433 104 48 1123 99 28
A149 Hardwick Road IN 1115 138 83 736 89 18
A148 IN 336 46 23 257 64 23
A148 Wisbech Road IN 425 47 21 296 56 16
Travel Time (including queue time) to Southgate Island
AM (8.00- PM (17.00-
From To 9.00) 18.00)
hh:mm:ss hh:mm:ss
Southgate (AL ..
A47 Saddlebow Interchange Island 00:05:21 00:02:34
Southgate ‘- ‘A4
A148 London Rd/Milfleet island 00:0951® 00:04.23
Clenchwarton Rd/Wisbech Rd Southgate 00:03:55 00:02:10

82




] Island
A148 Gaywood Rd/B1144 Tennyson Avenue Iss?;rtlzgate 00:05:19 00:04:05
A149 Hardwick Rd/Scania Way i?;,:zgate 00:02:22 00:02:21
A148 London Rd/Milfleet ISS?:rt\Egate 00:01:21 00:02:15
- H-A47-saddlebow Interchange -+ —— - i?:;zgatj | 00:04:25 - 00:02:10
A148 London Rd/Milfleet Southgate 00:01:18 00:02:25

Recent anecdotal evidence suggests that delays can be more significant than is
suggested by this data. In the King’s Lynn Area Transport Strategy public consultation
almost 80% of respondents rated traffic congestion as a severe or very severe problem

(full report attached).

ii) Comparable data for any other main problem junctions or links which are
relevant though not necessarily immediately adjacent to the proposal

An up to date traffic model is currently being developed and further information for a
detailed application will be available in the forthcoming months.
Using data from the current model, traffic flows and counts at Hardwick roundabout are
shown below:
Observed Link Counts at Hardwick Roundabout
Description Direction AM (8.00-9.00) PM (17.00-18.00)
Car LGV | HGV Car LGV HGV
A149 Hardwick Road B 407 148 59 1577 143 37
A47 1B 944 114 66 641 83 44
Beveridge Way B 59 99 40 322 39 14
A10 West Winch Road 1B 847 126 112 679 130 69
Constitution Hill B 586 119 86 336 64 43
\AMQ Queen Elizabeth Way | 1B 1084 153 91 779 96 49
Description Direction AM (8.00-9.00) PM (17.00-18.00)
Car | LGV |HGV | Car LGV HGV
A149 Hardwick Road 0B 1737 202 73 756 97 37
A47 OB 150 64 77 327 55 50
Beveridge Way OB 301 96 43 68 21 12
A10 West Winch Road OB 496 174 111 1177 132 55
Constitution Hill OB 510 96 81 957 97 56
A149 Queen Elizabeth Way | OB 733 128 69 1049 153 47

iii) Likely growth and effect on delays over the next ten years

This scheme forms the backbone of improved transport links from the South to King's
Lynn town centre. The scheme links new housing and employment areas to the town
centre via leisure and recreational facilities and tourist attractions.

There is a requirement for a growth of 7,000 houses over the next ten years. This would

increase the size of the congested area and lead to an increase in journey time and a
reduction in journey time reliability. The AQMA would grow considerably as some areas

83

10



are already approaching the tipping point.

This growth could not be delivered without the relevant mitigation measures. This scheme
is @ major contributor to the mitigation further development would require and targets the
most congested and polluted areas whilst providing a platform for future public transport
and other measures. The emphasis that the scheme places on public transport, walking
and cycling will increase the number of journeys made by these modes, improving air

quality, easing traffic flows and having an impact on related issues such as health and
social inclusion.

Q3.2 Please outline the quality of public transport in the area,
including current provision, quality of service and usage

King’'s Lynn enjoys a high standard of public transport with two major operators of bus
services; Norfolk Green and First Eastern Counties. The maijor corridors in and out of
King's Lynn are well served with daytime frequencies creating 18 buses per hour on
London Road and 38 buses per hour on Gaywood Road. Services to most destinations
throughout West Norfolk operate a minimum hourly frequency, although evening and
Sunday services are less frequent due to lack of demand.

Investment in vehicles has been high and the overall fleet profile is modern and
comfortable. Services have been well marketed and information relating to timetables
and fares is widely available throughout the West Norfolk area.

King’s Lynn bus station is currently being redesigned with consultants due to submit an
initial report due by June 2008. The Masterplan will take these proposals into account.

Bus usage is growing in King’s Lynn. A report from Norfolk Green shows an increase in
the number of journeys from 1,700 passengers a day in 2005 to 1,900 at present.
Particular growth has been seen on ‘out of town’ journeys which has led to a 45%
increase in departures during a typical daytime hour time slot.

However, the increasing traffic congestion is impacting on the efficiency of the bus
services and increasing journey times and journey time variability.

The improved bus priority measures delivered as part of this scheme are likely to trigger
greater investment by operators in to the standard of vehicles offered. This is likely to
reduce the overall age profile of the bus fleet serving King's Lynn and increase the
number of engines that offer a minimum of Euro |l compatibility

Question 3.3 relates to trips arising either from development that is planned but not
fully dependent on the proposed transport scheme, or from dwellings that already
exist. Note that this question should be completed for all proposals.

Q3.3 Please give a brief description of the main expected
consequences, over the next 10 years, of the proposed transport
scheme in terms of type (distance, time of day, etc) and location of
journey time savings and improvements in journey time reliability.

The proposed scheme will significantly improve the reliability of public transport and
increase the overall attractiveness of walking and cycling in King’s Lynn.
Detailed studies of town centre bus priority measures will yield the following time benefits:

11
84




Inbound bus lane on Littleport Street, 13 seconds am peak and 23 seconds pm peak
Contra flow bus lane on Railway Road, 35-40 seconds am peak and 27-59 seconds pm
peak. These schemes may cause a slight disbenefit for other road users during the am
peak estimated at between 1 and 5 seconds but a 1 to 6 second benefit in the pm peak.

Bus priority measures will benefit all local services, with services from the East of Lynn
benefiting from the revised layout of the gyratory system. Connections to the rest of the

UK will also benefit from the measures with National Express routes enjoying a less
congested route into town.

Travel Plans in the area are targeting a 20% modal share for walking and cycling. The
provision of safer and more pleasant environments for these activities may generate even
further modal shift amongst these groups.

Detailed studies of other measures have yet to be completed but Southgates roundabout
improvements will generate substantial improvements in journey time variability for all
vehicles accessing King's Lynn from the South or West. Itis envisaged that this will
include significant time savings for freight and logistics services making deliveries to the

town.

Questions 3.4 and 3.5 relate to trips arising from development that is fully
dependent upon the proposed scheme being implemented. If this does not apply
to your scheme, please move on to section 4.

Q3.4 Please state the estimated level of new trips arising from the
development, in terms of both private vehicles and public transport,
providing detail concerning type of trips (distance, time of day, etc)

where possible.

NORA

The Transport Assessment prepared by Scott Wilson in 2005 for the Nar-Ouse
Regeneration Area (NORA), which supported the current outline planning permission,
using agreed trip rates, indicates the following peak hour vehicular trip generations, based

on 874 dwellings and 85140 sq m of commercial development:

AM Peak — 922 trips
PM Peak — 935 trips

Concerns were expressed by the Highways Agency and Norfolk County Council that this
amount of traffic could not be accommodated on the local highway network, with
particular problems being anticipated at the South Gates roundabout. Consequently, the
amount of development on the NORA site was limited to 426 dwellings and 59190 sq m of
commercial development; unless it can be shown, through monitoring, that the traffic
generated by the development did not exceed the following cap figures:

AM Peak — 906 trips
PM Peak — 800 trips

85 12




Even this amount of generation will exacerbate the existing congestion at South Gates

roundabout, but these figures related to a previous consent on the site and were therefore
deemed acceptable.

Since the 2005 TA was prepared, the planned development on NORA now includes a
new and expanded College of West Anglia (COWA), in addition to the previously
proposed 874 dwellings and significant commercial floorspace.

The proposed college site occupies land that was previously allocated for one area of
commercial development, and is forecast to generate significantly larger traffic volumes
than was anticipated for this part of the site in the 2005 TA. The total traffic generation of
NORA, including the expanded COWA site, is forecast to be:

AM Peak ~ 1391 trips
PM Peak — 1066 trips

The existing college site, which lies to the north of the South Gates roundabout is to be
developed for housing and therefore there will be a net overall increase in traffic due to
the relocation of COWA.

A comparison of these revised generations with the allowable traffic cap shows the
following increase over the permitted level:

AM Peak — 485 trips
PM Peak — 266 trips

This additional traffic will therefore cause further significant deterioration in conditions at
South Gates and on the surrounding road network.

To date, analysis has focussed on vehicular trips and no forecasts have been prepared
for trips by other modes. While there is considerable scope to achieve mode transfer to
walk, cycle and public transport, with King’s Lynn being a relatively compact and flat town,
the existing level of congestion means that it is difficult to provide significant advantage to
bus trips from NORA to the town centre: and the existing South Gates roundabout
provides a poor and relatively unsafe environment for pedestrians and cyclists at this key
point. Investment in the bus link and the South Gates highway improvement will therefore
relieve congestion and also make the alternative modes more attractive.

Boal Quay

To be determined by ongoing modelling work

Q3.5 Accounting for additional trips arising from the development,
what will be the net effect of the new scheme on existing/projected
journey times for existing users of the transport network, over the next
ten years? Will the situation identified in Q3.1 be alleviated or get

13
86




worse?

As in 3.3 the measures will benefit existing users of buses, walking and cycling facilities.
Improvements at Southgates will provide a reliable hub for all car journeys from NORA to
town and to the out of town shopping and employment areas at Hardwick. The improved
traffic flow is likely to have a positive impact on air quality in the area.

SECTION 4: SAFETY, SUSTAINABILITY AND ACCESSIBILITY?

Q4.1 Does the scheme improve public access to key services (eg
employment, education, leisure facilities, healthcare etc) and/or tackle

severance?

i) Yes v
ii) No

If yes, please support your answer

The scheme will create a new public transport, pedestrian and cycleway link between the

South Lynn Millennium Community and the town centre with its employment, retail,

leisure and community facilities.

The scheme will enable improved and enhanced employment, education, healthcare and

community facilities to be provided for not only the new housing areas but also for existing

residents in the adjoining neighbourhoods, wider town and in the case of the further and
higher educational facilities in the King’s Lynn sub region.

Q4.2 Will the scheme improve road safety (eg reduce road accidents,
improve quality of pedestrian infrastructure)?

i) Yes v
ii) No

If yes, please support your answer

The upgraded crossings and segregated bus, cycle and pedestrian routes will increase
the safety for these journeys. Creating links to the national cycle route network will
provide a joined-up cycle network for King’s Lynn and beyond.

Providing a signalled interchange at Southgates will increase the safety of car journeys.

Q4.3 How will the scheme affect the quality of the built and/or natural
environment (describe any significant benefits or impacts on the
following factors: noise, local air quality, greenhouse gases,
landscape, townscape, heritage of historical resources, biodiversity,
water environment, physical fithess and journey ambience)?

- —

2 These questions refer to criteria in the Appraisal Summary Table, for more information please refer to
l_wtto:/’/www.webtag.ora.uklwebdocumentSM Overview/1 introduction_to_Transport analysis/index.htm

87 14




Improvements to the air quality in the Railway Road Air Quality Management Area
covering Railway Road, Austin Street, Blackfriars, St James Road and London Road in
King's Lynn.

Reduction in the amount of traffic in the Norfolk Street, St Margaret’'s and Friars
Conservation Areas

Enhancement of the townscape in the Norfolk Street, St Margaret’s and Friars
Conservation Areas and the setting and protection of a number of Grade 1 2* and 2
Listed Buildings and a Scheduled Ancient Monument.

Enhanced cycling and walking environment on a dedicated route away from traffic and
poor air quality.

Opportunity to implement Safer Routes To Schools schemes.

Reduction of noise around sections of the gyratory system by improving bus access to
and from the bus station.

Increasing modal shift towards public transport use will generate an increase in cycling
and pedestrian traffic between the bus and railway station and offers an opportunity to
improve the built area and economic prospects of businesses in this area.

Q4.4 Have you undertaken any formal assessment of the potential
environmental impact (positive or negative) of your proposal?

i) Yes v
ii) No

If yes, please give details

Railway Road Air Quality Management Area which has identified levels of NO, to be
exceeding the annual mean specified in the National Air Quality Strategy. The County
Council and Borough Council are working jointly on an Action Plan.

Nine local schools are participating in ‘project atmosphere’ which will see the monitoring
of Nitrogen Dioxide levels in the school’s immediate environment. Results of this will be
used to feedback to parents and encourage modal shift to more sustainable transport.

Individual measures have been assessed but the combined impact is yet to be assessed
but should give at least the sum benefit of the individual measures but a cumulative effect
is likely so the benefit may be greater than this.

Q4.5 Does the scheme enhance the provision of sustainable transport
and/or reduce the need to travel?

i) Yes v
i) No

If yes, please tick those reasons that apply and support your answer

15
88




i) It improves public transport infrastructure (capacity improvements,
priority measures, measures to improve reliability)

ii) It improves facilities for pedestrians and/or cyclists

iii) It improves modal interchange between methods of public transport v
and/or cycling and walking

v

iv) Other (please specify)

It will improve air quality in the town centre through the more direct access for buses to

and from the bus station.
The use of statutory Quality Partnership measures offers further scope to enhance the

overall quality of bus services in the area.

R

Q4.6 Have you had any early dialogue with the appropriate Statutory
Environmental Consultees about the proposal and its potential

impacts?

i) Yes v
ii) No

If yes, please give details of their views (both positive and negative)

Borough Council Environmental Health and Housing Department which supports the
proposals contained in the scheme as these will make a direct contribution to the
improvement of the air quality in the Railway Road Air Quality Management Area.

The Environment Agency, Highways Agency, King’s Lynn are partners in the Nar Quse
Regeneration Area/ Millennium Community project and are supportive of the Master plan
which includes the provision of a public transport link and improved cycle and footpath

network.

The Environment Agency have been fully involved in the discussions leading to the
Master Plan for the Waterfront Regeneration Scheme, which again includes the provision
of a public transport link and improved cycle and footpath network, and have not

expressed any major concerns.

SECTION 5: DELIVERABILITY

Q5.1 Does the project require planning consent or other powers?

i) Yes v
ii) No

89 16



If yes, please:

i) Provide details of requirements (including a timetable for planning consent)

8 to 12 months for consent. ]

i) Assess the likelihood of not securing these powers, and please support your
choice

High (more than 50% likely)
Medium (25-50% likely)
Low (less than 25% likely) v

Land required for the scheme already has outline permission and is in the ownership of
the Borough, the County Council or the NORA partners.

What would be your most likely response to failure to secure powers (eg de-
scoping or revising the project, cancellation of the project etc)?

We would revise the project in accordance with stakeholder consultation

Q5.2 Are there any other risks to project funding or timely delivery that are known

at this stage (eg land assembly, flood plain, need for public consultation, geometric
engineering constraints etc)?

i) Yes
ii) No v

if yes, please

i) Provide details of each risk

Blot applicable

ii) Assess the likelihood of the risk affecting the delivery of the project affecting the
delivery of the project and please support your choice below

High (more than 50% likely)
Medium (25-50% likely)
Low (less than 25% likely)

Not applicable

iif) What would be your most likely response to each of the identified risks

17
90



materialising (either individually or in combination with other risks)?

‘Lot applicable

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

The Scheme is consisted with the aspirations of the ‘Vision for King's Lynn’, which is
enshrined in the West Norfolk Partnership’s Sustainable Community Strategy.

It will contribute to King's Lynn fulfilling its role as a sub regional centre as identified in the
East of England Development Agency’s response to the consultation on its

Regional Economic Strategy and as a Key Centre for Development and Change as
identified in the Regional Spatial Strategy.

The King’s Lynn Urban Development Strategy, which has been adopted by the Borough
and County Councils and endorsed by EEDA, provides the policy basis for a programme
of structured improvements to the urban area of King’s Lynn which includes
enhancements to the traffic infrastructure and provision.

The following items are attached to this bid document:
e King’s Lynn Area Transport
e A map of the scheme

91 18



Based upon the Ordnance Survey mapplng N X
wlth the permission of the Controller of / . t ] Cyniing L s
Her Mality's sml‘hmunll Offics © Llrm\'n f Cyuling Link 2 Crossing Improvements B
copyrignt, Unacthorlsed repraduction . Lyeling Lins - between Kelllewell ~N
Infringey Crown copyright and may lea (o : ; Advanced Stop Li :
prasecutlon or clvllpproceedlngs. - ance Renes| Lane and Watt Street N N
Norfolk County Council. i j i - i N ST \‘
Ulcence Na: 100019340, 2008 i | = R NI :
For reference purposes only. Cycling Link 1 Norfolk S N
NG fusther copiss may be made. Street Contra-Flow N /
;
.
! A ~
-r-~ —
p
R : | o
© Cycling Link 5: Crossing . o
Improvements between I
Miiifleet and the Walks
l i
Improvemanis (o 3 : : ORI U
- Southgates i - ! i
Roundabout -
4 =
A T g . ' =
Cycling Link 7 Hardings : 4 : : ' :’
= Way off road facility to
5" Wisbech Road J,l :
, W /AR ; ‘
il O
L
il
| 125
| -
g i
0 i
i ,‘ll ;
h P KEY
L
% Proposed Footway/Cycleway
Tl_l 7 *~ Proposed Bus Lane
||~ |== Aternate Bus Lane Route
B B I 77 Unlocking Waterfront
H
3 I : K [J unlocking industrial Area
) il ] l Redevelopment (Bearings Site)
L ] NORA Unlocking Resldential

This document should not be relied on or used In circumstances other than

those for which It was orlginally prepared and for which Mott MacDonald Ltd was commissioned.,
Mott MacDonald Ltd accepts no responsibllity for this document to any othe

r party other than the person by whom it was commisslened.

County Cound Mike Jackson X £ DRAWING TITLE =

Director of Planning and Transportation
working with Norfolk County Council Proposed Schemes

County Hall

Martineau Lane

ﬂ’j’ ]} mf:tnom!d MAY GURNEY Norwlch NR1 2SG

Y J
Mott MacDonald (REV. DESCRIPTION CHECKED | DATE Y (” INIT. | DATE DRAWJNGL tl;la-o )
County Hall 233902AL02-001
Martineau Lane DESIGNEDBY | ET | 04108 posiecT imie
Norwich, NR1 2US DRAWN BY NJC | 04108 | King's Lyan - South Major
Tel 01603 767530

ECKED BY P | o4
Fax 01603 767463 = M 108 I SeAE AT A3 FILE No.
Web www.mottmac.com \ J \APPROVEDBY | MP | 04/08 | NTS 233902AL02




ning s Lynn South Transport Major Schemne Ha 31 z
Community Infrastructure Fund CIF2 R etk COUﬂt}’ Coundil
Fuil Busiress Case

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE FUND CIF 2

KING’S LYNN SOUTH TRANSPORT MAJOR
SCHEME

FULL BUSINESS CASE

NORFOLK COUNTY COUNCIL
OCTOBER 2008

93



King's Lynn South Transport Major Scheme ; .
Community Infrasiructure Fund CIF2 i - Count‘;f Counail
Full Business Case

List of Contents Page
Project Summary Information 5-1
NATA Appraisal Summary Table S-9
Integration & Scheme Dependent Housing S5-11

Chapters and Appendices (including NATA Supporting Documentation)

1 Introduction 1-1
1.1 Purpose of this document 1-1
1.2 Brief Scheme Description 1-2
1.3  Report Structure 1-4
2 Strategic Case 2-1
2.1 Background 2-1
2.1.1  Local Development Framework 2-3
2.1.2 King's Lynn Nar Ouse Regeneraticn Area {(NORA) 2-4
2.1.3 Waterfront Regeneration Area 2-5
2.1.4 King's Lynn Town Centire Extension 2-5
2.2 Current Situation 2-6
2.2.1 Existing Travei Patterns 2-6
2.2.2 Existing Highway Network 2-10
2.2.3 Existing Public Transport Provision 2-11
2.3  Problems and lssues 2-13
2.3.1 GCongesticn 2-13
2.3.2 Network Capacity to Accommodate Development 2-15
2.3.3 Pubiic Transport Performance and Reiiability 2-15
2.3.4  Air Quality 2-16
2.3.5 Walking and Cycling Facilities 2-19
23.6 Car Parking Strategy 2-19
2.3.7 The Challenge for King's Lynn 2-19
2.4  Scheme Objectives 2-20
2.4.1 Scheme Development 2-21
2.4.2 Problem Mitigation 2-26
2.5  Strategic Fit 2-27
25.1 Alignment with Government, Regional and Local Objectives 2-27
252 Stakeholder Suppart 2-29
3 Scheme Description 3-1
3.1 Overview 3-1
3.2 NORA Bus and Cycie Route 3-2
i
DYUNRDOA - 17 claber I8ROl
1P AN S Frmecta ) L SN Frampuntationmt 2 THLLRE O Keg's s CLMSHU G Ment Docnpiemsi B Diocumens gl Docameai ] C11E?
1 B Rsd diow gl

94



King's Lynn South Transpart Major Scheme et s 2
Community Infrastructure Fund CIF2 - ?f (FEE ERES COUFII}/ Counal

Full Business Case

3.3 Southgates Roundabout Improvement 3-7
3.4  King's Lynn Town Centre 3-9
3.4.1 Measures to Assist Bus Movement 3-9
3.4.2 Cycling Facilities 3-12
4 Environment 4-1
4.1 Sources of Information 4-1
4.2  Envircnmental Baseline 4.2
4.2.1 NORA Bus and Cycle Route 4-2
4.2.2 Highway Infrastructure 4-4
4.3  Noise 4.5
4.3.1 NORA Bus and Cycle Route 4-5
4.3.2 Southgates Roundabout 4-5
4.3.3 King's Lynn Town Centre 4-5
4.4 Local Air Quality 4-5
4.4.1 NORA Bus and Cycle Route 4-5
4.4.2 Southgates Roundabout 4-5
4.4.3 King's Lynn Town Centre 4-6
45  Greenhouse Gases 4-8
4.5.1 NORA Bus and Cycle Route 4-6
4.5.2 Southgates Roundabout 4-6
4.5.3 King's Lynn Town Centre 4-6
4.6  Landscape 4-7
4.6.1 NORA Bus and Cycle Route 4-7
4.6.2 Southgates Roundabout 4.7
4.6.3 King's Lynn Town Centre 4-7
4.7 Townscape 4.7
4.7.1 NORA Bus and Cycle Route 4-7
4.7.2 Southgates Roundabout 4-7
4.7.3 King's Lynn Town Centre 4-8
4.8  Heritage of Historic Resources 4-8
4.8.1 NORA Bus and Cycle Route 4-8
4.8.2 Southgates Roundabout 4-8
4.8.3 King's Lynn Town Centre 4-8
48  Biodiversity 4-9
4.9.1 NORA Bus and Cycle Route 4-9
4.9.2 Southgates Roundabout 4-9
4.8.3 King's Lynn Town Centre 4-9
4.1C  Water Environment 4-9
4.10.1 NORA Bus and Cycle Route 4-9
4.10.2 Southgates Roundabout 4-9
4.10.3 King's Lynn Town Centre 4-10
4.11  Physical Fitness 4-10
4.11.1 NORA Bus and Cycle Route 4-10
4.11.2 Southgates Roundabout 4-190
4.11.3 King’s Lynn Town Centre 4-10
412 Journey Ambience 4-10
i

ZIWOIRDMMNIA - 17 Ovtober XM i

FANurwic MM Projecsi2 33002 . Snp Transportations 24 3602 K141 Ko Ly CLH MSBOWO Mot Doc aments FHC [ewunepibingl Decamenig 1. (152

FRC lanal Revt i don/MER

95



96



King's Lynn South Transport Major Scheme s g T -
Community Infrastructure Fund CIF2 nAB ERREE Coum.}f' Council
Full Business Case
10.1  Governance 10-1
10.2  Project Plan 10-2
10.3  Risk Management 10-3
10.4  Stakeholder and Community Consultation 10-3
10.5 Statutory Consultation 10-4
10.5.1 English Heritage 10-4
10.5.2 Environment Agency 10-4
10.5.3 Natural Engtand 10-§
10.6  Scheme Evaluation 10-5
10.6.1 NORA Bus and Cycle Route 10-5
10.6.2 Southgates Roundabout 10-5
10.6.3 Selective Vehicle Detection 10-6
10.6.4 Toucan Crossings and Cycle Lanes 10-6
11 Financial 11-1
1.1 Financial Summary 11-1
11.2  Ongoing Revenue Costs 11-1
12 Commercia! 12-1
12.1 Background 12-1
12.2 Procurement Route 12-2
12.3 Contract Type 12-3
12.3.1 Professional Services 12-3
12.3.2 Works 12-4
12.4  Contract Monitoring 12-4
Appendix A Stakeholder Letters of Support A-1
Appendix B Strategic Fit Tables A-1
Appendix C  Risk Register A-1
Appendix D Full Budget Spreadsheet A-1
iv

LRWIZEDIOANA 1T Oerebear IR of v

1" Weorv s BM Projects 033002 - SNp Tranmspunatiem23 W2 151 3-0] Kim's Lynn CTF MSBUOW O Mot Docament d- ¢ Dovunenatibial DivonentKe, C5F2
FHC Finad RevG doc/M1p

97



King's Lynn South Transport Major Scheme

Community Infrastructure Fund CIF2 » o “ v COUF\T.Y COUHC'I
Full Businass Case
Figure 1.1: Scheme Location Plan 1-3
Figure 2.1: King's Lynn Town Centre Masterplan Map 2-6
Figure 2.2: How did you travel to King's Lynn today? 2-8
Figure 2.3: If you hadn't used your car today to travel into town how else would you have
made your journey? 2-9
Figure 2.4: Network Constraints within King's Lynn 2-10
Figure 2.5: King's Lynn Public Transport Network 2-12
Figure 2.6: Congestion in Kings Lynn 2-14
Figure 2.7: Example of impact of Congestion on Bus Services 2-16
Figure 2.8: King's Lynn Alr Quality Management Area 2-17
Figure 2.9: Gaywood Air Quality Management Area 2-18
Figure 3.1: Nar Ouse Outfall Sluice and Existing Pedestrian/Cycleway 3-2
Figure 3.2: The South Gate 3-4
Figure 3.3: NORA Bus and Cycle Route - Location Plan 3-5
Figure 3.4: Southgates Roundabout improvement — Existing Location Plan 3-8
Figure 3.5: Littleport Street Bus Lane 3-10
Figure 3.6: Location of Junctions with Selective Vehicle Detection 3-11
Figure 3.7: 2007 Pollution Levels - NO, Diffusion Tube Results 3-11
Figure 3.8: Norfolk Street Contraflow Cycle Lane 3-13
Figure 3.9: John Kennedy Road/Austin Street/Railway Road Advanced Stop Lines 3-14
Figure 3.10: Littleport Street/Gaywood Road Toucan Crossing 3-15
Figure 3.11: Millfleet/London Road/St James' Road Toucan Crossing 3-18
Figure 4.12: King's Lynn Conservation Area 4-4
Figure 5.1: Study Area for Safety Appraisal 5-1
Figure 5.2: Three Year Moving Average - Accidents 5-2
Figure 5.3; Three Year Moving Average - Casualties 5-3
Figure 5.4: Casualty Type 53
Figure 5.5: Accidents by Road Class 5-4
Figure 5.6: Accident Locations 5-5
Figure 5.7: Accident Cluster Locations 5-6
Figure 10.1: Project Governance Arrangements 10-2
Figure 10.2: Construction Programme 10-1
Tabie 2.1: Projects Facilitated by CIF Scheme 2-24
Table 2.2: Mitigation of Problems by the Scheme 2-26
Table 4.1: Summary of Designated Sites and Areas 4-2
Table 4.2: Environmental Assessment Summary 4-12
Table 5.1: Vulnerable Road User Casualties 5-4
Table 5.2: Accident Data for Cluster Sites 5-6
Table 8.1: Summary of Land Use Policy Impacts 8-5
Table 10.1: Summary of Main Risks and Control Measures 10-1
Table 11.1: Qverall Spend Profile 11-1
"
Jaann DA 17 (htober JIMBS ol &
1 Nura g hihIM Projeciai T SNE Framapmnatomy 28R BEOE Kaug + Lyt €1E MSBUW U Mo uenment FRC Dogimenid inal Decamentkl 2

ERE bl Rewd s aboed MBS

98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



L0T



80T



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



King's Lynn South Transport Major Scheme
Community infrastructure Fund CIF2
Full Buginass Case

w Mo Tl County Council

Table 2.1: Projects Facilitated by CIF Scheme

Prlarity and Profect Description 2008/2009 | 2009/3010 | 2010/2011 Total
Capitat

Mar Quse Hegeneration Area — Tratfic Mitigation and Utilitiss provision 5,000,000 5.000,000
Watsrfront Regeneration Schema — Remadiation and Utilities Provision 1,000,006 | 4,000,000 | 5,000,000
King's Lynn Transportation and Land Use Sirat — [mplementaticn 3,500,000 4,000,000 7,500,000
Provision of Green Infrastructure and Community Facilities 1,250,000 1,250,000
Hardwick Irdustrial Estate Extensign 108,000 2,900,000 3,000,000
Strategic Housing sites - Litilittes Provision 3,000,000 | 3,000,000
Total Capltai 10,850,000 § 13,900,000 | 24,750,000

Revenua

Programme Management 25 000 50.000 50,000 125,000
Water Cycle Study 35,000 35.000
Graen Infragiructure Strategy and Management Plan 40,000 40,000
Flood Risk Mitigation Studias 100.000 100,000
Surface Water Management Plan 20,000 20,000
Utilities Assessmeant Study 50,000 50,000
Strategic Housing Sites Devslopment Appraisals 250,000 250,000 500,000
Total Revehue 100,600 470,000 300,000 470,000
Total Capital and Revenue 100.000 | 11.320,000 | 14,200,000 | 25,620,000

The table shows the:

* Priority areas together with the Growth Point Status funding
requested from DCLG for the period 2008-2011:

. Projects within the Vision for King's Lynn that are facilitated on
the back of this investment.

Beyond 2011, longer term priorities directly related to housing

provision will include:

. Demolition and infrastructure work to bring to the market
additional publicly owned sites;

. Continuing investment into transportation improvements:

. Provision of additional green infrastructure:

. Implementation of flood risk mitigation measures:

. Utilities and drainage:
. Affordable housing;

. Community facilities;

® Public realm enhancements:

. Economic development initiatives:

2-24

JLHIIRIDLOMNAA - )7 Dietber 20087224 of M

PANvrw IchiMIM Propeni2 b2 SNE Transportanom 2 AB02-813-00 Kang's Lynn C1F MSBOW.O Man DxwcomentsWEBC Docamentibmal Doconentsk ] U152

FRO Fina) Roevt i thecfdd 11

137




King's Lyan South Transport Major Scheme

Community Infrastructure Fund CIF2 s e g ;
Full Businass Case SR County Councl!

. Implementation of the emerging car parking strategy which
could include the provision of two new multi storey car parks
and a park and ride scheme which would allow the
development of existing extensive surface car parks for
housing.

The overall investment by the public and private sector over the
lifetime of the King's Lynn Growth Delivery Plan is estimated to be in
the order of £2.78 billion with a public to private sector ratic of 1:4.
The CLG funding of £25.62 million will directly bring about the
investrment of £122 million from public and private scurces.

The growth identified in the IPD aligns with the objectives and
timescales of this CIF2 bid in delivering the growth identified to the
year 2011. It is in addition to this bid and looks to provide additional
transport infrastructure identified by KLATS.

The measures selected for this bid arose from areas of work
undertaken for KLATS. These were:

Missing Links Cycling Study:
. Public Consultation:

' Business Consultation;

. Bus operator consultation;

. Air Quality Action Plan;

= Data collection including surveys on cycling, walking, bus
usage and car park usage.

J-25

BAMOIRII LA - 1T Chooler HNIE 228 of 25
P ANwra I AT Progectsl2 31002 - SNT* [rasspomatmn 233000 R0 Kene's Cutn U 1F MSBCWAE Mt D iieataEH o woetnib ol Docsmenni& ] C1E2
PO Pl Mo doc 1T

138



King's Lynn Scuth Transport Major Scheme
Community infrastructura Fund CIF2
Full Business Case

w i rrfndi County Coundil

24.2 Problem Mitigation
Table 2.1 below summarises how the scheme will mitigate the
problems identified.
Tabte 2.2: Mitigation of Problems by the Scheme
Problem Mitigation
Congestion Southgates roundabout improvement

Network Capacity to Accommaodate
Development

Southgates roundabout improvement

Public Transport Performance and Reliability

Bus Priority

Selective Vehicle Detection

Air Quality

NORA Bus Route

Selective Vehicle Detection

Walking and Cycling Facilities

Contra-flow cycle lane
Advanced stop lines
Toucan crossing upgrades

Cycleway footway links

Car Parking Strategy

Creation of infrastructure to facilitate the
potential future development of Park and
Ride

2-26

JUMIZRIODUBAHAA - 17 Cotober 30812 al

P dNurwie MM Projecri 211002 . 58] Tramporaticn 2 3 W02. B0 King's | ¥rn CHFEMEBBOW Mot Dovumento dHE BracumeniEanad Docunsent KL CLE?

FI Fiaal Rev(h docrM IR

139




King's Lynn Scuth Transport Major Scheme

Community infrastructure Fund CIF2

Full Business Case

w .o County Coundil

2.5 Strategic Fit

2.5.1  Alignment with Government, Regional and Local Objectives

S orien 00 S
Vel orf fne
Aptrer s Fupni St
Froaisgiend Lipioe
SRt L g
Weeldl E00 L e et i
cegerttdd el lec!
of1ee ety

The objectives and outcomes of impiementing the King's Lynn South
Transport Major scheme, as part of the emerging land use and
transport strategy, which includes the accommodation ol planned
growth, have been considered for their alignment with Government,
regional and local objectives. For each strategy or initiative the goals
and objectives are shown down the side of a table and the Kings
Lynn South Transport Major scheme objeclives across the top.
Where a strategic fit exists, text is provided to show the link. This has
been carried out for the following strategies or initiatives and the
results are shown in Strategic Fit Tables in Appendix B.

. Department for Transport - Towards @ Sustainable Transport
System (October 2007)

’ Department for Transpart - The Eddington Transport Study
Report {December 2006)

. East of England Development Agency - Regional Economic
Strategy for the East of England (Consultation Draft September
2007}

. Government Office for the East of England - East of Engiand
Plan - The Revision o the Regional Spatial Strategy for the
East of England (May 2008)

. The emerging Kings Lynn Area Transportation Strategy

. Norfolk County Council Locai Transport Plan 2606-11 March
2006}

* Norfolk County Strategic Partnership — Norfolk Ambition -
sustainable community strategy for Norfoik 2003-2023 {(March
2008)

It is clear from these tables that strong demonstrable links exist for
the Kings Lynn South Transport Major scheme 10 local, regional and
naticnal objectives.

227

RERC TR LIS TR FANESIE RE SR L4 L EL PR T R
B Ao HWIRT Braogec i AT AN SNP Transgor e L RN RI3OL Ky Lonn C 1 RESHEW D A0 DiosmenhE-BiC P genentb il Bocuaw stk CI-2

RO Bomd Kol i rMEY

140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



King's Lynn South Transport Major Scheme

Community infrastructure Fund CIF2 T :
Ful Businass Case w & otk County Council

4.3 Noise

4.3.1 NORA Bus and Cycle Route

As part of the proposed route currently is traffic free, noise levels will
inevitably rise along this corridor. However, this may be balanced
Nosse 15 unike 1o over the area as a whole by the reduction in bus vehicle traffic on
if{‘; f:!f;"‘f””f"f*“” other existing roads. There will be a negative noise impact arising
" from the new corridor being located adjacent to existing pedestrian
and cycling facilities and amenity area.

Overall assessment: Slight Adverse

4.3.2 Southgates Roundabout

Although the volume of traffic using the roundabout will increase as a
result of the development uniocked by the scheme, changes in noise
are unlikely to result from this proposal.

Overall assessment: Neutral

4.3.3 King's Lynn Town Centre

The measures within the town centre will improve pedestrian and
cycle access through existing junctions. There will be littie change in
the vehicular usage of the junctions and therefore littie 1o no change
in existing noise levels.

QOverall assessment: Neutral
44 Local Air Quality

4.4.1 NORA Bus and Cycle Route

5 ) i Buses will reqularly be using an area which is currently free of any
'n;!s{;ﬁ;‘;: ”"; ;.f':w’”’;‘i ; traffic so air quality will be slightly affected in this location. However,
B e BT this measure will relieve existing bus routes so it is likely that

unproved it improvements in air quality eisewhere will occur.
fHows, amd

spastasehifndiy
S Overall assessment: Neutral

4.4.2 Southgates Roundabout

There may be marginal air quality improvements as a result of the
reduction in congestion.

4-5
JABRIBEXILA - T Optober KA S ol §
FNorwichWIM ProwetA2 0 SNE Transpartstsom D U002 BELGL Kayes Lyt O MSECW Mot Duocame i SERC Docementidimil DoecamreatKL CTE2
FHC Tnad HesCiadoc!MER

163



King's Lynn South Transpeort Major Scheme
Community Infrastructure Fung CIF2

Full Business Case - COUnty Council

QOverall assessment: Neutral

4.43 King's Lynn Town Centre

Through improvements to pedestrian and cycling access through
existing functions, and the measures to assist the movement of
buses that shouid result in fewer stop-start movements, there will be
an overall improvement in air quality in the urban area as a result of
this scheme,

Overall assessment: Slight Beneficial
4.5 Greenhouse Gases

4.5.1 NORA Bus and Cycle Route

The scheme seeks to reduce overall journey time for bus vehicles as
feanionare kiels - well as to provide a new service into the proposed development area.
sk The reduction in journey time could potentially have a small impact
- on emissions, whilst the new service will encourage sustainable
Sttt und travel options in the new development.
arnarenved pnrtte
fhnty

QOverall assessment: Neutral

452 Southgates Boundabout

The reduction in congestion at this roundabout should lead to a
reduction in greenhouse gases from stopped vehicles.

Qverall assessment: Neutral

45.3 King's Lynn Town Centre

The overall levels of greenhouse gases in the urban area will reduce
through the increased pedestrian and cycling access through existing
juncticns, as well as through the reduction in greenhouse gases from
stopped public transport vehicles. The signal improvements to the
existing junclions may constrain existing tratfic but the resulting
improvements in non-molorised user access may allow and
encourage users to choose modes other than private vehicles.

Overall assessment: Slight Beneficial

4-6
DABKUOBRERAL A - 1T Shonebser MIMSfd-foat b
1AM IR Proygee il 8 SNE Triasportatinot V00 BOCGEL Kig's 1 om 18 MSBCW 0 Mot DoconentalC Docoawaiidmsl Docupwnnil 182
FHU Fonit Kot i /ME-P

164



King's Lynn South Transpor! Major Scheme

i | s ES e g :
LOTIUBY N actcte Rl Sk w “1a: 7 County Coundl

4.6

4.6.1

462

463

4.7

471

4.7.2

Landscape

NQRA Bus and Cycle Route

The scheme seeks to utilise brownfield areas that are currently
returning to semi-natural habitats. As a mitigation measure is not yet
available, it is possible that given the current situation the proposal
will have a minor adverse impact.

Overall assessment: Slight Adverse

Southgates Roundabout

This scheme lies within the existing urban area and there is therefore
no impact resultant from the proposal.

Qverall assessment: Neutral

King's Lynn Town Centre

These proposals alse lie within the existing urban area and therefore
there is no impact resultant on [andscape.

Overall assessment: Neutral
Townscape

NORA Bus and Cycle Route

The majority of the scheme will have a negligible impact on the
existing townscape due tc the proposed location of the scheme. The
use of existing sireets at the northern extents of the scheme may
have some impact on tawnscape bit it is too early in the development
of the proposals to specify what this impact may be.

QOverall assessmen: Neutral

Southgates Roundabout

The proposed design will increase the size of the existing
roundabout, therefore requiring land take in some locations. Lost
land will include open spaces associated with fight industry and
offices therefore the impact will be negligible.

Overall assessment: Neutral

4-7

JLWONIHDMAA - 17 Octither 20THA-7 Ut 7
PriMorwic hiMM Progeciad2 13007 . SNIP Fransporatuaah 14900 B0 Kig's bang O MSHUW 0 Mot DoonmentsAEBC DaseuienttFned Documen S G
RO Final Rewi s docfhlie

165



King's Lynn South Transport Majer Scheme

Community Infrastructure Fund CIF2

Full Business Case

w oo County Cound

4.7.3 King's Lynn Town Centre

The on-street improvements lie within the existing built up area of
King's Lynn. Although the additional street furniture may increase
the sense of clutter in the area, the potential reduction in car usage
by offering improvements 1o other modes may alleviate the existing
sense of cangestion.

Qverall assessment: Neutral

4.8 Heritage of Historic Resources

4.8.1 NORA Bus and Cycle Route

It is considered that there will be a beneficial impact on the
Conservation Area as a result of this proposal as it wil remove bus
vehicles from this area.

Qverall assessment: Slight Beneficial

4.8.2 Southgates Roundabout

Sioveloprients e
fhefi to fLave g
shatitiv benetto il
arffenice on

FEAPINES Y R e

There are no features of heritage within the scheme footprint
although the scheme may indirectly impact on the historic South
Gate of King's Lynn which is located in proximity to this location.
However, as a roundabout already exists at this location, it is
considered that any impact may be minimal.

Qverall assessment: Neutral

4.8.3 King's Lynn Town Centre

The on-street improvements are within the existing urban area of
King's Lynn. All the design within the conservation area will be
carried out using Norfolk County Council's Conservation Area design
guide pallet of materials.

QOverall assessment; Neutral

3-8

TR - 1T O abher JHORA - ol R
12 Neps e BN Prapectsi2 32 SN Tramporsatngi 2 00028101 Kanp™s §anm CH: MR G Mon (ocwment B Docanesmal Docasienttk 1L U2

IR b Res G dbon AR

166



King's Lynn South Transport Major Scheme
Community Infrastructure Fund CIF2 -, :;_e‘% ¥l COUHt}' COUﬂCl]

Full Business Case

4.9

491

49.2

493

4.10

4.10.1

Biodiversity

NORA Bus and Cycle Route

The reedbed and mudflat habitat associated with the River Nar is
recognised as a UK BAP habitat and site surveys have confirmed the
presence of Schedule 5 (Wildlite and Countryside Act) protected
species.

Overall assessment: Slight to Moderate Adverse (potential to mitigate
to Siight Adverse)

Southgates Roundabout

There are no perceived impacts on biodiversity as a result of this
scheme as all the improvements are within areas of negligible
ecological impact.

Overall assessment: Neutral

King's Lynn Town Centre

Given that all the proposed improvements are within existing highway
corridors, there is no perceived impact on biodiversity as a result.

Overall assessment: Neutral

Water Environment

NORA Bus and Cycle Route

Given the early stage of the development of the proposals, it is not
possible to accurately determine the impact on the water
environment. It is possible that there may be an increase in
permeable paving as weil as potential outfalls to the River Nar.

Overall assessment: Neutral at this stage

4.10.2 Southgates Roundabout

It is envisaged that there will be a negligible increase in non-
permeable surface as a result of these improvements and no
changes are likely to the existing drainage systems.

Overall assessment: Neutral

49

TUROHEONA - 17 Oclober KA of 4
PANora chtMM Projecenl 1307 SNP Frmsportatieod L8952 BOLOI Ko Lyno €18 MEBUWO Mot Dovame e SFHC Docomentd il Dogimentni1 CTE2

FBC Fina! Bl che )

167



King's Lynn South Transport Major Scheme

Community Infrastructure Fund CIF2

Full Business Casse

w <o County Coundl

4.10.3 King's Lynn Town Centre

There is no perceived impact on the water environment as there is no
perceived increase in non-permeable surface, and there are no
changes envisaged to the existing drainage systems.

QOverall assessment: Neutral

4.11 Physical Fitness

4.11.1t NORA Bus and Cycle Route

There is no perceived increase or decrease in physical fitness as a
result of this scheme.

Qverall assessment: Neutral

4.11.2 Southgates Roundabout

Choeratt
TN e S 1Y
f sl are Ghel

The design tor the improved roundabout includes the provision of
new pedestrian crossings on three arms. However, although this
improves the general level of pedestrian cressing facility at the
junction, they are unlikely in themselves to increase current
pedestrian usage.

Cverall assessment: Neutral

4.11.3 King's Lynn Town Centre

This scheme will improve physical titness through the provision of
improved pedestrian and cycle facilities within the scheme area. Itis
not envisaged that improvements will be more than 30 minutes per
journey.

Overall assessment: Slight Beneficial

4.12 Journey Amhience

4.12.1 NORA Bus and Cycle Rotite

S tiey dnilne e

Lh ol o s o

RS B s Pl

The reduction in congestion for public transport users wilt result in
some improvements 10 journey ambience for those individuals.

Overall assessment; Stight Beneficial

4-10

TEROTREDATA - 1T Ovtoher 2NN TD
B e h A Proertni $EHE SNP Trsportsten 24002 B0 Kine s yan CIE MSBOWD Meti Documse st RO Docnatentioal BovonwemidKi €119

FHE Tl Boesti doe /M0

168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



King's Lynn South Transport Major Scheme

Gommunity Infrastructure Fund CIF2 T F

Full Businass Case

feetoik County Counal

A

The combined impact of the proposed package of measures is seen
as offering some benefits in terms of personal security, mainly
through reduced gueuing at Southgates roundabout and reductions
in waiting time at bus stops linked to improvememis in bus service
reliability,

QOverall assessment; Slight Beneficial

5-11

JAMA2BOIINOLA - T October IR L ol 11
PANorwichMM Propeets\I2 13807 - SNE Transaatnn 2 48050 BD-05_ Kang's Dysn CL- MSEUW.0 Mot Documents SFRC Docomentibmna] Doaconent KL (12

FRC Finad Hewdi doefMET

181



182



King's Lynn South Transport Major Scheme
Cammunity Infrastructure Fund CIF2 ', et COUﬂT.)’ Council

Full Business Case

6 Economy

This section discusses the journey time and other economic benefits
associated with each of the measures that make up the overall
scheme package. The measures are discussed as follows:

. The NORA bus and cycle route;
. The Southgates roundabout; and

» King's Lynn town centre

6.1 Transport Economic Efficiency

A SATURN area traffic model and a VISUM public transport model
are being developed for the KLATS project. The models have been
built and calibration, validation and testing is nearing completion, but
they were not available for use to assess the economic benefits of
the scheme within the timescale dictated by the 31 October deadline
for the submission of CIF bids for schemes costing in excess of £5
million.

The projected economic benefits of each of the key elements of the
scheme as identitied below have therefore been based on junction
assessment modelling and quantified spreadsheet analysis using
WebTAG values of time and an approach consistent with TUBA
principles. The key assumptions made in the economic appraisal of
each element of the scheme are set out below.

Given the limitations of this methodology, a conservative approach
has been adopted to the estimation of benefits. It is possible that a
multi-modal madelling approach weuld identify additional economic
benefits over and abave the projected benefits reported below.

Further economic appraisal work will be undertaken on the scheme
once the KLATS models are available and the results of this work
made available in a supplementary report. This approach is in
accordance with discussions between the promoter’'s consultants and
DIT during the preparation of the Full Business Case submission.

-1

ZAWAIBDIOAIA - LT October 200881 ab |
I iNorwactWMM Progecn) 233902 SNE Sransponaioml 2 SE2-H0-00 King's Lyom 61 MSSBOW D Mo Deocunse b AR D xicuseeatyloal DocnmentK L CIE?

SHO Fiaal $evls doofME

183



King's Lynn South Transport Major Scheme

Community Infrastructure Fund CIF2
Full Businass Casg

« - = County Counal

6.1.1  NQRA Bus and Cycle Route

The NORA bus rcute will significantly reduce bus journey times by
providing a congestion free route for buses between South Lynn,
NORA and King's Lynn town centre. All buses approaching King's
Lynn via the A47 Saddlebow Interchange and Wisbech Road wili be
able to use the new bus route to avoid Southgates roundabout and
London Road.

On the basis of consultation with bus operators it has also been
assumed that buses approaching King's Lynn via Hardwick Road will
use the new bus route.

A review of bus operators’ current timetables shows that scheduled
journey times during peak periods are significantly greater than
during the interpeak period. In the case of Norfolk Green, scheduled
journey times at peak periods are extended by up to 40% compared
with the interpeak period.

In addition to extended scheduled journey times at peak periods,
extended layover times between journeys are planned throughout the
day to provide a rcbust schedule that enables services to recover
from unpredictable operational deiays. Norfolk Green allow
approximately 8 minutes of excess dwell time in each hour within
their schedules for this purpose and more than this at peak times.

The economic appraisal of the NORA bus route has been based on
the following assumptions;

» The bus route will initially be used by 13 buses per hour in each
direction throughout the day. rising to 15 per heur from 2016
and 17 per hour from 2021.

. The provision of the bus route will reduce bus journey times on
with-flow peak journeys to match current scheduied interpeak
journey times. This equates to a time saving of 4 minutes for
AM peak inbound journeys and 3 minutes for PM peak
cutbound journeys.

» No journey time savings have been assumed for contra-flow
peak journeys or for the interpeak period in line with the
conservative approach outlined above.

= The average occupancy of with-flow peak bus journeys is 24.4
passengers. This is twice the default average bus occupancy
value in WebTAG Unit 3.5.6, but reflects both the higher
occupancy expected on with-flow peak journeys and the
focation of the bus route after the point at which most
passengers traveiling 1o the town centre have boarded but prior
to the main alighting town centre point at the bus station.

6-2

JRVAOZRIMUATL A - TT Ehoteher 200082 0 2
P ANGrw IR Progectal? TE000 . SNE Trmsporitest) $ 500 BDAOD King's §yvan CIF MSBOW M DieomeniaFBC Drocumentbanal Documeink] 1162

FHE Fiotal Hevti donfAEY

184



King's Lynn South Transpart Major Scheme
Community Infrastructure Fund CIF2 ', 3 et COUnt)/ Counal

Full Business Case

) The appraisal uses the values of time for PSV drivers and
passengers from WebTAG Unit 3.5.6, with the bus driver's time
treated as working time, and the appropriate split of
passengers’ time between working time, non-working time
{commuting} and non-working time (other). Future year values
of time are uplifted in line with the growth rates in Table 3 of
WebTAG Unit 3.5.6.

Benelits have been estimated for a one hour AM peak period and a
one hour PM peak period on Mondays to Fridays only (255 days per
annum).

Quantified spreadsheet analysis based on these assumptions
indicates annual journey time benefits to bus users of £66,000 at
2002 prices in 2011 (the first full year following implementation},
rising 1o £101,000 in 2021. Discounting of these annual benefits over
a 60 year appraisal period to 2002 gives the following results:

Present Value of Present Value of Benefit/Cost Ratio
Costs Benetlts
£1.051 Million £2.184 Million 2.08

6.1.2 Southgates Roundabout

The economic benefits of the Southgates roundabout have been
estimated using an ARCADY model of the existing roundabout and a
TRANSYT model of the proposed partially signaliised roundabout.

Benefits have been estimated for a one hour AM peak period and a
one hour PM peak periad on Mondays to Fridays only (255 days per
annum).

Quantified spreadsheet analysis based on these assumptions
indicates annual journey time benefits to bus users of £66,000 at
2002 prices in 2011 (the first full year following implementation),
rising to £101,000 in 2021. Discounting of these annual benefits over
a 60 year appraisal period to 2002 gives the following results:

Present Value of Present Value of Benetit/Cost Ratio
Casts Benefits
£1.258 Million £56.771 Million 45.15
6-3
2AVULZEII A 1O hobwer MR- 4 3
P WNorwichiMM Progecis il 1062 SN Trusporauemns 233900 BIRGE Keg's Lyt C1F MSBOW Mot locumentsEBC DocumentEinal Docomenni L CIF?
FRO Fiaal HeaCidin /MR

185




King's Lynn South Transport Major Scheme
Community Irfrastructure Fund CIF2

Full Business Case - CRE COU”t}’ Council

6.1.3 King's Lynn Town Centre

(i) Selective Vehicle Detection

The implementation of Selective Vehicle Detection will reduce bus journey times by reducing
red light delays at four key junctions within King's Lynn town centre used by large numbers of
buses.

The economic appraisatl of this measure has been based on the following assumptions:

s+ The Milileet’/Londeon Road and Railway Road/RegentWay junctions will initially be
used by 13 buses per hour in each direction throughout the day, rising to 15 per
hour from 2016 and 17 per hour from 2021.

« The St James Road/Blackfriars Street/Railway Road/St Johns Terrace and Railway
Road/Albion Street junctions will initially be used by 30 buses per hour in each
direction throughout the day, rising to 32 per hour from 2016 and 34 per hour from
2021.

+ Selective Vehicle Detection will deliver an average journey time saving of 4 seconds
for each peak bus movement through the junction. This projected time saving is
based on the results of the implementation of SVD in London as reported by
Transport for London (Bus priority at traffic signals keeps London's buses moving -
Selective Vehicle Detection, January 2006).

* No journey time savings have been assumed for the interpeak period in line with the
conservative approach outlined above.

e Average bus cccupancy of 24.4 passengers on with-flow peak joumeys and 12.2
passengers on contra-flow peak journeys.

¢« The appraisal uses the values of time for PSV drivers and passengers from
WebTAG Unit 3.5.6, with the bus driver's time treated as working time, and the
appropriate split of passengers’ time between working time, non-working time
(commuting) and non-working time (other). Future year values of time are uplifted in
line with the growth rates in Table 3 of WebTAG Unit 3.5.6.

Benefits have been estimated for a one hour AM peak period and a one hour PM peak
period on Mondays to Fridays only {255 days per annum).

Present Value of Present Value of Benefit/Cost Ratio
Costs Benefits
£0.196 Million £0.338 Million 1722
H-4
FRUNTIOATA - 1T October H080-4 ol 3
P orwen WM Prapeciss? L4000 SNP Franspratiom P LA HD 01 Kow's Do C1F MSBOWHT RMon Dravcuie sl BC Documeanfanad DocumesiKE CIHE?

IFRE ol Heewda dodMED

186



King's Lynn South Transport Major Scheme

Community Infrastructure Fund CIF2 o :
Full Business Case by SRR COUF'TIY Councit

(i) Littleport Street Inbound Bus Lane

This measure was the subject of a previous feasibility study (Potential Public Transport
Schemes for the King’s Lynn Area, Mott MacDenald, February 2007) which included junction
assessment modelling using TRANSYT. The projected journey time savings for this
measure from the previous study are 13 seconds for AM peak inbound journeys and 23
seconds for PM peak inbound journeys.

The previous study reported projected slight disbenefits to general traffic of 5 seconds in the
AM peak, but a benefit of 6 seconds in the PM peak. The design of this measure has
subsequently been developed further to provide a longer length of bus lane than under the
original proposal, but with the end of the bus lane set back from the junction with Austin
Street and Littleport Street sufficiently to maintain junction capacity for general traffic. It has
been assumed that this revision tc the original design will eliminate any disbenefit to general
traffic.

The economic appraisal of the Littleport Street bus lane has heen based on the following
assumptions:

¢  The bus lane will be used by 14 inbound buses per hour throughout the day.

+  The provision of the bus lane will reduce inbound bus journey times by 13 seconds
in the AM peak and 23 seconds in the PM peak.

* No journey time savings have been assumed for the interpeak period in line with the
conservative approach outlined above.

¢ Average bus occupancy of 24.4 passengers in the AM peak and 12.2 passengers in
the PM peak, when inbound buses using the bus lane will be operating against the
peak flow.

s The appraisal uses the values of time for PSV drivers and passengers from
WebTAG Unit 3.5.6, with the bus driver's time treated as working time, and the
appropriate split of passengers’ time between working time, non-working time
{commuting) and non-working time {other}. Future year values of time are uplifted in
line with the growth rates in Table 3 of WebhTAG Unit 3.5.6.

Benefits have been estimated for a one hour AM peak period and a one hour PM peak
period on Mondays to Fridays only {255 days per annum).

Present Value of Present Value of Benefit/Cost Ratlo
Costs Benefits
£0.088 Million £0.111 Million 1.26
6-5
TUOIBINUIAA - 1T {ctuher MR- S ol S
PAMArwiciMM Pragecint 20962 SNE Pasporatian 2339028001 King's Lsan ULF MSRCOWD Mot Bocumens 80 Dovamentdind Docameank | Clk2
FRE Proad Rewt i docihd)r

187



188



King's Lynn South Transport Major Schame
Community Infrastructure Fund CIF2 -“ R COUI"It)’ Council

Fult Business Casa

7 Accessibility

7.1 Option Values

Stetegies will
drcredse Sis use
oy ol el otk

7.2 Severance

Option values are associated with availability to the resident
population of alternative transport facilities arising as part of the
overall scheme. The assessment of option values is based on the
change in the number of people who have increased or reduced
transport options available to them.

It is expected that as the package of measures impacts on service
reliability and quality for all modes of transport in the town, it will
encourage an increase in use of bus services, cycling and walking in
King's Lynn. Specifically there are expected to be additional bus
services for NORA and South Lynn as a direct result of the scheme.
In addition to the residential areas in the vicinity of the site iocations,
there is a wide range of commercial units on offer, leading to in
excess of 2000 people benefiting from the increase in options. Given
this number of people affected, WebTAG chapter 3.6.1 indicates that
this results in a strongly beneficial assessment.

Overall assessment: Strong Beneficial

This sub-objective is concerned with the impact of the scheme on
those using non-motorised modes of transport, especially
pedestrians.

At present it is considered that there is a moderate level of severance
at a number of the selected locations considered in the assessment.

7.2.1  NORA Bus and Cycle Route

The proposals for the NORA bus and cycle route retain the existing
pedestrian facilities adjacent to the alignment of the new busway.
The number of bus movements on this route is not considered
sufficient to substantially hinder the movement of pedestrians
crossing the busway North of the Nar Quse outfall sluice in order to
travel to or from the town centre.

Overall assessment: Neutral

7-1

JIVRIZADTOANIA - 17 Chlober KT 1 o |
PNoewichWM Progecs V48017 SNP Franaportatiet 23912 BO-01 Kaings Lean C - MSBOW.O Mot DocomenisAFBU CrocamentiFinal $ocirenK L e

FHO Final Revls doorM BE

189



King's Lynn South Transport Major Scheme

Community Infrastruciure Fung CIF2
Full Business Case

« v County Councll

7.2.2 Southgates Roundabout

The Scuthgates roundabout has been classified with a severance
level of moderate as children and older people are likely to be
dissuaded from making journeys involving crossing the roundabout
owing to a lack of controlled pedestrian crossing facilities, the high
traffic volumes and carriageway widths.

The Southgates roundabout improvements include the provision of
new controlled pedestrian crossing facilities on the Hardwick Road
and Nar Ouse Way approaches. The impact of these facilities will
reduce the severance level at this location to slight.

Overall assessment: Slight Beneficial

7.2.3 King's Lynn Town Centre

The scheme includes a significant package of measures to assist
pedestrians and cyclists in crossing major roads within the town
centre.

While the resulting change in the level of severance at individual
locations will generally be slight, it is expected that the total numbers
of people who will benefit from these measures will be sufficient to
ensure that their combined impact is strongly beneficial to ease of
movement for pedestrians and cyclists.

Overall assessment: Strong Beneficial

7-2

R IO T RFEITITT PR R S STV O 1] - LR B
1 i ML Prajec I AN SNE Transpurstpan ] V0D BT King's Duon £7FE MSRCW G R Py prent b1 Pocnmse nt Tl Dcumsennkid CHE?

1B Faieal Bandi gbocd M2

190



King's Lynn South Transpert Major Scheme
Community Infrastructure Fund CIF2 -, otk COUnt)/ COUnCII

Full Business Case

8 Integration

The integration objective relates to a wider spectrum of issues and
more with the process by which options are developed. It is
concerned with the integration of proposals for road investment, with
those for land use and for other transport modes. 1t also relates to
the interaction between transport and wider issues of Government
policy such as environmental sustainability and health.

In the specific context of the Community Infrastructure Fund this
objective relates not simply to the extent to which the scheme
facilitates or hinders general land use policies, but to the dependency
of additional housing on the delivery of the scheme.

8.1 Transport interchange

Tho sehiermas ki
dired ty tnffucnoe
the relabiliny of
conne ity 1y
LIl nipioved
JOUITICY L
refiibiihity

As highlighted in the WebTAG guidance, the aim of the passenger
interchange assessment is to identify in broad terms the extent to
which particufar indicators would change following implementation of
a scheme, together with the number of passengers affected.
Interchange quality depends on the following:

) Waiting environment;
. Level of facilities;

. Level of infarmation:;

% Visible staff presence:

* Physical linkage for the next stage of the journey: and

Reliability of connection.

The proposed package of measures wili have a limited impact on the
level of transport interchange in King's Lynn as there will be no effect
on the first five of the above factors. However, the scheme will
impact positively on the final factor of reliability of connection as all of
the proposals aim to directly assist journey time reliability for road
users, and particularly public transport passengers.

Overall assessment: Slight Beneficial

8-

JAMIBLIBALA - 17 Octsber 20581 ol |
PaNotwichMM Projecni V02 SNE Trimspen MM BIH Kang « L yon C1F MSHCW.0 Mot Do nisEBC DocumentFinal DovumentaL C1F2

FBC Fael Rev(i dacM B

191



King's Lynn South Transpert Major Scheme

Community Infrastructure Fund CIF2

Full Business Case

« e County Councll

8.2 Land Use Palicy

Forered reeer preddic cen
ECE SO
cosrisnacfoe it e g
Assers<onen!

[ A P A

TAG Unit 3.7.2 identifies how assessments should be made of the
extent 1o which proposals are integrated with land use proposals and
policies and also transport policies. It provides a structured approach
to provide an audit trail of the policies considered and judgements
made. In reaching the overall assessment, the analysis for this sub-
objective must weigh up land use policies and proposals that are
facilitated by a scheme against those that are hindered. The policies
shouid be divided into iocal, regional and national and a judgement
made as to the extent to which the proposal is integrated with land
use and with transport proposals and policies. The assessment is
based on a three-point textual scale - Neutral, Beneficial or Adverse
and each level of policies should be assessed on the following basis:

. The assessments should take account of the balance between
policies and proposals which are facilitated, those hindered and
those which are unaffected,;

. The impact of the plan or strategy should be assessed as
beneficial if more polices are facilitated than hindered, adverse
it more are hindered than facilitated., or neutral where the
balance lies between the two; however

. The assessments should not be mechanical; marginal
ditferences should be ignored, and key policies should be given
greater weight, as should those which are more geographically
specific.

The land use planning assessment is a desk-based exercise using
existing project information coliated by the project team. The
following policy groups are considered to be relevant for the
assessment of this proposal:

tocal

. The King’s Lynn and West Norfolk Local Plan adopted in
November 1998

. Norfolk Local Transport Plan

. Nar Ouse Regeneration Area Master Plan prepared by BDP
Regional

. East of England Plan (May 2008)

. Norfolk Structure Pian 1899

8-2

SAWI T A POl ISR Pl !
B N I Proquers 3000 KNI Tuuisgror Bationd, VU B0t Kong's Euas C18 RSROWO Mo Documeni UG Dosenament el Duvennwentild Clk2

1RO s Resti /BT

192



193



194



195



196



L6T



86T



66T



00¢



T0Z



c0¢



€0¢



14014



G0¢



King's Lynn South Transport Major Scheme "
Gommunity Infrastructure Fund CIF2 : COUﬂt)/ Council

Full Business Case

‘4

10 Delivery

I Norfolk County Council is successful with its bid for Community
infrastructure Funding for the Kings Lynn South Transport Major
Scheme the work will be procured and delivered through Norfolk's
Planning and Transportation Strategic Partnership with May Gurney
b P and Mott MacDonald. Details of the Partnership and procurement
Dyl Geente g arrangements are set out in Chapter 12The scheme consists of
e e sni o geveral different elements and these have all been designed to a
sl A stage sufficient 1o enable robust estimates to be drawn up and aliow
a realistic programme o be established. The Norfolk Strategic
Partnership is aiready working with Kings Lynn Barough Council to
deliver utility infrastructure and foul drainage 1o the Nar Ouse
Regeneration Area and this work valued at around £6m [check] is
programmed to start in May 2009. It is therefore essentiai to ensure
that the programming of the two schemes is coordinated to allow
delivery within the bounds set by the Street Works Coordinators. To
this end a senior member of the Network Manager's staff has also
sat on the Delivery Team.

Flir gevon it fouw

The Partnership has allowed the ‘constructors’ to be involved
throughout the scheme development process to date. There has
been Early Contractor Involvement from the outset and May Gurney
personnel have provided the estimates and advised designers on
‘buildability’ issues. A further advantage of this is that the early
slements of the scheme can start as soon as funding is awarded as a
tendering process wilt not be required.

To summarise, the County Council is well placed to take these works
forward should our bid be successful, and we believe we are in a
position to deliver the scheme with the budget we have requested
and to the timescales laid down.

10.1 Governance

The formal governance structure as outiined below was put in place
at the inception of the Full Business Case stage of the project.

i0-1
AURNIREH0AIIA - 1T bt Mmool |
1* eera s R R Pregegasi2 il SR Transportinen 4RI Ramg s bvan CHEMRB{A G Mot T higmne A Dionmwensid oal Docwneniiks CIe!
1 B Bl ResC doei by
206



207



208



602



King's Lynn South Transport Major Scheme

Community Infrastructure Fund CIF2

Fi!l Buginess Case

-+ County Council

Table 10.1: Summary of Main Risks and Control Measures

210

No. | tem 2 Project Control
g —~
S 3 f 95* @ Measures
T Q i 2] iy
7 = ‘g /- o
5 2 o | & x @
o S| E |2 £
A5 | Inadequacy of | General 4 20 Very High | Early identification
funding of budget
requirements and
monitoring of spend
against capped
budget including
contingency
arrangements to
design within
available funding.
A6 | Unable to General 3 15 High Early programming
spend funding and identification of
key delivery
milegiones
A12 | Network Generai 5 15 High Early discussions
management with Streetworks
issues - Co-ordinators and
possible local Highways Agency
affects of network
progressing management
more than one
scheme at the
same time eg
NORA Utilities
Al14 | Inflation General 5 20 Very High | Allow in budget for
allowance realistic inflation
allowances. Ensure
that Full Business
Case submission
includes allowance
for inflation.
A15 | Campaigners / | General | 4 16 Very High | Early consultation
objections and resolution of
potential cbjections
Q-]
FUWHEHITI A ET October ZGORA B Dol )
I Norse A Fropecis A2 4000 SN Pratapoiatnemd 2 V02 BE-00 fomg ~ D ym TR MSECH 3 Maon Devoment=0 B0 Do ame sl Pocumernskt 102
FFHET Finol Revdn doeihilF




King's Lynn South Transporl Major Scheme

Community Infrastructure Fund GCiF2

Full Business Case

w i ot County Counal

B1 | Envircnment Cost 2 10 High Undertake
constraints to ecological surveys
construction prior to bid

submission. Early
planning and liaison
with environmentai
stakeholders.

B5 | Trunk road Delay 5 15 High Clarify the
junction - Highways Agency's
unresoclved position regarding
issue - housing action required to
cap remove the cap

B8 | Environment Delay 5 10 High Speak to
Agency Environment
consent — Nar Agency
Ouse sluice early/informally
eic

B13 | Traffic Delay 5 10 High Early ligison with
Regulation streetworks
Orders coordinator

B12 | Risk of failure | Cost 5 15 High Ensure bid presents
of bid compeliing case for

scheme and is
compliant with
guidance

B15 | Utilities - Cost/ 3 12 High Trial holes
charted and Delay
uncharted

B18 | Failure of Poor 5 10 High Traffic modelling
Southgates perception
scheme to
improve traffic
flows

10-2

ARG - 1T Outober JEONAID-2 0f 2
1 \Nurw ich A Propecisd 201007 - SNIFUranspottaliond 28R B0 Kipg's [ ynn CTR SUSHUW G Mot Deocuments BB o wme it ial Docynsenty L C12

FBLC Fioai BevOiadocf M

211




King's Lynin South Transport Major Scheme . et B8 COUﬂt‘/ COUHCH

Community Infrastructure Fund CIF2 T

Full Business Case

10.4 Stakeholder and Community Consultation

R R T I ST L R )
[RET S T R AT P S R

TR AT AN

Extensive public consultation has been carried out in connection with
the development and delivery of Norfolk's Local Transport Plan and
more recently to inform the development of the emerging King's Lynn
Area Transportation Strategy (KLATS).

For the KLATS consultation various methods of engagement were
used including workshops with key stakeholders, questionnaire
surveys and a public exhibition held in a vacant retail unit in King's
Lynn's Vancouver Quarter shopping centre.

The Kings Lynn South Transport Major Scheme has been influenced
both by the results of the previous consultations referred to above
and the consultation with key stakeholders that took place prior to the
submission of the Expression of Interest for the scheme to the DIT
and CLG in Aprit 2008. The stakeholders involved at this stage in the
development of the scheme included:

. Highways Agency

s First Eastern Counties (bus operator}
. First Capital Connect (train operator)
. Network Rail

© Norfolk Green (bus operator)

Given the nature of the scheme and its proximity to several of King's
Lynn's historic and environmental assets, early consultation with
local community groups with interests in these assets was
considered essential. Following the short-listing of the scheme
consultation meetings have taken place with the following community
groups.

» Bridge Street Residents Association
. Friars Community Group

. Hardings Pits Community Asscciation
. King's Lynn Civic Society.

. Keepers of the South Gates

The existing impacts of traffic on the South Gate led 16 broad support
for the improvements to Southgates roundabout, and the rerouting of
buses away from London Road to the new NORA bus route.

t0-3

TRRACRIONEA - BT R 2O b 8 .
Moo hN M Prigeciat? LR SNE Frimsportations? S8H0-BOA00 K « Ly CHF MSBOY Mo BavumentabRU P awpawenibna ! DiacumentnBE T2

FINC banad Ban£3 oM

212



213



214



King's Lynn South Transport Major Schems u B il Coun un ll
Community infrastructure Fund CIF2 AR C t}’ CO C

Full Busingss Case

10.6.3 Selective Vehicle Detection

Data from the Norfolk BusNET will also be utilised to evaluate the
benefits to bus services of implementing Selective Vehicle Detection
at key town centre junctions.

The Urban Traffic Control system monitors traffic flows in the town,
and can provide specific information relating to congestion at key
junctions.

The ongoing Air Quality Monitoring programme in King's Lynn tests
air quality at a number of monitoring locations. Improvements in
traffic flows generated by SVD should be reflected in lower emission
levels, particulariy on London Road/St James’ Road.

10.6.4 Toucan Crossings and Cycle Lanes

User perceptions of improvements to pedestrian and cycling routes
throughout King's Lynn will be measured through consultation with
cycling and community groups.

Data from future modal split surveys undertaken as part of the King's
Lynn Area Transport Strategy can be compared against the baseline
data from October 2007 to measure any changes in mode share for
walking and cycling.

The number of Safer Routes to Schools in place post-implementation
can be measured against the 2008/09 baseline.

10-6

DAMNELOAA - 1T Octaber HE -0 ol &
1 Wora M Propec A0 - SN Transpurtiatiom 233806 101 _Kings 1y CL- MSHE Mot DocumemssERC Dovemeantingl { ecumeniKl Cl1F2

FBU Fina) Redidoc MR

215



King's Lyan Seuth Transport Major Scheme ; . '
Community Infrastructure Fund CIF2 2, N COUﬂt)/ COUNCI'

Fult Business Case

11 Financial

A thorough budgeting exercise has been carried out 1o match the
estimated cost of the scheme, together with the required works at the
Saddlebow Interchange on the A47 Trunk Road (which is an integral
part of the works required te lift the NORA development cap although
not funded through CIF) to the available budget should the bid be
successiul.

The outcome of this exercise is shown on the overall budget
spreadsheet included as Appendix D, This demonstrates that with
other funding already secured the works are ‘affordable’. The gap in
funding for the Saddlebow works will be underwritten by the NORA
land owning partners. A letter from the Borough Council of King's
Lynn and West Norfolk confirming this is included in Appendix A,

11.1 Financial Summary

The total projected outturn cost of scheme and overall spend profile
are shown in Table 11.4 below.

Table 11.1: Overall Spend Profile

2008/09 200910 2010/11 Total

£265,668 £1,925,158 £3,133.174 £5,324.000

1.2 Ongoing Revenue Costs

There will be some modest additional ongoing revenue costs for the
Operation and maintenance of the ICT equipment required to
implement Selective Vehicle Detection at four key junctions in King's
Lynn town centre. Norfolk County Councit will fund any ongoing
mantenance of the ICT equipment from the Planning and
Transportation revenue budget.

PR LT LY RS R N T L T O |
AN A Progecal W08 SNE Tramsportibaoni? S50 BEGOT Kog < Dyon CHSISBOW.O Mo Doentie s B Dos wientidnn | Iocupemik! -2

FHU Dot Kevl dociM Y

216




King's Lynn South Transport Major Scheme e B, nty Coundil
Community infrastructure Fund CIF2 o Ol Cou t)” U

Full Business Case

12 Commercial

121 Background

As part of Norfolk County Council’s Best Value Review a project was
initiated to investigate how best to deliver the services provided by
the Department of Planning and Transportation which includes roads
and bridges, transport planning, passenger transport, waste,
environment and planning. A thorough study of a wide range of
procurement models was undertaken and various possibilities were
analysed using the Mixed Economy Procurement Toolkit, an in house
toolkit developed by the County Councit.

Following extensive consultation with alt stakeholders the study
made a case for a combined organisation with the County Coungil
working in partnership with external providers, fuily adopting the
Rethinking Construction Principles developed following the Latham
and Egan reports.

Following a full competitive procurement process a Planning and
Transportation Strategic Partnership was formed in 1999 with a
defined purpose to deliver on behalf of Norfotlk County Council
excellent planning, transport, waste and environmental services
ensuring value for money at all times.

The Partnership was renewed in 2004 following a further
procurement process by the letting of two new contracts, Lot 1 for
professional services to Mott MacDonald and Lot 2 for works to May
Gurney. These contracts run for ten years with break points at 5 and
8 years when either party to each contract can give 6 months notice
nat to continue. There is no guarantee of the value of work to be
awarded through the contracts and no limit to the total value or any
individual order.

12-1

JUMOZRLIOAA 1 Chialen XA Lot |
PN MM Praecist? S4901 0 SNT Pramperineat 233002 BLAGL King's Lynn 1 MSBCW U Mot DoceneataB8C Docementibinl Doonneatiil e

FFHE Final Revid doc/MbD

217



King's Lynn South Transport Major Scheme

- - County Council

Community Infrastructure Fund CIF2 =

Full Business Case

12.2 Procurement Route

The scheme will be delivered through Norfolk County Council
employing its existing Strategic Partners May Gurney and Mott
MacDonald. This will provide the following tangible benefits:

Sl g e
[ AT S PR

Faiitoree S st

Vv corrnon !

R AT AT S L I AR
FRLARY A EN O R PR T T F |

Freeng it

Avoidance of the substantial costs associated with
prequalfication, tender preparation and award process, with the
resultant savings available to fund EC! involvement during the
design phase thus securing maximum overail cost benefit,

The employment of the partners under NEC/ECC contract
terms and conditions is proven to engender a partnhering
approach to scheme development and delivery, with all parties
working together to avoid duplicated efiort, identify value
engineering solutions. provide robust programming and
mitigate problems. The proposed use of an Option C Target
Cost contract for the Works provides additicnal incentivisation
to deliver in a cost effective manner.

Early warning and compensation event procedures under
NEC/ECC contract provide the basis for close ongoing
moenitoring/control  of expenditure together with regular
forecasting of outturn costs aimed at minimising unexpected
changes in budget requirements and programme. Established
financial risk management and cost contro! procedures are in
place on other schemes of comparable size and will be adopted
for this scheme.

The ability to identify and target “up front” investigations/testing
aimed at reducing unforeseen risk and avoiding disruptive
design changes during the works, which could otherwise cause
significant programme and cost implications.

The ability 1o readily cost alternative proposals/materials to be
used in decision making process. Access to the established
Partnership supply chain to help provide accurate cost
infarmation.

Access to Norfolk County Council laboratory resources to
support investigations/testing, plus direct fiaison  with
Streetworks Co-ordinators to plan traffic management and
minimise disruption.

The employment of a well proven and successful delivery and
contract administration team approach, utilising perscnnel who
are currently working together on other schemes, to bring the
benefits of established effective working relationships and
processes.

TR Y 1T kot MR Tt

[2-2

Bodorw i IR D2opectanl 28I SNE Gy labioaed 28080 BE 01 Komps Tvan C15 AISBUW D Mot Oocomient S8 Docanent™d iad DovonsaenbiE C112

PO Fial Kooy doerd B

218



King’s Lynn South Transport Major Scheme LR TRE RS Rsats nty Council
Community Infrastructure Fund CIF2 bt COU t}’

Full Business Case

. The abilty to develop and implement service

diversion/protection requirements in close consultation with
statutory utilities to provide cost effective overall solutions
within programme constraints.

. A commitment to minimise defects at completion aimed at
avoiding unnecessary future traffic disruption.

To summarise the proposed procurement route should provide
assurance in terms of buildability, risk, programme and cost
effectiveness.

12.3 Coniract Type

Both the professional services and works contracts are based on the
New Engineering Contract suite of contracts. The New Engineering
Contract was written to embrace the principles of Rethinking
Construction and is designed to encourage team working and
remove conflict and confrontation. In fact the first words in the
document are that the Employer and Contractor are to act in a spirit
of trust and mutual co-operation

12.3.1 Professional Services

Mott MacDonald’'s contract is iet under the NEC Professional
Services Contract and their work is paid for on a time re-charge
basis. The contract is incentivised with savings generated by
initiatives and value engineering shared between the three pariners
with Norfolk County Council taking 50% and the Partners sharing the
other 50%. There is a further incentive avaitable in the contract with
the option of ordering work on a target cost basis but this will only be
used for large and clearly defined projects.

Mott MacDonald provide approximately one third of the design
resource for highway work and aiso carry out a great deal of
consultancy work on all aspects of the Planning and Transportation
service. The turnover through the contract is currently around £3.5
million per annum.

12-3

JAVRIZBIVORIIGA - 1T Cclober 2002 48 &
FrMerwich\WEM Projecet2 U900 SNE Tramsprian o, 99900 103 01 Kmgs | yirn 41 MEHUCWA Mol Docogent S FRE DecumennBingd Doicosnentik b, CIF2

B Frnal Revi cletMIEF

219



King's Lynn Scuth Transport Major Scheme
Community Infrastructure Fund CIF2

Full Business Case

= v County Coundl

12.32 Works

May Gurney's confract is let under the NEC Engineering and
Construction Contract and their work is paid for in different ways
depending on the type of work. Routine tasks such as grass cutling,
gully emptying, weed control and patching are paid on a schedule of
rates submitted with the tender. Surfacing schemes, surface
dressing and improvement schemes with a value less than £100k are
paid on a target cost basis with the target cost built up from a
schedule of tendered rates and schemes over £100k are paid on a
target cost basis with the target cost built up for the individual
scheme from first principles.

Early Contractor Involvement is a significant part of the Rethinking
Construction Principles and May Gurney are involved in the design
and estimating for the schemes they construct. For the schemes that
are target costed from first principles the build up of the target cost is
part of the ECI process and although May Gurney estimators lead
the process the designer is involved and the target is agreed by both
parties before an instruction to proceed is given. For target costed
schemes the out-turn cost is compared to the target and pain or gain
is shared between May Gurney and the County Gouncil.

The turnover through the contract is currently around £38 million per
annym.

12.4 Cantract Monitoring

Performance standards on all work carried out by the Partnership is
measured in a variety of ways including Key Performance Indicators,
independent audits on quality, finance and health and safety,
benchmarking of costs and customer satisfaction. On large schemes
designed and constructed by the Partnership, particularly those with
external stakeholders the performance of the partnership as a whole
is measured by all involved and this has provided a very useful guide
withy very encouraging resuits.

12-3

DIRNBO0AN Y T Eetaher 2N ol
1 NP e IATA Fropec st V02 - SNT Tramapurbitmm 2 DO B ke s Dy 10 MSBUW 0 Mot Dicoimw it FBUC DPaicsieont il Prcpmennt K] C2E2

1R Famal Readd doc! MR

220



221



222



()
38}
rm
o

creaiing a belie 2ia

W, Agency
Norfolk County Council: Planning & Our ref: AC/2008/107319/02-L01
Transportation Department Yourref: KW/MN
County Hall Martineau Lane ) E
Notwich " henr ngtj.&_q__ 24 Qctober, 2 i 08 . _
Norfolk *M-\ 32 N_f_\!'“ < B
Wike L momesNRS LD 7 we
[ 270CT e o
F.A.O. Kevin Ward j Or ; - e
H:\CTO’\ T e .
Dear Sir 1T —

POStL P RN P
CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW Bé?ﬁéé—'FE-.-OUIFLL SLUICE Rl!__ER NAR, oo
KING'S LYNN '

In response to the meeting held at our offices in Kings Lynn on 14 October 2008~ =~
between you and Andrew Leadbetter and Phil Kerridge of the Agency, and the

question raised regarding whether vehicles can pass over the main river Nar outfall
sluice. We have no objection in principle for vehicles to pass over the sluice as long

as a full inspection is carried out prior to any vehicles passing over the structure to
ascertain the loading the sluice can take and that it is in good state of repair.

Under the terms of the Water Resources Act 1991 and the Land Drainage Byelaws,
the prior written consent of the Agency is required for any proposed works or
structures in, under or within 9 metres of the top of the bank of the main river (Nar).
Please contact Phif Kerridge Tel.01480 483670 for further information in obtaining a
consent.

Yours faithfuily

-~
,'{', :_/.{’1'.’- i e S E e

MR MIKE DEWSBURY
Planning Liaison Officer

Direct dial 01480 483924
Direct fax 01480 435193
Direct e-mail Planning_Liaison.Anglian_Central@environment-agency.gov.uk

Environment Agency

Bromholme Lane, Brampton, Huntingdon, Cambridgeshire, PE28 4NE.

Customer services line: 08708 506 506

Email: enquines@environment-agency.gov.uk

wWww_environmeni-agency.qov.uk ;
End 223 -



Norfolk Green i

Hamiin Way, Kings Lynn, Norfolk PE3C 4NG
Telephone: 01553 776980 Facsimile: 01553 770891
Website: www.norfolkgreen.co.uk

Our Ref: BC/SA
24™ October 2008

Mr K Ward

Dept of Planning & Transportation
Norfolk County Council

County Hall

Martineau Lane

Norwich

Norfolk

NR1 2DH

Dear Mr Ward
King’s Lynn — CiF 2 bid

| refer to the series of meetings that you have involved me in, concerning the
King's Lynn CIF bid for central Government funding for works associated with the
forward development of the town.

| am writing to offer my support for the passenger transport elements of the bid.
Although a relatively smali town, King's Lynn, it suffers quite chronic traffic
congestion at fimes of day, and these are not only at conventional peak periods.
As a bus operator committed to running the most punctual service that we can,
and at the same time building the frequency and aftractiveness of our route
network based on the town, we are increasingly constrained by the time we have
to add to schedules for operational delays; this approximates to 8 minutes {about
13%) in each hour of excess dwell time, more at peaks. and that is despite
making a greater time allowance in our schedules at peak times of up to about
40%. Even so, this frequently does not prove sufficient extra resource. We
therefore use the BusNet GPS tracking system routinely as an operational
management tool, and deploy standby buses and drivers into the network at
varicus locations and times of the day as soon as we see nproblems beginning to
occur.

All of this adds cost to our operation only to promote punctuality; if this could be
more assured by virtue of the road network then we could divert that additional
resource into building frequencies or new routes. We have a track record of
doing this yet congestion is now really constraining our ability to do so. Our track
record is underpinned this year by being selected for the short-list for the UK Bus
Awards “Winning new passengers” award which is sponsored by the Deparntment
of Transport — they only small operator, and only one of two South Eastern
operators to be so honoured.

S0 West Travel Limited T/A Nard, Sacen: Do Mo, 3117358 England & Walas
Regislered Office: Hambn Way, King's Lynn, Norfoik PEI0 2NG
VAT Registration No. 566 S166 (19




[ believe that the benefits of the proposed bus priority developmenis are
considerable especially taken together as a single entity. They will help make
bus journey fimes more consistent which in turn can lead to reduced excess
dwell time, thereby freeing up resources to further develop the network. But,
more than that, they signal to bus users and motorists that this is the chosen
future mode of travel as the town develops, which is important even in times of
the economic downturn, as King's Lynn's town centre footfall, as measured by
digital recording, continues to rise fast against the national trend (September
2008 up by 14% compared to a national decline of 10%), and with 31% of all
people entering the town's retail heart doing so from the bus station.

This company is therefore committed to reinvesting any resources saved by
virtue of the package of measures, once implemented, into enhancing the
benefits directly back ta the users of passenger transport in the town,

Yous sincerely

Ben€olson
Managing Director

cc: Emma Taylor

225



The College fge
of West Anglia poeeef

Direct Telephane: 01553 815215
Direct Fax: 01553 815487
Direct Email.ggillespie@col-westanglia.ac.uk

GG/AB
28 QOctober 2008

Mr J Norton

Head of Regeneration

Barough Council of King's Lynn and West Norfolk
Chapel Sireet

Kings Lynn

Norfolk

Dear John
CIF 2 - Kings Lynn South Transport

The College of West Anglia is fullty supportive of the proposals contained in
the CIF 2 detailed business case for transport improvements in southern
King's Lynn. We belisve the proposed strategy for the South Gates
improvement will greatly assist road users.

it is to all of our advantages to improve the congestion at the south of the
town and as part of the a Section 106 agreement which will accompany the
detailed planning permission for the construction of a new college campus
within the Nar Ouse Regeneration Area, the College confirms that it is making
£500,000 available for transportation improvements in the area.

Yours sincerely

Gordon Gillespie
Director of Capital and Educational Developments

OQutstanding
226 20072008




227



228



King's Lynn South Transport Major Scheme
Community Infrastructure Fund GIF2
Fuil Business Case

it County Council

Appendix B Strategic Fit Tables

B-1
ZERHRBOLMIAA - 17 Ootiber 208A-) o |

PANars BB Progectn 2 11902 - SN Thansaoriainog] 44%) 2. 110 | Kings Ly C1F MEICW 0 Mot Docume st FBE | og iiswentilass) | vwumen\KE TR
BB Final Bevti dhoerMIEE®

229



Morwich Norhern Distributor Route . : :
Major Scheme Business Case CIF2 S T COUHW Coundi
Programme Entry Application

2.1.1  Alignment with Government, Regional and Local objectives

The objectives and outcomes of implementing the King's Lynn South Transport Major
Scheme, as part of the emerging land use and transport strategy, which inciudes the
accommodation of planned growth, have been considered for their alignment with
Government, regional and local objectives. For each strategy or initiative the goals
and objectives are shown down the side of the tables below and the King's Lynn
South Transport Major Scheme objectives across the top. Where a strategic fit exists,
text is provided to show the link. This assessment has been carried out for the
following sirategies or initiatives.

» Department for Transport - Towards a Sustainable Transport System
{October 2007)

« Department for Transport - The Eddingten Transport Study Report
(December 2006)

« East of England Development Agency - Regional Economic Strategy for the
East of England 2008-2031

»  Government Office for the East of England - East of England Plan - The
Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy for the East of England (May 2008)

+ The emerging King's Lynn Area Transportation Strategy
Norfolk County Council Local Transport Plan 2006-11 {(March 2006)

o Norfolk County Strategic Parinership — Norfolk Ambition - sustainable
community strategy for Norfolk 2003-2023 (March 2008)

It is clear from these tables that strong demonstrable links exist for the King's Lynn
South Transport Major Scheme to local, regional and national objectives. Strong
corretation consistently emerges when considering the economic, environmental and
social objectives of the various strategies considered.

230



T€C



[ANA



€ee



vee



Gec



9€¢



LEC



238



239



240



e



[ALA



Pree o~ €

TRIBAL Tribal Consulling 87-91 Newman Street T020 7079 9120 E urbanstudi @tribalgroup.co.uk
Urban Studio Team London WAT 3EY F 020 7079 9150 W www.tribalgroup.co.ukit i

Project Title Client RevC
King's Lynn Marina - Nar Diversion White Young Green

Drawing Title Project No 21328 Scale 1:1000@A1

Reiised Masiereian Drawing No 01 Date 01 December 2008

Sfell

SR

1,

R
=
3

transport spine

bus, car, pedestrian &

cycle bridge
h ~
<
~
X family housing
7 o
7 v 7, mixed use block
hdﬁ' ypumplng station
7 ’
4 4 ) ,h‘
~r ] /
> L /
7 < -—
& =
A P
alll ’ T8 34 =i
TS “e v " \ I ;,
s il e iy T Y VA 7
' » o 4 > e AT 7/

: '// 11 ///,/..::j‘ / '
‘ N

garden|

243



f-\] 1J b= { \fh\(

4 County Counc

Proposed changes to Harding’s
Way, King’s Lynn, Norfolk

Draft equality assessment -
early findings and
recommendations

4 May 2018

This assessment helps you to consider the impact of service changes on people
with protected characteristics. You can update this assessment at any time so
that it informs ongoing service planning and commissioning.

For more information please contact Jo Richardson, Equality & Diversity
Manager, email jo.richardson@norfolk.gov.uk, Tel: 01603 223816

244

&



Contents

Page
1. | The purpose of an equality assessment 3
2. | The legal context 3
3. | The assessment process 3
4. | The proposal 4
5. | Who is affected by this proposal 7
6. | Potential impact 8
7. Recommended/mitigating actions 11
8. Evidence used to inform this assessment 11
9. | Further information 11

24%




The purpose of an equality assessment

The purpose of an equality impact assessment is to enable elected members to
consider the potential impact of decisions on different people and communities prior
to decisions being taken. Mitigating actions can be developed if detrimental impact is
identified.

It is not always possible to adopt the course of action that will best promote the needs
of people with protected characteristics. However, assessments enable informed
decisions to be made, that take into account every opportunity to minimise
disadvantage.

The Legal context

Public authorities have a duty under the Equality Act 2010 to consider the
implications of proposals on people with protected characteristics. The Act states that
public bodies must pay due regard to the need to:

e Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is
prohibited by or under the Act’;

Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a relevant protected
characteristic? and people who do not share it3;

Foster good relations between people who share a relevant protected
characteristic and people who do not share it.

The full Act is available hers.

The|assessment process

This assessment comprises three phases:

» Phase 1 - evidence is gathered on the proposal, to examine who might be
affected and how. This includes reviewing the findings of contextual information
about local populations and other relevant data. Public consultation takes place.

» Phase 2 - the results are analysed, making sure that any potential impacts are
assessed. If the evidence indicates that the proposal may have a detrimental
impact on people with protected characteristics, mitigating actions are
considered.

Phase 3 — the findings are reported to Environment, Development & Transport
Committee on Friday 6th July 2018, to enable any impacts to be taken into
account before a decision is made by elected members.

246



The proposal

Overview

This proposal seeks to make changes to Harding’s Way in King’s Lynn, through a
Traffic Regulation Order (TRO).

The TRO was triggered by a decision by King’s Lynn and West Norfolk Borough
Council on 6 September 2017 to grant planning permission for the construction of
three new access roads off the southern end of Harding’s Way (planning reference
17/01008/F). The TRO was one of eleven conditions required by the Borough Council
to enable the scheme to go ahead.

Summary of the proposal

The technical detail of the proposal is set out later in this assessment. However, in
summary, Harding’s Way is not currently a residential area of King’s Lynn but it can
be used by pedestrians and cyclists as a shared path/cycleway to access King's Lynn
town centre (as an alternative to London Road) and Harding’s Pits, a ‘doorstep

green’.
Harding’s Way can be used by buses. Other vehicles are prohibited.
What will happen if the proposal goes ahead?

If the proposal goes ahead, three new access roads will be created off the southern
end of Harding’s Way, to create access to a new development (not yet built). At this
stage, initial designs by King’s Lynn Borough Council indicate that the development
will be primarily residential, with provision for around 90 parking spaces.

This would mean that:

¢ Instead of pedestrians being able to get from the southern end of Harding’s Way
to the northern end via the path/cycleway, with only one crossing point to
navigate', pedestrians will have to navigate an additional new crossing point at
the southern end of Harding’s Way, via a non-signalled crossing.

o It is difficult to estimate how much traffic would cross this new crossing point, as
this information is not yet available. However, initial designs by King’s Lynn
Borough Council indicate that the proposed development will be primarily
residential, with provision for around 90 parking spaces.

e Bus drivers and cyclists currently using Harding’s Way will have to observe
revised road markings when using the amended route.

' This current crossing point is situated towards the northern end of Harding’s Way, near the bridge.
All pedestrians are required to cross Harding’s Way at this point because the path/cycle way on the
western side of the carriageway ends, so pedestrians must cross the road to re-join it on the eastern

side.

247



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Information about Harding’s Way

Harding’s Way is currently restricted to all traffic for the majority of its length, bar 64
metres south of the Boal Street junction (just south of Boal Street Car Park).

Access is only authorised for:

e Public service vehicles (bus) being used as part of a service under section 22
Transport Act 2000, or

e A private service vehicle (bus) being used as part of an excursion or tour for
the transport of children from the school adjacent to Harding’s Way
(Whitefriars Church of England Primary Academy), or

¢ Bicycles.

The following organisations / vehicles are also allowed to access Harding’s Way for
specific purposes:

» Fire Brigade, Police or Ambulance emergency purposes

* Inthe service of a local authority or water authority in pursuance of statutory
powers or duties

» In connection with the maintenance, improvement or reconstruction of that
length of road or the laying, erection, alteration or repair in or adjacent to that
length of road of any sewer, water, flood defence, sluice control, or gas or
electricity apparatus or of any telecommunications apparatus as defined in
the Telecommunications Act 1984

e In connection with the provision of a universal postal service as defined in the
Postal Services Act 2000

e Harding’s Pits Community Association Ltd and/or its nominated contractors
for grounds maintenance.

The south end of Harding’s Way is bordered either side by land owned by King’s
Lynn and West Norfolk Borough Council and also a small group of industrial units.

There are currently no residential property frontages along the length of Harding’s
Way.

The north end of Harding’s Way is bordered by Harding’s Pits to the west which is a
five and a half acre site of green space open to the public, managed by Harding’s
Pits Community Association Ltd (HPCA Ltd), a not-for-profit limited company.
Harding'’s Pits is one of the largest ‘doorstep’ greens in the country. The Community
Association estimates that Harding’s Pits serves a local population of 6,000.

To the east runs the River Nar.

A length of shared cycle/pedestrian pathway currently runs along the west of the
carriageway along Harding’s Way, past the Bus Gate (a series of rising bollards that
only allow access to the vehicles stated elsewhere in this document). At the bridge
over the River Nar, pedestrian/cyclists must cross the road to the other side to re-join
the path/cycleway. The path/cycleway then continues on the east side of the
carriageway along Harding’s Way.

248



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

Technical detail about the Traffic Regulation Order

The TRO will change the current vehicular access for the southern end of Harding’s
Way only (access from Wisbech Road).

This is to allow access to land to the west and east of Harding’s Way which will be
gained via three new access roads, two of which will lead to primarily residential
developments (not yet built) and the third into existing commercial property
(Overton’s site).

This will mean that the first part of the road from the southern entrance to Harding’s
Way (before the Bus Gate) will become accessible to all traffic.

The access roads will have a speed restriction of 20 mph. Traffic on Harding’s Way is
restricted to 30mph.

The existing bus gate at the southern entrance to Harding’s Way will be moved 15
metres north from its existing position. This is to allow HGV access to the new
entrance to the Overton’s site as well as access for waste collection / delivery
vehicles.

This will mean that the remainder of Harding’s Way (northern end) will remain
restricted to traffic specified elsewhere in this document

The junction crossing at the southern end of Harding’s Way (along Wisbech Road)
will remain signal controlled for pedestrians and cyclists.

Following implementation of the new access point to the Overton's site from
Harding’s Way, traffic movements from the existing access/egress arrangement on
Wisbech Road should be significantly reduced, particularly for large vehicles. A
reduction in movements at the existing location will benefit users of the shared use
facility on Wisbech Road as there will be reduced conflict.

To the east side of Harding’s Way there is a level grass verge with re-enforcement.
Pedestrians are able to walk on the surface away from traffic but the section ‘dead-

ends’.

A shared cycle / pedestrian pathway will be built in place of this grass verge to
provide pedestrian / cycle access to the Overton’s site and the site to the east of

Harding’s Way.

Each of the three access roads joining Harding’s Way will require vehicular access /
egress over the shared use (pedestrian / cycle) pathway.

These crossing points will consist of dropped kerbing either side of the access road
to allow easy access/egress for pedestrians / cyclists on to the access road and then
back on to the shared use pathway.

Give Way road markings will be utilised at each of the new accesses proposed on
Harding's Way. However, unlike a normal layout where the Give Way markings
would be implemented at the edge of the new access adjacent to Harding’s Way,
they will be set back into the access behind the crossing point. Setting back the

248



markings will further reinforce that traffic accessing/egressing these new areas
should be giving priority to those utilising the shared use facility.

28. These crossing points will not be signal controlled and material either side of the

crossing will be the same material as that used in the rest of the pathway (i.e. not
tactile paving).

Accessibility and safety considerations to be incorporated into the TRO

29. A number of measures are proposed to facilitate accessibility and safety for
pedestrians:

 In order to prioritise the shared path/cycle way, each of the three access roads

joining Harding’s Way will include the following control measures for vehicular
access/egress:

o As mentioned earlier, Give Way road markings will be utilised at each of the
new accesses proposed on Harding’s Way. However, unlike a normal
layout where the Give Way markings would be implemented at the edge of
the new access adjacent to Harding’s Way, they will be set back into the
access behind the crossing point. Setting back the markings will reinforce
that traffic accessing/egressing these new areas should be giving priority to
those utilising the shared use facility.

o Dropped kerbing either side of the access road to clearly define where the
shared pathway and access road cross and to allow easy access/egress for
pedestrians / cyclists moving from the shared pathway on to the access
road and then back again.

o Limitation of vehicular speed to 20mph for the three access roads.

» The crossing which links both sides of Harding’s Way across Wisbech Road will
remain signal controlled, providing pedestrians and cyclists with an alternative
other than crossing the carriageway to gain access from one side of Harding’s
Way to the other before any of the access roads.

* Following implementation of the new access point to the Overton’s site from
Harding’s Way, traffic movements from the existing access/egress arrangement
on Wisbech Road should be significantly reduced, particularly for large vehicles.
A reduction in movements at the existing location will benefit users of the shared
use facility on Wisbech Road as there will be reduced conflict.

» Existing street lighting will remain unchanged.

» Parked vehicles along Harding’s Way will not be allowed to obstruct the shared
path/cycle way, as double yellow lines will remain in place.

Who is affected by the proposal?

30. This proposal affects all current users of Harding’s Way - particularly pedestrians,
cyclists, public transport users and bus drivers. This includes users with protected
characteristics, e.g. disabled and older users, younger people and parents.

250



31.

S

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

89.

There is no formal data on the numbers or characteristics of the pedestrians, cyclists
or public transport users currently using Harding’s Way. However, local intelligence
suggests that Harding’s Way is well used by people as a pedestrian route to access
King’s Lynn town centre and Harding’s Pits.

The population of King’s Lynn and West Norfolk is approximately 147,451 (2011
census).

The health of people in King's Lynn and West Norfolk is varied compared with the
England average. Life expectancy for both men and women is similar to the England
average, although life expectancy is 5.8 years lower for men and 2.5 years lower for
women in the most deprived areas of King's Lynn and West Norfolk than in the least
deprived areas. Levels of moderate and severe physical disability are higher in King's
Lynn and West Norfolk compared to the Norfolk and England average.

According to the 2011 Census, King’s Lynn & West Norfolk has a similar proportion
of people belonging to ethnic minorities as in the county. Some 7.4% of the
population belong to an ethnic group other than White British or White Irish, as
against around 15 per cent in England and 7 per cent in Norfolk as a whole.

[Note: this section on the profile of King’s Lynn is being developed and the final
equality assessment to be presented to Environment, Development & Transport
Committee on 6 July 2018 will set out full details of the local area.]

Potential impact

This proposal will affect all users of Harding’s Way (e.g. those identified in paragraph
30 above). However, it is only likely to have a defrimental impact on disabled
pedestrians — particularly blind and visually impaired pedestrians, and pedestrians
with multi-sensory impairments (e.g. people who are blind and deaf).

At this stage there is no evidence that the proposal would have a significant
detrimental impact on people from other groups — e.g. parents with prams, younger
children or older people without disabilities.

The section below explains the reasons for this.
Impact on people with visual/multi-sensory impairments

The potential detrimental impact on people who have visual or multi-sensory
impairments arises because people from these groups find non-signalled crossings
challenging (or impossible) to navigate. This is because they cannot use the cues
utilised by sighted people - they cannot use sight to judge speed, distance or the
intention of the driver, or hear whether a vehicle is approaching. Visually/multi-
sensory impaired people argue that it is unreasonable to ask them to ‘trust’ that
drivers will always comply with speed limits or road markings and stop if they see
someone waiting to cross the road, because it is impossible to guarantee that they
will not be exposed to a level of risk when they step out into the road.

The introduction of silent electric vehicles is an additional factor to be taken into

account, because sound (where someone does not have a hearing impairment)
cannot be used to alert a person that a vehicle is approaching.

258



40.

41.

42.

43.

44,

45.

46.

47.

[n addition, the use of tactile material to indicate the presence of a crossing is an
important factor in the ability of visually/multi-sensory impaired person to navigate it.
As noted above, the material at either side of the proposed crossing point will be the
same material as that used in the rest of the pathway (i.e. not tactile paving).

The decision not to use tactile paving and to maintain the same materials along the
route has been made in order to reinforce the understanding that the shared use
facility has priority across the new accesses. Implementation of tactile paving would
suggest that the path should be giving way to vehicles turning in and out of the side
road, which is contrary to what is trying to be achieved.

It should also be noted that tactile materials sometimes cause significant problems
for people in wheelchairs, due to the friction and vibration they trigger when the
wheelchair passes over them, which can be very painful. At a national level, this
issue is being debated to find a solution that meets the needs of all.

Impact on disabled people with restricted mobility, long term health conditions,
learning disabilities or other issues

People with restricted mobility or who have conditions that mean they walk slowly or
need longer than usual to make decisions can also find non-signalled crossings
challenging. This is because they may be concerned that they will not be able to
cross fast enough or they may not be able to judge distance or time effectively.

However, these users should still be able to cross the road, albeit with more care,
planning and some greater difficulty than people who are not disabled.

Potential impact on parents with prams, or young people with no adult present

Parents with prams or younger people without an adult or carer present may be
anxious about navigating a crossing point in the event of a high volume of traffic.

However, these users should still be able to cross the road, albeit with more care,
planning and some greater difficulty than others.

An important factor to take into account when considering the impact on
pedestrians

Whilst it is important to recognise that all non-signalled crossings are challenging (or
impossible in some cases) for disabled people to navigate, it must be noted that all
pedestrians of Harding’'s Way already have to navigate at least two non-signalled
crossings when using Harding’s Way to access the town centre:

o Pedestrians must cross Harding’s Way from the west side to the east side near
the bridge on Harding’s Way, when the path/cycle way ends and requires
pedestrians and cyclists to cross to the other side to re-join a new path/cycle
way. This crossing is marked by tactile paving.

e Pedestrians must navigate at least one other non-signalled crossing after exiting
Harding’s Way at the northern end to access the town centre (e.g. crossings
located at The Friar’'s, Bridge Street, Boal Street etc). None of these crossings
have the enhanced level of safety/accessibility proposed for Harding’s Way (e.g.
a Give Way line set back from the crossing point; fully dropped kerbs).

252



48.

49.

50.

o1.

52.

53.

54.

Whilst these factors do not diminish the disadvantage that crossings place on
disabled people (or others), it does mean that pedestrians who use Harding’s Way as
a route to the town centre are already required to navigate at least one challenging
crossing. Based on the evidence currently available, the crossing points proposed as
part of the TRO will not be as challenging as the crossing points at the northern end
of Harding’s Way.

Impact on cyclists

Cyclists will be affected due to increased traffic movements at the southern end of
Harding's Way. This will be a mixture of existing buses, HGV's entering Harding’s
Way in order to gain entry to the Overton’s site and vehicles accessing the two sites,
both during construction phase and afterwards. This impact will be restricted to the
first part of Harding’s Way after which the route will remain closed to all traffic except
that mentioned elsewhere in this document.

Additional provision for cyclists not wishing to use the carriageway will be provided
through an additional shared cycle/pedestrian pathway to the east of Harding’s Way.

The provision of a shared cycle/pathway on both sides of Harding's Way does have
the potential to create conflict between some pedestrians (disabled users, including
those with sensory impairments, children, elderly people) however the continuation of
an alternative route for cyclists along the carriageway will mitigate some of this.

Impact on bus passengers

The scheme should have a minimal impact on existing bus users as it does not
include any suggested changes to the existing service and no additional bus stops
are planned within the scheme.

Initial conclusions

There is no legal impediment to installing the crossing point. It would be implemented
in full accordance with planning and highway design national guidance and policy,
and as part of this, measures will be adopted (detailed above) to facilitate access and
safety for pedestrians. Similar crossings are replicated across the UK.

However, at this stage of the process, it is possible to conclude that the proposal may
have a detrimental impact on some disabled pedestrians (particularly people with
visual/multi-sensory impairments) for the reasons sets out in this assessment —
namely that disabled pedestrians will have three instead of two crossings to navigate
when using Harding’s Way as a route to access the town centre.

It is important to note that this is an early equality impact assessment and that public
consultation on the TRO may highlight unforeseen issues or impacts on disabled
people or other users that are not currently apparent.

Where this is the case, this equality assessment will be updated to ensure that it is
accurate and fully captures all relevant issues so that Environment, Development &
Transport Committee is appraised of these before elected members make a decision
on 6 July 2018.

2550




Recommended actions

1. | Public consultation on the proposal to take place from 18th By 12 June 2018
May to 12th June 2018. As part of the consultation, the views
of people with protected characteristics who may be affected
(disabled people; older people; parents of children and with
prams etc) will be analysed, to enable any impacts to be
explored further in this equality impact assessment.
2. | Following the end of public consuitation, designers and By 22 June 2018
planners to consider the findings and whether any additional
measures could be taken to mitigate or remove any
disadvantage.
3. | Afinal equality impact assessment to be published setting out| By 29 June 2018
the findings, conclusions and any recommended mitigating

actions that could be taken, and reported to Environment,
Development and Transport Committee on 6 July 2018.

Evidence used to inform this assessment

e Equality Act 2010
» Public Sector Equality Duty
e Relevant business intelligence
o Harding’s Pits Community Association Ltd website
o 2017 Public Health profile for King’s Lynn and West Norfolk, 4 July 2017
o King's Lynn Riverfront Development Plan — consultation document March
2017
o Overcoming barriers and identifying opportunities for everyday walking for
disabled people — Living Street May 2016
o Manual for streets (2007)
o The Women and Equalities Select Committee Report, ‘Building for Equality
— Disability and the Urban Environment’ (April 2017) / Government
response (March 2018)
o Creating better streets: Inclusive and accessible places — CIHT (2018)
e Data and information about Norfolk's population

Further information
If you need this document in large

IN A print, audio, Braille, alternative format
or in a different language please
TRAN contact Beverley Herron on 0344 800

.. 8020.
communication for all

11
254



" Prohibited conduct:

Direct discrimination occurs when someone is treated less favourably than another person
because of a protected characteristic they have or are thought to have, or because they
associate with someone who has a protected characteristic.

Indirect discrimination occurs when a condition, rule, policy or practice in your organisation that
applies to everyone disadvantages people who share a protected characteristic.

Harassment is “unwanted conduct related to a relevant protected characteristic, which has the
purpose or effect of violating an individual's dignity or creating an intimidating, hostile, degrading,
humiliating or offensive environment for that individual”.

Victimisation occurs when an employee is treated badly because they have made or supported a
complaint or raised a grievance under the Equality Act; or because they are suspected of doing
so. An employee is not protected from victimisation if they have maliciously made or supported
an untrue complaint.

2 The protected characteristics are:

Age — e.g. a person belonging to a particular age or a range of ages (for example 18 to 30

year olds).

Disability - a person has a disability if she or he has a physical or mental impairment which
has a substantial and long-term adverse effect on that person's ability to carry out normal
day-to-day activities.

Gender reassignment - the process of transitioning from one gender to another.
Marriage and civil partnership

Pregnancy and maternity

Race - refers to a group of people defined by their race, colour, and nationality (including
citizenship) ethnic or national origins.

Religion and belief - has the meaning usually given to it but belief includes religious and
philosophical beliefs including lack of belief (such as Atheism).

Sex —e.g. a man or a woman.

Sexual orientation - whether a person's sexual attraction is towards their own sex, the

opposite sex or to both sexes.

3 The Act specifies that having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity might
mean:

e Removing or minimizing disadvantages suffered by people who share a relevant protected
characteristic that are connected to that characteristic;

e Taking steps to meet the needs of people who share a relevant protected characteristic that
are different from the needs of others;

e Encouraging people who share a relevant protected characteristic to participate in public life or
in any other activity in which participation by such people is disproportionately low.

4 Having due regard to the need to foster good relations between people and communities

involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to (a) tackle prejudice, and (b) promote
understanding.

2552



Pre-Screening Equality Impact
Assessment

18
Borough Council of & ; i,;,
n‘_ =

'r

King’s Lynn &
West Norfolk }

Name of policy/service/function

Notice of Motion 4/19

Is this a new or existing policy/
service/function?

Existing

Brief summary/description of the main
aims of the policy/service/function being
screened.

Please state if this policy/service is rigidly
constrained by statutory obligations

Regeneration initiatives in King’s Lynn.

Note — this is a Notice of Motion for the borough
council to cease some of its development proposals
in King’s Lynn. An EIA has been undertaken by
Norfolk County Council in respect of the Traffic

Regulation Orders included within the proposals

which identified detrimental impacts on some people
with disabilities and people with young children.

Question

Answer

1. Is there any reason to believe that the
policy/service/function could have a
specific impact on people from one or
more of the following groups according to
their different protected characteristic,
for example, because they have particular
needs, experiences, issues or priorities or
in terms of ability to access the service?

Please tick the relevant box for each
group.

NB. Equality neutral means no negative
impact on any group.

Positive

Negative

Neutral

Unsure

Age

Disability

Gender

Gender Re-assignment

Marriage/civil partnership

Pregnancy & maternity

Race

Religion or belief

Sexual orientation

Other (e.g. low income)

< | 2| 2] 2| 2] <] &< | <

256




Question

Answer

Comments

2. |s the proposed policy/service likely
to affect relations between certain
equality communities or to damage
relations between the equality
communities and the Council, for
example because it is seen as
favouring a particular community or
denying opportunities to another?

No

3. Could this policy/service be
perceived as impacting on communities
differently?

No

4. |s the policy/service specifically
designed to tackle evidence of
disadvantage or potential
discrimination?

No

5. Are any impacts identified above
minor and if so, can these be
eliminated or reduced by minor
actions?

If yes, please agree actions with a
member of the Corporate Equalities
Working Group and list agreed actions
in the comments section

Actions: The EIA undertaken by NCC
concluded that the proposal may have a
significant detrimental impact on some
disabled people, and also a detrimental
impact on some children. The NCC EIA
recommended that, as mitigation, people
concerned about their ability to use the
proposed new crossing point should be
given the opportunity to discuss their
concerns with NCC’s Road Safety Team, to
obtain advice and support on using the
crossing point. This recommendation
should be actioned from the date of
construction and the Borough Council
should ensure that this action is progressed
as part of its monitoring process. However,
it should be noted that the final decision
relating to the Road Traffic Order is the
responsibility of NCC, not BCKLWN.

NCC’s EIA can be viewed in full at:
https://norfolkcc.cmis.uk.com/norfolkcc/Mee
tings/tabid/128/ctl/ViewMeetingPublic/mid/4
96/Meeting/1405/Committee/18/Default.asp
X

Actions agreed by EWG member:
Becky BOX......ccoovvviiiiiinnnn,

If ‘yes’ to questions 2 - 4 a full impact assessment will be required unless
comments are provided to explain why this is not felt necessary: Not Applicable

Decision agreed by EWG member: .......ccocoiiiiiiiiiiiicicrrirc e s s e e

Assessment completed by:

Name Matthew Henry MRICS

Job title Assistant Director Property& Projects
257

Date 28t January 2020



https://norfolkcc.cmis.uk.com/norfolkcc/Meetings/tabid/128/ctl/ViewMeetingPublic/mid/496/Meeting/1405/Committee/18/Default.aspx
https://norfolkcc.cmis.uk.com/norfolkcc/Meetings/tabid/128/ctl/ViewMeetingPublic/mid/496/Meeting/1405/Committee/18/Default.aspx
https://norfolkcc.cmis.uk.com/norfolkcc/Meetings/tabid/128/ctl/ViewMeetingPublic/mid/496/Meeting/1405/Committee/18/Default.aspx
https://norfolkcc.cmis.uk.com/norfolkcc/Meetings/tabid/128/ctl/ViewMeetingPublic/mid/496/Meeting/1405/Committee/18/Default.aspx

258



Agenda Item 12

REPORT TO CABINET

Open/Exempt Would any decisions proposed :

Any especially | Mandatory/ Be entirely within Cabinet’'s powers to decide  ¥ES/NO
affected Need to be recommendations to Council YES/NO
Wards Discretionary /

All King’s Is it a Key Decision YES/NG
Lynn Operational

Lead Member: ClIr Richard Blunt Other Cabinet Members consulted: Clir lan Devereux

E-mail: clir.richard.blunt t-norfolk. .uk
clir.richard.blunt@west-norfolk gov.u Other Members consulted: None

Lead Officers: Dave Robson/ Alan Gomm Other Officers consulted:
E-mail: dave.robson@west-norfolk.gov.uk | Peter Jermany, Evalyn Drake, Mark Fuller, lan Parkes
Direct Dial: 01553 616302

Financial Policy/ Statutory Equal Impact Risk Environmental
Implications Personnel Implications Assessment Management Considerations
¥ES/NO Implications ¥YES/NO ¥ES/NO Implications ¥ES/NO
¥ES/NO If YES: Pre- ¥ES/NO
screening/ Full
Assessment

Date of meeting: 4" February 2020

MOTION TO COUNCIL 6/19 - CLLR F BONE — HARDINGS WAY

Summary

Motion 6/19 seeks to review the use of Harding’s Way for general traffic which
has been put forward as one of two options for Harding’s Way as part of the
King’s Lynn Transport Strategy.

Recommendation

That Cabinet note Motion 6/19 but that the detailed work requested as part of
the Motion would be completed as part of the future detail design phase and
as part of any planning application should that option be taken forward as part
of the King’s Lynn Transport Strategy (KLTS).

Reason for Decision
To consider Motion 6/19

259




1 Background

1.1 Motion to Council 6/19 was submitted to Full Council in October 2019
by Councillor F Bone. The matter was referred to Cabinet for consideration
and then report back to Full Council in due course. Cabinet have requested a
report to consider the Motion and its potential impacts.

2 Options Considered

2.1 The Motion calls for Cabinet to bring forward a report detailing all
aspects of Harding’s Way to include, but not exclusively, implications of a
nature that cover: -

Legal

Financial

Social

Environmental

Highways Safety

Highways Impact Assessment

2.2  Currently Norfolk County Council and the Borough Council are working
on developing and adopting the KLTS. This work is ongoing and will go
through a separate process of being reviewed and then adopted by both
Norfolk County Council and the Borough Council. The current timetable for
adoption is:

e KLWN Regeneration and Development Committee on 28 January 2020

e NCC Infrastructure and Development Select Committee on 29 January
2020

e NCC Cabinet on 3 February 2020

e KLWN Cabinet on 4 February 2020

2.3 The KLTS has identified 33 options for King’'s Lynn, two of which relate
to Harding’s Way.

24 The Motion calls on detailed work to be completed to review the
impacts but also states it "will not fund any and all work carried out in
association with Harding’s Way until this Council has considered the report
from Cabinet”. To enable Cabinet to report on the matters detailed in the
Motion, Cabinet must first commission the work with NCC to complete the
detailed work necessary to review its impacts. The wording of the Motion is
contradictory.

2.5 This Motion is premature; no final decision on Harding’s Way has been
taken to date. Two options have been highlighted in the KLTS but further work
on both options needs to be completed before any final decision can be taken.
Once a decision has been taken, then the work suggested as part of the
Motion will need to be completed as part of a Planning Application.

260



3 Policy Implications

3.1 The Motion is clearly seeking to review the specific proposal MHN5
contained in the KLTS regarding the use of Harding’s Way for general traffic.

3.2 The KLTS has put forwmard measure MHN5S for Harding’s Way to
investigate options to allow additional traffic. This proposal would carry out
further work so that the potential benefits and negative impacts of that
measure can be considered in full. This work would be carried out if the KLTS
is adopted by both NCC and Borough Council and funding is identified. The
Motion seeks to duplicate or bring forward this work.

3.3 The Harding’'s Way measure MHN5 should not be considered in
isolation as specified by the Motion, but it must be considered in line with
other measures contained in the KLTS and the overall impact on the highway
network in King’s Lynn.

4 Financial Implications

4.1 No funding has currently been allocated to implement any of the
Harding’s Way measures contained within KLTS. Once KLTS has been
adopted, then funding will need to be secured so that the measures contained
in the Implementation Plan can be progressed.

4.2 The measures described within the Motion have not been carried out to
date. Additional funding will need to be secured to complete the work
described within the Motion.

5 Personnel Implications

5.1 None identified

6 Environmental Considerations

6.1  The potential environmental impacts of implementing KLTS MHNS5
have yet to be considered in detail as there is no final design for this proposal.
Once a final design has been agreed then the impact on air quality can be
assessed. It should be noted that it is not just the impact along Harding’s Way
but also the traffic flow along the adjacent highway network that will need to
be considered.

6.2  Air quality monitoring is currently being carried out using Diffusion
Tubes at three sites adjacent to Harding Ways.

Table 1: Nitrogen Dioxide Annual Mean Levels in ug/m3

Site ID 2015 | 2016 | 2017 | 2018 | Annual Mean Objective

89 - The Friars 13.3 | 13.0 [13.2 | 13.2 | 40ug/m?3

69 — Friars Street | 12.8 | 12.7 | 12.5 | 13.7 | 40ug/m?

70 — The Friars 124 123 [12.7 | 12.7 | 40ug/m?3

261




6.3 The figures in Table 1 overleaf should be compared against the
National Air Quality Strategy annual mean objective for Nitrogen Dioxide of
40ug/m3.

7 Statutory Considerations

71 None identified.

8 Equality Impact Assessment (EIA)

8.1 A pre-screening EIA has been completed and is attached. No adverse
issues have been identified. Further design work will be required for each of
the potential 2 schemes for Harding’'s Way. As part of the further detailed
work, any potential impacts on each protected equality group will be
considered and mitigated where required.

9 Risk Management Implications

9.1 No risk management implications have been identified as the final
decision on MHNS has yet to be determined.

10 Declarations of Interest / Dispensations Granted
None

11 Background Papers
KLTS Stage 3 Report here https://www.west-
norfolk.gov.uk/info/20010/regeneration/696/kings lynn transport study

262


https://www.west-norfolk.gov.uk/info/20010/regeneration/696/kings_lynn_transport_study
https://www.west-norfolk.gov.uk/info/20010/regeneration/696/kings_lynn_transport_study
https://www.west-norfolk.gov.uk/info/20010/regeneration/696/kings_lynn_transport_study

Motion 6/19 Submitted by Councillor F Bone
This Council notes:-

Harding’s Way in South Lynn was built as part of a £5.3 million Government
funded scheme to allow the NORA development to proceed and to help
reduce pollution on London Road

When planning permission was granted, in 2009, it was for public transport,
and not general traffic. Prohibition Orders were put in place to prohibit traffic
entering Harding’s Way from Wisbech Road.

A senior highways engineer of Norfolk Highways Authority who advised the
Norfolk Casualty Reduction Partnership Board on highways safety issues
wrote to state that Harding’s Way was only for pedestrians, cyclists and public
transport and was not safe for any other use.

Therefore, this Council calls on the Cabinet to bring a report to this Council
detailing all aspects of Harding’s Way to include, but not exclusively,
implications of a nature that cover:

Legal

Financial

Social

Environmental

Highways Safety

Highways Impact Assessment

This Council instructs the Chief Executive to write informing Norfolk County
Council that this Council will not fund any and all work carried out in
association with Harding’s Way until this Council has considered the report
from Cabinet.

263



Pre-Screening Equality Impact
Assessment

Borough Council of
King’s Lynn &
West Norfolk }

{o
g

'r

Name of policy/service/function

Motion 6/19 Review

Is this a new or existing policy/
service/function?

New / Existing (delete as appropriate)

Brief summary/description of the main
aims of the policy/service/function being
screened.

Please state if this policy/service is rigidly
constrained by statutory obligations

The Motion seeks to pre-empt the decision on the
use of Harding’s Way for general traffic. KLTS has
yet to determine if this option should be taken
forward.

KLTS will be adopted by both BCKLWN & NCC. A
planning application with EIA will be required.

As more detailed design work is completed on the
options, an assessment will be made on the
equalities impacts.

Question Answer
1. Is there any reason to believe that the
policy/service/function could have a o Qg | o
specific impact on people from one or 2 ‘g = 5
more of the following groups according to ol 2| 2| 5
their different protected characteristic,
for example, because they have particular Age X
needs, experiences, issues or priorities or
in terms of ability to access the service? Disability X
Gender X
Please tick the relevant box for each Gender Re-assignment X
group.
Marriage/civil partnership X
NB. Equality neutral means no negative Pregnancy & maternity X
impact on any group.
P y grotp Race X
Religion or belief X
Sexual orientation X
Other (eg low income) X

264




Question

Answer Comments

2. Is the proposed policy/service likely to
affect relations between certain equality
communities or to damage relations
between the equality communities and the
Council, for example because it is seen as
favouring a particular community or
denying opportunities to another?

¥Yes / No

3. Could this policy/service be perceived
as impacting on communities differently?

¥es / No

4. Is the policy/service specifically
designed to tackle evidence of
disadvantage or potential discrimination?

¥es / No

5. Are any impacts identified above minor
and if so, can these be eliminated or
reduced by minor actions?

If yes, please agree actions with a member
of the Corporate Equalities Working Group
and list agreed actions in the comments
section

¥es / No Actions:

Actions agreed by EWG member:

Alison Delmonty

If ‘yes’ to questions 2 - 4 a full impact assessment will be required unless comments are
provided to explain why this is not felt necessary:

N/A

Decision agreed by EWG member: Alison Delmonty

Assessment completed by:

Dave Robson

Name
Job title Environmental Health Manager - Environment
Date 17.1.2020

265




Agenda Item 16

REPORT TO CABINET

Open/Exempt

Any especially
affected
Wards

All King’s
Lynn

Mandatory/
Discretionary /

Operational

Would any decisions proposed :

Is it a Key Decision

Be entirely within Cabinet’'s powers to decide
Need to be recommendations to Council

¥ES/NO
YES/NO

YES/NO

Lead Member: Clir Richard Blunt

E-mail: clir.richard.blunt@west-norfolk.gov.uk

Other Cabinet Members consulted: ClIr lan Devereux

Other Members consulted:

Lead Officers: Dave Robson/Alan Gomm
E-mail: dave.robson@west-norfolk.gov.uk

Direct Dial: 01553 616302

Other Officers consulted:
Peter Jermany, Mark Fuller, Evalyn Drake, Humphrey

Jamieson, lan Parkes

Financial
Implications
YES/NO

Policy/
Personnel
Implications
¥ES/NO

Statutory
Implications
YES/NOG

Equal Impact
Assessment
¥ES/NO

If YES: Pre-
screening/ Full
Assessment

Risk
Management
Implications
¥ES/NO

Environmental
Considerations
YES/NO

Date of meeting:

4t February 2020

KING’S LYNN TRANSPORT STRATEGY

Summary

A transport strategy for King’'s Lynn has been drawn up after reviewing over
100 transport proposals for King’s Lynn. This work has produced a balanced
package of measures which allow for growth up to 2036.

Recommendations

1 That Cabinet note the consultation responses received as part of the
consultation process and note that these are recognised in the proposal

2 That Cabinet adopt the King’s Lynn Transport Strategy (KLTS)
Implementation Plan attached as Appendix A

Reason for Decision
To allow the Implementation Plan to be implemented

266




1 Background

1.1 The King’s Lynn Transport Strategy (KLTS) work started in 2018. A
project group of officers from Norfolk County Council, Borough Council of
King’s Lynn & West Norfolk and consultant WSP was formed to oversee this
project.

1.2 The Stage 1 “Evidence Gathering and Analysis of Current and Future
Transport Problems and Opportunities” report was completed in June 2018
and went out for Stakeholder consultation in September 2018.

1.3 The project vision statement is “To support sustainable economic
growth in King’s Lynn by facilitating journey reliability and improved travel
mode choice for all, whilst contributing to improve air quality; safety; and
protection of the built and historic environment”.

1.4  The agreed objectives of the project are:

e Provide a safe environment for travel by all modes;

e Encourage town centre accessibility by all modes whilst conserving
and enhancing King’s Lynn’s rich historic environment;

Support sustainable housing and economic growth;

Reduce the need to travel by car through development planning;
Manage traffic congestion in King’s Lynn;

Increase active travel mode share for short journeys;

Promote and encourage the use of public transport;

Reduce harmful emissions and air quality impacts.

1.5 The stage 2 Option Appraisal report was completed in June 2019.

1.6  The stage 3 report was completed in August 2019. It has gone through
another round of stakeholder consultation in September 2019. The report has
also been reviewed by the King’'s Lynn Area Consultative Committee in
November 2019.

1.7 . The stage 3 KLTS report has now been completed and has formed
the basis of the Implementation Plan which is attached as Appendix A.

2 Options Considered

2.1 As part of the preparation of the strategy traffic counts were conducted
along the major roads. 114 different conceptual options have been
considered as part of the review. WSP have used two different traffic models
to help determined the shortlist of 33 options contained in the strategy. The
long list of options went through an option appraisal process assessment tool
based on the Department for Transport’s Early Assessment and Sifting Tool
(EAST) which compares the Strategic, Economic, Managerial, Financial and
Commercial case for each transport option.

267



2.2  The 33 options have been split in to Short, Medium and Long terms:-

o Short-term options are planned for delivery by 2022;

o Medium-term options are planned to be delivered between 2023
and 2030;
o Long-term options are planned for delivery beyond 2030

2.3 The Transport Strategy includes a balanced range of strategic and
local highway capacity improvement schemes alongside improvement
schemes that could address issues with reliability on the existing bus network.
These sit alongside the potential to make further improvements to the existing
cycling and walking network to further support the already high mode share
for journey to work for these active modes of travel.

2.4 A single mode or option cannot address the transport issues in King’s
Lynn. As such, a package of measures is required including strategic and
local car and non-car based options that enhance:
o Local Highway Network capacity;
Strategic Highway Network capacity
The bus provision;
Rail services and King’s Lynn Railway Station;
Walking and Cycling infrastructure;
Parking provisions and management; and
Smarter Choices (e.g. Travel Plans)

2.5 The adopted strategy will be overseen by a Senior Member/ Senior
Officer West Norfolk Transport and Infrastructure Group.

2.6  The current joint NCC/ BCKLWN Officer Project Group will continue to
implement the agreed implementation plan which will provide a pipeline of
possible transport schemes and measures, agreed between the Borough and
County Councils that can be developed to respond to funding opportunities as
they arise.

2.7  Further work is ongoing to develop some measures in the plan and
further scheme development work is proposed in 2020 subject to identifying
additional revenue funding.

3 Policy Implications

3.1 No conflicts with existing planning policy or air quality management
plan (AQMP) are noted. The AQMP will be revised and updated to reflect the
proposals set out in the KLTS Implementation Plan.

4 Financial Implications

41 This work has been funded from the Norfolk Business Rates Pool fund,
by £150k, with £75k match funding provided by both the Borough and County
Councils to make a total of £300k.

268



4.2 A separate bid to the Norfolk Business Rates Pool fund has already
been made to fund feasibility work into the Southgates roundabout and
London Road improvement options. This work has just been completed and
the outcomes are being fed into the Future High Street Fund bid.

4.3  The Future High Streets Fund bid will include transport themes projects
that will include highway alterations around the South Gates and at the John
Kennedy Road/ Dock entrance junction.

4.4  Funding to carry out any of the remaining 33 options will need to be
allocated.

5 Personnel Implications

5.1  None identified at this stage.

6 Environmental Considerations

6.1  The potential changes to the transport infrastructures will consider the
environmental impacts to provide overall improvements in air quality where
feasible. Research suggests that transportation is a significant emitter of
pollutants harmful to health, habitats, ecologies, the local built and natural
environment as well as having links to climate issues. Combustion-engine
powered transportation produce destructive pollutants such as Carbon
Dioxide (CO2), Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) and Particulate Matter (PM10 and
PM2.5) which are likened to concerns such as rising climate temperatures,
respiratory issues and acid rain.

6.2  Overall, the transport options highlighted in tables 6-1 to 6-10 aim to
provide an improvement in traffic flow with potential positive impacts on
environmental conditions, particularly in terms of air quality. For example,
schemes may incorporate the optimisation of traffic flows which reduces idling
vehicles and can lead to improved journey times which is in accordance with
good practice and promoting sustainable transport systems.

6.3  Further work on understanding and quantifying the air quality impacts
will be undertaken from the traffic modelling exercise with the traffic flows from
the option traffic models being used to inform this.

6.4 There are two air quality management areas (AQMA) in King’s Lynn
due to the exceedance of the annual mean objective of 40ug/m?3 of Nitrogen
Dioxide. Changes to the overall highway network will also consider the
impact to both AQMA'’s and if there are any impacts that may lead to any new
AQMA'’s being declared.

269



7 Statutory Considerations

71 Some options will require planning permission and other options will
require traffic regulation order changes.

8 Equality Impact Assessment (EIA)

8.1 An EIA screening assessment has been completed and no issues were
identified. Further design work will be required for each of the potential 33
schemes. As part of the further detailed work, any potential impacts on each
protected equality group will be considered and mitigated where required.

9 Risk Management Implications

9.1 None identified at this time, though as each scheme is worked on more
detail issues may arise and these will then be mitigated or highlighted as
required.

10 Declarations of Interest / Dispensations Granted

10.1 None identified

11 Background Papers

Stage 3 KLTS report

KLTS stakeholder consultation comments September 2019

Documents can be found here https://www.west-
norfolk.gov.uk/info/20010/regeneration/696/kings _lynn_transport_study

KLACC comments November 2019 can be found here
https://democracy.west-
norfolk.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=162&MId=4289&Ver=4

270


https://www.west-norfolk.gov.uk/info/20010/regeneration/696/kings_lynn_transport_study
https://www.west-norfolk.gov.uk/info/20010/regeneration/696/kings_lynn_transport_study
https://democracy.west-norfolk.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=162&MId=4289&Ver=4
https://democracy.west-norfolk.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=162&MId=4289&Ver=4

Pre-Screening Equality Impact
Assessment

Borough Council of
King’s Lynn &
West Norfolk }

{o
g

'r

Name of policy/service/function

King’s Lynn Transport Strategy

Is this a new or existing policy/
service/function?

New / Existing (delete as appropriate)

Brief summary/description of the main
aims of the policy/service/function being
screened.

Please state if this policy/service is rigidly
constrained by statutory obligations

A transport strategy for King’s Lynn has been drawn

up after reviewing over 100 transport proposals for
King’s Lynn. This work has produced a balanced
package of 33 measures which allow for growth up

to 2036.

As more detailed design work is completed on the

options, an assessment will be made on the
equalities impacts.

Question Answer
1. Is there any reason to believe that the
policy/service/function could have a o g = o
specific impact on people from one or = ‘g = §
more of the following groups according to 08_ % % 5
their different protected characteristic,
for example, because they have particular Age X
needs, experiences, issues or priorities or
in terms of ability to access the service? Disability X
Gender X
Please tick the relevant box for each Gender Re-assignment X
group.
Marriage/civil partnership X
NB. Equality neutral means no negative Pregnancy & maternity X
impact on any group.
P y group Race X
Religion or belief X
Sexual orientation X
Other (eg low income) X

271




Question

Answer Comments

2. Is the proposed policy/service likely to
affect relations between certain equality
communities or to damage relations
between the equality communities and the
Council, for example because it is seen as
favouring a particular community or
denying opportunities to another?

¥Yes / No

3. Could this policy/service be perceived
as impacting on communities differently?

¥es / No

4. Is the policy/service specifically
designed to tackle evidence of
disadvantage or potential discrimination?

¥es / No

5. Are any impacts identified above minor
and if so, can these be eliminated or
reduced by minor actions?

If yes, please agree actions with a member
of the Corporate Equalities Working Group
and list agreed actions in the comments
section

¥es / No Actions:

Actions agreed by EWG member:

Alison Demonty

If ‘yes’ to questions 2 - 4 a full impact assessment will be required unless comments are
provided to explain why this is not felt necessary:

N/A

Decision agreed by EWG member: Alison Demonty

Assessment completed by:

Dave Robson

Name
Job title Environmental Health Manager - Environment
Date 17.01.2019

272




Appendix A

KLTS Implementation Plan

273
Page 1 of 17



\\\I)

SHORT TERM (OPTIONS EXPECTED TO BE DELIVERED BY 2022)
The location of the short-term options is included in the figure below, detailed in tables 1 to 5

Figure 1 - Transport Strategy Short Term Options

b'.
1 NORTH s &
MODE KEY £ WOOTTON S @é‘e
. P “ @
Active travel £ S @
£ A
. Bus =
. Ferry
. General traffic z
B Multiple modes ‘%
5
32
AM.
STS9
A1078 &
[SHN16] =
2
2
Suffield Way S
Bryggen Roag
fentand road
SHNS)
-
STS9 ¥
3
w
=
2
. STS11 £
" {SPT4 »
SAM 5 A1076
wesT AV B
T
LYNN IR 2
@ LYNN ;ﬁ’_
: i
g
“:::‘ o
3
%
E)
3
4

KING'S LYNN TRANSPORT STRATEGY

PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70042492

274 December 2019
Norfolk County Council & Borough Council of King's Lynn & West Norfolk Page 2 of 17



Gl¢c

\\\I)

Table 1 — Options to encourage journeys by public transport (Short-term Public Transport — SPT)

Ref Option Description Benefits Dis-Benefits Initial Actions Stakeholders
Benefits for bus access,
Bus lane on Railway Road and bus station egress and routing to
access via Albion Street to reduce delay and the bus station, Prepare highway
Access for buses to | journey times for buses. Improve the road layout | providing more reliable Provision of a design options and test
SPT1 bus station via design to provide an improved left turn onto journeys and reducing bus lane may in tracking and the Norfolk County
(1.10) Albion Street; Railway Road from Albion Street which is a tight | journey time on some reduce capacity | micro-simulation model. | Council
’ Improved Albion turn. Current traffic light timings only allow 2 routes. Potential for for other Adjust/optimise signal Bus Operators
Road exit for buses | buses through (usually cars + buses to exit). switch from car to vehicular traffic timings for exit from
More green time needed / change quicker when | improved bus services. Albion Road
there are a number of vehicles waiting to exit Local air quality
benefits.
Reduction in .
outbound delays at — . . . Prepare alternat|ve
Address traffic signal delays at the junction in Potential for highway design layouts
Hansa Road, > ’ "
: the outbound direction which cause queues back ' . additional delays | to address the problem.
Hardwick Road ! Benefits for all main o - ; -
. . to Southgate and beyond and impact on bus g for exiting retail Adjust/optimise the
SPT2 | junction outbound . - road traffic in terms of ; o s Norfolk County
. . journey times as well as Southgates roundabout | . . park traffic traffic signal timings for )
(1.19) | for public transport; . - journey times and ; Council
and London Road; Review yellow box usage and/or the main road outbound
Hansa Road yellow h queues. . )
box i and improvements at B&Q / Next to allow people pedestrian traffic flow /
oX improvements . . ; . o
f S to exit the retail park more easily movements rationalisation of the
or traffic exiting -
. pedestrian movements
retail park
L . . . ) . Design and provide
Enhanced signage Provide improved information and signage for Bgngflts for travel in locations for additional BCKL&WN
SPT3 d publicity f the Ferry around the town and through King’s Lynn and for the L dinf . 4
(2.2) A [AAIEL ol information technology to further promote and retention of this facility NEE Sty el Inielmetfei | &) QUi
: King's Lynn ferry . e . through web and social | Ferry Operator
encourage its use within the community media
Additional car Benefits for travel in Develop a scheme for
parking at West Provide improved and additional car parking at N the improved parking
SPT4 ; Py King’s Lynn and for the - ; : BCKL&WN
Lynn for the Ferry West Lynn alongside provision for secure cycle . - - None provision and identify
(2.2) retention of this facility ; and NCC
and secure storage storage e . location for the cycle
within the community
for cycles storage
KING'S LYNN TRANSPORT STRATEGY PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70042492 December 2019
Norfolk County Council & Borough Council of King's Lynn & West Norfolk Page 3 of 17



9/¢

\\\I)

Table 2 — Options to encourage journeys by actives modes (Short-term Active Modes — SAM)

Ref Option Description Benefits Dis-Benefits Initial Actions Stakeholders
Improved uptake of
A number of areas where cycle provision and cycling for all to .
infrastructure could be improved have already been provide greater social | Disbenefits of Dev.elop .d.e5|gns fgr
o . o o ; . . the identified locations
Cycle lane continuity identified and it is proposed that these could be taken | inclusion and a level improved cycle where imorovements BCKL&WN
through the town forward through further development of schemes to of infrastructure provision on are re uirped and Norfolk Count
SAMS5 | (including improved further optimise and promote their use. Areas where | provision that other modes consu?t with local council y
4.2) provision for cyclists it would be beneficial to expand the cycle network matches the already would be cveling aroun on Cvele Action
including new routes / around King’s Lynn will also be included high level of people managed to ycling group y
. . . . specific schemes and Group
infrastructure / signage) who use cycling as ensure minimal
L . : . ) measures for
Historic Quayside route, town centre access and their main mode of impact . .
. . . - - implementation.
alternatives, major road crossing and safety provision | travel for their work
journey.
Port of King's Lynn In the vicinity of the Port of King’s Lynn (North Street Improveq ;;afety and Addltl_onal delay
highway design access . . permeability for to main road Norfolk County
. . ; and Cross Bank Road) improve operations to reduce . . . )
SAM6 | improvements including . pedestrians and traffic where Prepare highway Council
: . risks to vulnerable road users through better . . . ' ; -
(4.10) | pedestrians and cyclists . : : ; . . cyclists. Safer signalised design options. Port of King's
provision for industrial vehicles, incorporating . ; S
at North Street and Cross appropriate pedestrian crossinas and cvele lanes vehicular access intervention is Lynn
Bank Road pprop P 9 y ) arrangements. provided.
Tennyson Avenue
Pedestrian & Cycle King George V Ave: cluster of pedestrian/cycle Prepare highway
improvements: King accidents, provide improved crossing facilities to design options at the
George V Avenue accommodate pedestrian movements. At access specified locations in
pedestrian improvements; | point to The Walks pedestrians and cyclists are not Imoroved safety for Additional dela this area and consult Norfolk County
Tennyson Road, The provided with crossings over B1144 except dropped egestrians angj/ to main road Y with user groups. Council
SAM7 Walks, Tennyson Avenue | kerbs and footway marking-provide improved E clists and continuit traffic where Undertake feasibility Network Rail
(4.13) pedestrian improvements; | crossing provision. Gaywood Road: cluster of o¥ routes provision f0¥ sianalised study through Capital Office of Road
: Tennyson Avenue, pedestrian/cycle accidents, provide improved provision SI9 S Improvement Budget and Rail (ORR)
: e . these modes in this intervention is . )
Gaywood Road crossing facilities to accommodate pedestrian - . for the improvements Cycle Action
S . - . . area of King’s Lynn. provided.
pedestrian improvements; | movements. Identify locations for more pedestrian at Tennyson Group
Review of pedestrian crossings including signalised ones on Extons Road Avenue/Gaywood
crossing facilities on and Tennyson Avenue to improve road safety for Road junctions
Extons Road and pedestrians in this area. (already underway)
Tennyson Avenue
KING'S LYNN TRANSPORT STRATEGY PUBLIC | WSP

December 2019
Page 4 of 17

Project No.: 70042492
Norfolk County Council & Borough Council of King's Lynn & West Norfolk



L1

\\\I)

Review pedestrian
crossing provision on

SAM8 | London Road.

(4.14

4.18) | South Lynn to Hardwick
pedestrian crossing
review.

Cluster of pedestrian/cycle accidents identified a lack
of provision for access from residential areas to the
west across London Road. Review crossing locations

and facilities on London Road

Safety improvement
for pedestrians,
cyclists and other
vulnerable road users.
Improve vehicular
traffic flow if these can
be rationalised.
Improvements in local
air quality if traffic flow
is improved

Potential for
improved traffic
flow

Undertake optioneering
and initial design
feasibility including
desire line assessment
in conjunction with the
wider feasibility study
for highway capacity
improvements at
Southgates roundabout
junction

Norfolk County
Council
BCKL&WN

KING'S LYNN TRANSPORT STRATEGY

Project No.: 70042492

Norfolk County Council & Borough Council of King's Lynn & West Norfolk

PUBLIC | WSP
December 2019

Page 5 of 17



8.¢

\\\I)

Table 3 — Options to reduce delay and congestion on the local highway network (Short-term Traffic Signals — STS)

Ref

Option

Description

Benefits

Dis-Benefits

Initial Actions

Stakeholders

STS9
(5.1
5.5)

STS10
(5.2)

STS11
(5.4)

Review traffic
signal timings at
various locations
to optimise
traffic
movements,
including
reviewing
junctions where
priority for buses
is feasible

Linked and co-
ordinated traffic
signals

Gaywood Clock
/ Queen Mary
Road traffic light
improvements
and junction
redesign

Review signal timings (too much signal
green time) for North Street approach / retail
park traffic at Hardwick / at Estuary Road
approach / at Hamburg Way. Right turn into
Millfleet.

A 6-month trial that fitted the buses in King's
Lynn with detector equipment for the traffic
signals to address reliability and journey time
issues leading ultimately to reductions in
costs and improvements to the
attractiveness and reliability of bus services
in King's Lynn

Co-ordinated traffic signals would help with
bus scheduling and reliability as currently the
traffic signals are out of sync with each other
so there is a perception that it is very
stop/start and slow journeys particularly for
buses

Consider improvements to the traffic light
phasing at Gaywood Clock/Queen Mary
Road and junction re-design

Improve traffic flow and
local air quality benefits.
Reduced journey times for
all main road vehicular

traffic.

Improve reliability of bus
services and relieve
congestion on primary
routes through King’s
Lynn. Potential for switch
from car to improved bus
services. Local air quality

benefits

Improve traffic flow and
local air quality benefits.
Reduced journey times for
all main road vehicular
traffic. Improved bus

service reliability

Improved traffic flow and
reduced delays. Should
also aim to improve

cycle/pedestrian
accessibility.

Initial modelling results
show some benefit to
journey times and delay in
this area if junction is re-

designed

May lead to
increased delay
from side roads.
May encourage
more vehicular
travel

May lead to
increased delay
from side roads.
May encourage
more vehicular
travel.

Scheme should
not dis-benefit
cyclist/pedestrian
movements

Undertake a detailed review of traffic
signal timings at the identified
locations. Feasibility study into
improvements and /or upgrade to
traffic signal operations

Initiate discussions to re-instate the
bus detection at the signals and
undertake a trial including collection
of traffic data to understand the
benefits/disbenefits to enable
informed decision-making

Undertake a detailed review of traffic
signal timings from Hardwick to
Gayton Road. Feasibility study into
improvements and /or upgrade to
traffic signal operations

Initial scheme design without signals
has been prepared and tested in the
traffic modelling (with the location
below) to provide initial
understanding of traffic impacts.
Further feasibility required including
impacts on other road users. Study
the potential for traffic signal
improvement

Norfolk
County
Council

Norfolk
County
Council

Norfolk
County
Council

KING'S LYNN TRANSPORT STRATEGY
Project No.: 70042492
Norfolk County Council & Borough Council of King's Lynn & West Norfolk

PUBLIC | WSP
December 2019

Page 6 of 17



6.¢

\\\I)

Ref Option Description Benefits

Dis-Benefits

Initial Actions Stakeholders

Improved traffic flow and
reduced delays. Should

Loke Road John | Phasing issue between lights needs to be also aim to improve
Kennedy Road addressed to link the phasing together / cycle/pedestrian

STS12 | traffic signal check phasing to let traffic out for a shorter accessibility.

(5.4) optimisation or period. Options also to be developed to Initial modelling results
junction provide an alternative junction arrangement | show some benéefit to
redesign to assist with traffic flow at this location journey times and delay in

this area if junction is re-
designed

Scheme should
not dis-benefit
cyclist/pedestrian
movements

Initial scheme design without signals

has been prepared and tested in the

traffic modelling (with the locations

above) to provide initial Norfolk
understanding of traffic impacts. County
Further feasibility required including | Council
impacts on other road users. Study

the potential for traffic signal

improvement

KING'S LYNN TRANSPORT STRATEGY
Project No.: 70042492
Norfolk County Council & Borough Council of King's Lynn & West Norfolk

PUBLIC | WSP
December 2019

Page 7 of 17



08¢

\\\I)

Table 4 — Options to reduce delay and congestion on the local highway network (Short-term Highway Network — SHN)

Ref Option Description Benefits Dis-Benefits | Initial Actions Stakeholders
Norfolk County
Railway station Consider re-design fqr thg layby outside the rail station Improvement to bus Develop aIFernative layby design ﬁg;wgn( Rail
SHN13 bus layby re- to prevent cars stopping in the layby and also address | journey times and None for preventing car use and to Govia
(6.1) desian issues with getting the bus on the loop in the road to access to the rail ensure bus the bus can effectively Thameslink
9 activate the traffic lights to change to let them out station bus stops egress from the bus stop Railway (GTR)
Bus Operators
Undertake a review of lane marking and usage at May Iea%to In't'?rl]ges'%n sket%h fo:j 2-I.?hn.es
Southgates roundabout to provide improvements in Isne(i;s;a;nece tsr(;Lfffic rgggell(i:r?nSIFi:?he\erleallgibiIit
Southgates traffic flow, including 2-lanes southbound. Also Initial traffic with review of signa?.operation lane y
roundabout undertake a review of the traffic signal operation to modelling shows additional usaqe and potential for u ’ rade Norfolk County
SHN14 | highway capacity optimise the traffic flow at this key junction that benefits in PM peak ' >age and poter P9 Council
. . e . traffic lanes. within existing highway boundary
(6.5) improvement provides access to King's Lynn. Enhance crossing to have 2-lanes Potential including access to Hardings Way BCKL&WN
scheme - small- provision for cyclists and pedestrians at the South continuous | of for b Fundi Ireadv in ol Bus Operators
medium scale Gate alongside highway improvement measures to southbound removak.o or L:jses. K UP '?]g adreq yin p()jace
improve traffic flow also considering access for buses car parking to undertake further design an
from Hardwick Road to Hardings Way on London feaslblllty work at this location
Road during next 12 months
Vancouver Avenue - investigate improved lane
management - left lane = straight and left / right lane =
right - to ease traffic congestion, also provide a longer to be considered in
SHN14a Vancouver left filter Igne/ incregse Ieng@h of the left turn lane to conjunction with the
6.7) Avenue - improved | ease traffic congestion on this approach. Also above. Improve See above See above See above
’ lane management | consider provision of a left filter lane with give-way traffic i‘l oW
onto Hardwick Road to ease the traffic using the ’
roundabout and provide potential for improvement to
traffic signal operation.
KING'S LYNN TRANSPORT STRATEGY PUBLIC | WSP

Project No.: 70042492
Norfolk County Council & Borough Council of King's Lynn & West Norfolk

December 2019

Page 8 of 17



T8¢

\\\I)

Ref Option Description Benefits Dis-Benefits | Initial Actions Stakeholders
Estuary Road / New junction arrangements submitted to planning - IGETEES [T = B NCC review of junction
! L . ) i times for all traffic. impacts on arrangement proposals, being
SHN15 | Edward Benefer phasing of traffic lights with alternative priorities / take N " 3 Norfolk County
. ) . ) Maintain cycle and journey times | progressed through development )
(6.14) Way junction out private access and make two-lanes over the traffic destri . f id lanni Council
improvements lights / remove left turn from traffic lights pedestrian crossing rom side planning
arrangements roads
Low Road Castle New junction arrangements have been submitted to Improved journey Adverse NCC review of junction
SHN16 Rising Rd Wootton | planning - phasing of traffic lights with alternative times for all traffic. impacts on arrangement proposals, being Norfolk Count
Rd Grimston Rd priorities / take out private access and make two-lanes | Maintain cycle and journey times | progressed through development . y
(6.17) . . g X . . ; - Council
junction over the traffic lights / remove left turn from traffic pedestrian crossing | from side planning
improvements lights arrangements roads
KING'S LYNN TRANSPORT STRATEGY PUBLIC | WSP

December 2019
Page 9 of 17

Project No.: 70042492
Norfolk County Council & Borough Council of King's Lynn & West Norfolk



8¢

\\\I)

Table 5 — Options to manage travel behaviour (Short-term Travel Management — STM)

Ref Option Description Benefits Dis-Benefits Initial Actions Stakeholders
: Potential changes
. I)ozva?r \év;?;ﬁgproach may not pe well- BCKL&V\(N to
STM17 FIEE 3 Develop a Car Parking Strategy for King’s Lynn management in recelvegl li , commission
comprehensive Car | . - - . - . alternatives aren’t development of
7.2 Parking Strategy for including an assessment of opportunities for conjunction with in place Strategy for car BCKL&WN
' King's Lynn & A gilg{[(;rlng [Eanskon Perception of parking during next 6
im roggments impacts on town months
P centre business
NCC to work with
Develop a campaign for King's Lynn to schooals to develop
Work with schools | €ncourage parents not to drive children to Health. safety and and deliver improved
and education in school. Work with the schools to develop safer wellbein bexeﬁts access for children
King's Lvnn to routes to school, walking buses, safe cycle for childrgen through safety
STM18 9s Lty routes, provision for secure cycle storage at the L measures and Norfolk County
provide safe h . Opportunities to n/a information )
4.7) . schools and provide the schools with the tools . A Council
alternatives to ; ! L influence mode campaigns. Led b
rivate car for they need to improve localised parking issues choice of future paigns. oy
gchool children around schools and the impacts on the town. enerations NCC, with potential
Address air quality impacts on Wisbech Road at | 9 funding through
the schools. LTP4?
KING'S LYNN TRANSPORT STRATEGY PUBLIC | WSP

Project No.: 70042492
Norfolk County Council & Borough Council of King's Lynn & West Norfolk

December 2019
Page 10 of 17



\\\I)

2. MEDIUM TERM (OPTIONS TO BE DELIVERED BY 2030)

The locations of the Medium-term options are provided in the figure 2, detailed in tables 6 to 8.

Figure 2 - Transport Strategy Medium Term Options

MODE KEY H
Active travel a% .
I Bus mms
. Ferry g % Sandy Lane
B General traffic o H )
e
m Bryggen Roag i A

&
=
2
g5
§
s
(3]

Z
3
)

Thiefgate Lane

gac? oo

KING'S LYNN TRANSPORT STRATEGY PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70042492 283 December 2019
Norfolk County Council & Borough Council of King's Lynn & West Norfolk Page 11 of 17



¥8¢

\\\I)

Table 6 — Options to encourage the use of public transport (Medium-term Public Transport — MPT)

Ref Option Description Benefits Dis-Benefits Initial Actions Stakeholders
Harding’s Way as a bus only route to Develop initial scheme
Increased use of accommodate an increase in buses and bus Enhanced bus designs for Wisbech
Harding's Way for usage with buses also continuing to serve o . ;
MPT1* | buses - address London Road. A combination of routes is .rellablllty. s Vi 22121 @1 pehicilen Roaq aue) il
(see issues at Millfleet required. Retain Hardings Way as traffic-free SO it K téafflg onl\l/_rtljlgdon ]unctuzins. Short-:]erm Norfolk County
also and Wisbech Road | except buses. Encourage more buses to make Experlence In pea Qretg) £ halllifee! e Council
MHNS5) | to Hardwick Road use of the route and the potential i REENS and Wisbech Road trafflc 5|gr1al WilligHie Bus Operators
s . - - benefits of this between Southgate | be investigated.
(2.3) to make more reliability/journey time benefits. Retain high level route for active and Hardings Way Considered alongside
advantageous for of provision for pedestrians / cyclists and modes of travel ’ Southgate roundabout
buses especially vulnerable road users and mobility : ;
SCoOters. improvements.
Redesign of traffic movements around gyratory Potential for Initial modelling
Town centre to assist with AQMA, congestion, connectivity improved air suggests that there Air quality benefits need
gyratory re-design. | and road safety objectives. Various schemes pl't d road may be additional f tﬁ y t
MPT2 Various Options - developed through workshop and te;ted in the g;?e Ity a;ot;?]%al conggstion at some EL’JJS Ie;nzsfgizzses? ; Norfolk County
(1.12) Bus Lanes - transport model. Investigate potential for for im;.)rovements locations around the egress alternative Council
’ Railway Rd, providing bus-only lanes through Railway Road, to buses for gyratory and schemes need initial BCKL&WN
London Rd, London Road, Blackfriars Road to take out areas access 1o bus benefits to vehicular design and assessment
Blackfriars Rd that generate air pollution and improve air quality station traffic are limited. )
with modal shift. '
Provide enhanced 2 en.eﬁt,s LBl Lz .
access to the Ferry | Look further at the previously developed options :c'; thlr?g rsétgﬂﬂ,ﬁ%? May have an impact ;;?ﬁg\%sﬁ)g% ons
MPT3 | throughout the day / | for the ferry service to enable access for a wider this facility within on Ferry journey and/or means of BCKL&WN
(2.3) year to provide a range of people and provide improvements / times if alternative Ferry Operator

*following further modelling and design assessment work the most appropriate use of Hardings Way, either for buses or additional traffic will be determined.

more usable
service for all.

alternatives to access during low tides.

together but are included for further evaluation purposes.

the community.
Promote social
inclusion.

preferred location.

providing safe access to
the ferry service for all.

Both cannot be pursued

PUBLIC | WSP
December 2019

Page 12 of 17

KING'S LYNN TRANSPORT STRATEGY
Project No.: 70042492
Norfolk County Council & Borough Council of King's Lynn & West Norfolk



G8¢

\\\I)

Table 7 — Options to encourage journeys by active modes (Medium-term Active Modes — MAM)

Ref Option Description Benefits Dis-Benefits

Initial Actions

Stakeholders

Queen Mary Road, | Investigate how best to provide access across
MAM4 | Fairstead, Hardwick | the railway line and around the town for modes Enhanced high

411 improvements in other than private car to relieve some of the quality pedestrian | Possible impacts
’ linkages for congestion pressure in Gaywood area. route to access on open parkland
6.12) pedestrians and Enhancements to pedestrian link from Parkway employment
cyclists to Rollesby Road to provide year-round use.

Develop a scheme to
improve the route
including lighting,
surfacing and signing to
facilitate improved
accessibility

Norfolk County
Council

BCKL&WN
Network Rail

User Groups

KING'S LYNN TRANSPORT STRATEGY
Project No.: 70042492
Norfolk County Council & Borough Council of King's Lynn & West Norfolk

PUBLIC | WSP
December 2019

Page 13 of 17



98¢

\\\I)

Table 8 — Options to reduce delay and congestion on the local highway network (Medium-term Highway Network — MHN)

Ref Option Description Benefits Dis-Benefits Initial Actions Stakeholders
Investigate options to allow additional traffic to use Hardings Initial modelling shows
Way to alleviate the congestion on London Road and assist some congestion relief on
with air quality management. This could include specific London Road, introduction
MHN5 additional vehicle types being permitted to use the route; Improved journey of restriction to access for
. A== ; . Lo : Norfolk
(see Hardings Way open only at specified times of the day; as an emergency times/reduced 3 historic core provides lower
) L - ot Increased traffic . County
also opened for measure to assist with incident management; directional to congestion/improved in historic core benefit for London Road Council
MPT1*) | additional traffic | provide alternative routes for inbound traffic in the AM peak air quality on traffic. Further design work BCKL&WN
(6.2) and outbound traffic in the PM peak; or to provide access to London Road to understand outcomes
specific parts of the town centre only. Mitigation measures and combine with
would be needed to ensure there are no impacts on the enhancements for higher
historic core. bus use
Taking land from
S.OUth Gate Improve traffic flow the park /
h'ghW?‘y ) - in King's Lynn development Further feasibility design
capacity Make South Gate traffic-free by providing two lanes . : A . s . Norfolk
. Opportunity to also viability. Potential | and viability checks. Option
enhancements - | northbound and two lanes southbound using the park to A e : County
MHNG6 - . . provide improved severance testing in modelling work 4
providing two provide the extra lanes (based on previous proposal for CIF). ; . Council
(6.6) ; ; L access for busesto | impacts by alongside bus
lanes in both Opportunity to also provide improved access for buses - - o . BCKL&WN
S . Hardings Way. providing 4-lane priority/access improvement
directions / to/from Hardings Way : . - Developers
Improved public carriageway for options
large scale . -
; realm/heritage pedestrians and
redesign ;
cyclists
Vehicular link
between the two
Link to development land at Parkway with potential link to estates could Mayllead OIS Undertake initial highway arizalls
Queen Mary . ) . ) : X running (highway . . County
MHN7 Road link to Fairstead - traffic to go through Fairsted / route coming out of | provide relief for desian lavout design layout for link road Council
(6.12) Fairstead Fairstead and along Sand line / bridge over Sand line / road Gayton Road and coulg a dgress scheme. Potential funding Network Rail
alongside railway line / park and ride Gaywood with this) source is via developers Developers
benefits to journey P
times and air quality
. Investigate a scheme to provide widening of the access to . . Norfolk
Winston - . ' Consider design
P allow improved movement onto roundabout / improved traffic . . . County
MHN8 | Churchill Drive N . g Improved journey improvements at Winston 4
flow. Also look at widening of Winston Churchill Drive . n/a P . . Council
(6.13) QEH access L times Churchill Drive junction with
o closest to Corbyn Shaw Road where on-street parking is BCKL&WN
widening A1046
prevalent QEH
KING'S LYNN TRANSPORT STRATEGY PUBLIC | WSP

Project No.: 70042492
Norfolk County Council & Borough Council of King's Lynn & West Norfolk

December 2019
Page 14 of 17



18¢

\\\I)

Ref Option

Description

Benefits

Dis-Benefits

Initial Actions

Stakeholders

Management of
through traffic in

MHN9 | QEH roundabout The slip road onto A149 northbound needs King's Lynn town Develop and test Norfolk County

capacity improvement and the roundabout needs to be centre / improved | Environmental feasibility design options Council

(6.20) | improvements able to accommodate forecast traffic levels journey times / air with HE BCKL&WN
quality
management

Dualling of the A149 / crawler lane up to Knights
Hill / two lanes up to Knights Hill / mark lanes Manacement of
A149 Dualling up to from bottom of hill / increase width / lanes at throu gh traffic in Norfolk County
Kniahts Hill P%niphts roundabout which are too narrow at the junctions Kin g Lvnn town Develon and test Council
MHN10 | NIghts Hill, Knig onto / off the roundabout (QE to King’s Lynn) - gsLy . clop ; .
(6.21) Hill junction suitable for emergency services: Consider a centre / improved | Environmental feasibility design options BCKL&WN
' capacity redesign of this junction to improve traffic journey times air with HE Highways
improvements ; ' quality ghway.
capacity and traffic flow to accommodate England
! . . management 9
forecast traffic levels associated with
development
Management of Norfolk Conty

MHN11 géﬁzj‘%’gﬁf Jubilee Roundabout capacity improvements to g)i\i:lf:lccfgrl;?rlég/h Develop and test Council

capacit improve traffic flow and accommodate planned reduced iourne Environmental feasibility design options BCKL&WN

(6.19) | capaclty growth . ) Y with HE :

improvements times / air quality Highways
management England
Management of Norfoll§ County
through traffic in Council

MHN12 West.Winch Highyvay improvement access road to enable the | King's Lynn town . Devglqp and test BCKL&WN

Housing Access housing growth at West Winch and to provide centre / improved | Environmental feasibility design options ]

(6.22) | Road some relief to the A10 journey times / air with HE Highways
quahty England
management Developer

KING'S LYNN TRANSPORT STRATEGY PUBLIC | WSP

Project No.: 70042492

Norfolk County Council & Borough Council of King's Lynn & West Norfolk

December 2019
Page 15 of 17



\\\I)

3. LONG TERM (OPTIONS TO BE DELIVERED AFTER 2030)

The locations of the Long-term options are shown in the figure below, detailed in tables 9 to 10.

Figure 3 - Transport Strategy Long Term Options

NORTH \ o
MODE KEY WOOTTON 3 i
. General traffic 5 9@“@
B Multiple modes =y
z
3 3
= 3
i iny
{
:
-
suffield Way g
Bryggen Roag
fentand road
£
E
§
°‘mb'?akk @
Oy =
Loke Rroad ?'?r
%
LHN1
B
KING'S LYNN TRANSPORT STRATEGY PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70042492 288 December 2019
Page 16 of 17

Norfolk County Council & Borough Council of King's Lynn & West Norfolk



68¢

\\\I)

Table 9 - Options to reduce delay and congestion on the local highway network (Long-term Highway Network - LHN)

Ref Option Description Benefits Dis-Benefits Initial Actions Stakeholders
I I I ) " . . I Local congestion I I Provide initial feasibility I Norfolk County I
LHN1 | Hospital to A149 tF:zracf)f\incdf?oarl: %idgfsn?ij);g ggtsoeﬁ)l:; ig)rne)gg':i]gn relief and air Environmental design with HE. Modelto | Council
(6.4) | direct access link T rl?os ital g quality test the level of benefits BCKL&WN
P management that could achievable QEH
Norfolk County

LHN2 Wisbech Road to Investigate the potential for providing a highway | Local congestion Land and Investigate alongside Council
6.8) Nar Ouse Way link | link between Wisbech Road and Nar Ouse Way | relief at environmental options for Southgates BCKL&WN

’ Road to assist in alleviating Southgates roundabout Southgates roundabout Developer

Table 10 - Options to encourage the use of public transport (Long-term Public Transport - LPT)

Ref Option Description Benefits Dis-Benefits Initial Actions Stakeholders

. Improved service
Implementation of Ely Area Enhancement T ol

Scheme to deliver doubling of train frequency to passengers and Potential increase Ely Area - Funding in Network Rail
. half-hoyrly (2025-2030). Improve rail I|nk§ to il l Gal in vehlcqlar trgfflc place for current phase of | Govia .
LPT3 | Train frequency Cambridge and London. Improve connecting T T to the ralil station. work (GRIP 2). Further Thameslink
(3.1) | improvements services - connections to Norwich from Ely. ST st Additional traffic development stages to be | Railway (GTR)
King's Lynn 8 Car Project will increase trlaln inbound trips delay.at level funded separately under NCC
capacity from 4 Car trains between King's Lynn, to/from King's crossing the new RNEP processes. | BCKL&WN
Cambridge and London by December 2020. Lynn 9
KING'S LYNN TRANSPORT STRATEGY PUBLIC | WSP
Project No.: 70042492 December 2019

Norfolk County Council & Borough Council of King's Lynn & West Norfolk Page 17 of 17



Agenda Item 17

REPORT TO CABINET

Open/Exempt Would any decisions proposed :
Any especially | Mandatory/ Be entirely within Cabinet’'s powers to decide  ¥ES/NO
affected Need to be recommendations to Council YES/NO
Wards Discretionary /
Is it a Key Decision YES/NO
Operational

Lead Member: CliIr | Devereux
E-mail: cllr.ian.devereux@west-

norfolk.gov.uk

Other Cabinet Members consulted: Clir B Long

Other Members consulted:

Lead Officer: Dave Robson

E-mail: dave.robson@west-norfolk.gov.uk

Direct Dial: 01553 616302

Other Officers consulted: Management Team, Peter
Jermany, Jade Kite

Financial Policy/Personnel Statutory Equal Impact Risk Management
Implications Implications Implications Assessment Implications
YES/NO ¥ES/NO YES/NO ¥ES/NO YES/NO

If YES: Pre-

screening/ Full

Assessment

Date of meeting: 4" February 2020

HUNSTANTON COASTAL MANAGEMENT PLAN

Summary
The Hunstanton Coastal Management Plan (HCMP) is an operational plan
that covers both Hunstanton cliffs and sea defences

Recommendation
That Hunstanton Coastal Management Plan be adopted and the financial
contributions be approved.

Reason for Decision

To enable the Council to plan, prepare and carry out coastal works to meet its
obligations under the Shoreline Management Plan 4 (SMP 4) & Wash East
Coastal Management Strategy (WECMS)

1 Background

1.1 The Hunstanton Coastal Management Plan (HCMP) is an operational
plan which will determine what works are required to the Hunstanton
sea defences and cliffs over the next 100 years.

1.2 The HCMP follows the general polices laid down in the Shoreline
Management Plan 4 (SMP 4) which covers the coastline between
Gibraltar Point and Old Hunstanton, and the joint Environment Agency /
BCKLWN Wash East Coastal Management Strategy (WECMS).

290




1.3  The SMP 4 policy options are: -
Policy Zone Short Term Medium Term Long Term
Up to 2025 2025 to 2055 2055 to 2105

Hunstanton Cliffs | No Active No Active No Active

(Unit A) Intervention Intervention Intervention /Hold

the Line

Hunstanton Town | Hold the line Hold the line Hold the Line

(Unit B)

1.4  The Environment and Community Panel on 21 January received a
presentation on this matter and recommended to Cabinet that it be
approved.

2 Options Considered

21  The HCMP covers two areas; Unit A Hunstanton Cliffs and Unit B
Hunstanton Town (Promenade to the power boat ramp).

2.2  Unit A - Cliffs
15 options were initially considered from Do Nothing to various forms of
new defences being installed. These 15 options were then reviewed
and a short-list of 5 options was produced. After further review and
Stakeholder consultation, rock armour was selected as the preferred
option.

2.3 No residential properties are at risk over the next 100 years. Two
commercial properties may be at risk between 2030 and 2060 and a
further two commercial properties may be at risk between 2060 and
2117 assuming a 10m property buffer.

2.4 Following the SMP 4 polices of no active intervention until after 2055, it
is not expected that any form of defence will be needed in the short or
medium term.

2.5 The possibility of installing a pilot in the short/ medium term was
considered. However, as rock armour is a well-established coastal
defence measure, the need to install as a pilot is not considered
necessary.

2.6  The Borough Council will need to establish a trigger point on when to

install the preferred option along the whole length of the cliffs. Coastal
erosion is in the form of periodic block falls along the cliff frontage
predominantly due to erosion of the bottom carstone strata by wave
action leading to block falls of chalk. The “average” erosion rate is
small at about 10-30cm per year. However, in practice 1-2m sections of
cliff are lost every 5-10 years. The erosion rate is not liner or uniform
across the whole cliff frontage.

291




2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

To help establish more data on the nature of block falls and erosion
rates along the whole length of the cliff frontage it is proposed that a
cliff monitoring programme be implemented. This will be an annual
ground based Light Detection and Ranging (LiDAR) survey along the
whole cliff frontage to help build a cliff regression model. This will then
help determine the extent of coastal erosion and determine when the
rock armour should be installed. It is also anticipated that another
LiDAR survey be completed after any large storm event (such as 2013)
to determine the impact of the event. It is also proposed to complete an
annual drone survey which will provide a detailed visual record of the
cliff condition. This work will help guide when the trigger point is
required.

Unit B-Hunstanton Town Defences

19 options have been considered. Some general enhanced measures
were considered but the preferred option is to maintain the existing
layout of the defences. The Hunstanton Town Regeneration Project
also considered a couple of options along the sea front but these
measures will not be taken forward and therefore will not make any
changes to the flood defences. The Hunstanton flood defences will be
maintained at the 1 in 200 year’s defence level.

The asset condition survey shows that the northern stretch of the
promenade (section G), from the Green northwards, has around a 15
year’s residual life left. The southern part of the defences from the
Green to the power boat ramp has around 15/ 35 year’s residual life.
The timber and concrete groynes are in need of urgent repair /
replacement over the next 4 years. The groynes have an estimated
residual life of between 5 to 15 years.

The preferred option is to repair the existing flood defences to maintain
the current 1 in 200 year defence level in the short term and to sustain
this level in the medium / long term by raising the height of the
defences to mitigate against sea level rise. The rear wave flood wall,
using current predictions, will need to be raised from the existing
6.68mMOD to 7.5mMOD over the next 90 years.

An option to resurface the prom surface with asphalt was considered

but rejected as it would need to be replaced every ten years and could
be adversely impacted by wave action.

292



2.12 The projected works are as follows: -

Asset Residual Life Works Notes

Northern Prom 15 years (2034) Reface with Reface again
(Section G from concrete after 30 years in
Green 2064 & 2094
northwards)

Southern Prom 35 years (2054) Reface with Reface again
Sea Wall, Prom concrete & raise | after 30 years in
surface and wave wall 2084

Wave Wall

(Section A,B&C)

Southern Prom 15 years (2034) Reface with Reface again
Sea Wall, Prom concrete & raise | after 30 years in
surface and wave wall 2064 & 2094
Wave Wall

(Section D,E&F)

2.13

3.1

4.1

The process to review and adopt the works required as part of the
HCMP has been through two public consultations events based in
Hunstanton. The Wash East Coast Management Strategy Stakeholder
Forum, which is made up from local Town and Parish Councils,
regulatory bodies and other interested groups, has also been
consulted, most recently in October 2019.

Policy Implications

The preferred options selected for Units A & B both follow the SMP 4
polices and timelines as detailed above in para 1.3. Therefore the
preferred options do not conflict with SMP 4 or WECMS.

Financial Implications

Management Team considered the HCMP over the summer and
agreed to a selection of work based on external match funding. They
requested that the prom resurface works were brought forward and that
extra funding for public realm be included. This would tie in to the
regeneration work planned for Hunstanton.

293



4.2

Three bids for funding from the Regional Flood & Coastal Committee
(RFCC) were made during summer 2019. The bids were as follows:

Work Timeline BCKLWN RFCC Local Levy | Total Costs
Costs Application
Groynes yr1 toyrd | £50,000 p.a. | £50,000 p.a. match | Annual Cost £100,000 p.a.
funding
Total Cost £400,000
Cliff yr1toyr4 | £6,000 p.a. | £6,000 p.a. match | Annual cost £12,000 p.a.
Monitoring funding
Total £48,000
Prom yritoyr2 | £215,000 £215,000 match | BCKLWN + LL = £430,000
Resurface funding
300m Arts Council Grant £100,00
Sections D,E (public realm)
&F

Total £530,00

Overall Total: £954,000

4.3

4.4

4.5

The bids to the RFCC have been successful and agreed in principle
but will need to be confirmed and agreed by the Environment Agency
National Appraisal Body before any funds will be released.

The proposed timeline is as follows:

Baseline cliff regression report
Implement tender/design work from
Adopt HCMP
Tenders issued
Annual Cliff Survey
Select Contractor
EA National Appraisal Body
Groyne work start
Prom works start

December 2019
December 2019

Feb 2020

March to May 2020
March 2020

June 2020 tbc

June/ July 2020 tbc

Autumn 2020 tbc
Autumn 2020 tbc

The costing for the bids has included a 60% optimism bias as per

treasury rules.

The realised costs may differ and these will not be

known until the written tenders have been submitted. Once these have
been received and the preferred contractor selected, only then will the
actual costs and final Local Levy contributions be known. Council is
invited to approve the funding for the contributions.

294




5.1

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

7.1

8.1

8.2

8.3

Personnel Implications

Members of the Flood & Water Management Team will lead the project
with input from colleagues in Resort Services, Property Services,
Procurement and Regeneration / Coastal Community Teams.

Statutory Considerations

The Council is a Coastal Protection Authority as defined under the
Coastal Protection Act 1949.

The coastal management and flood risk role is further defined in the
WECMS where the Borough Council, as Coastal Protection Authority,
leads on Unit A- Hunstanton Cliffs and Unit B the Hunstanton Town
Sea Defences. Unit C from South Hunstanton to Wolferton Creek
shoreline is the responsibility of the Environment Agency.

Hunstanton Cliffs are designated as a Geological SSSI, Special Area of
Conservation (SAC), Special Protection Area (SPA) and Ramsar Site
(to the seaward edge of the Promenade). They are also part of the
Wash SSSI and Hunstanton Conservation Area (cliff top green as far
as the former Coastguard Lookout/cottages only).

The seaward frontage of Unit B is a designated Ramsar Site, SPA and
SAC. It is also part of the Wash SSSI and Hunstanton Conservation
Area (northern Promenade in front of Esplanade Gardens and the
Green only).

Equality Impact Assessment (EIA)

A pre-screening EIA has been completed and is attached. No negative
impacts were noted to any group.

Risk Management Implications

If the Hunstanton sea defences failed or were overtopped then 655
residential properties and 2612 mobile homes/ static caravans would
be at the risk of flooding. These properties are directly behind the
Hunstanton Sea defences and south toward Heacham.

The above figures only relate to a breach failure along the Hunstanton
sea defences. A breach along the other sections coastal defences
would impact a wider area.

Adopting the HCMP will ensure that capital/ maintenance works are

carried out to the flood defences and a failure of the flood defences
remains a low risk. Sustaining the level of defence by raising the rear

295



8.4

8.5

10

wave flood wall in line with HCMP will keep the 1 in 200 year defence
level over the next 100 years.

The works associated with the Hunstanton Coastal Management Plan
have been submitted as part of the Local Levy application process.
This entails a three stage peer review process from Environment
Agency staff, other Flood & Water Risk Management Authorities and
finally by the Regional Flood & Coastal Committee.

The timeline for works will need to take in to account peak holiday
season, food vendors leases along the prom, the autumn/ winter storm
season and working in a maritime environment.

Declarations of Interest / Dispensations Granted
None

Background Papers

Shoreline Management Plan 4 Non-Technical Summary
Wash East Coastal Management Strategy

AECOM Hunstanton Coastal Management Plan

296



Pre-Screening Equality Impact
Assessment

Borough Council of

King’s Lynn &
West Norfolk }

A
Sorp

NG

'r

Name of policy/service/function

Hunstanton Coastal Management Plan

Is this a new or existing policy/
service/function?

New / Existing (delete as appropriate)

Brief summary/description of the main
aims of the policy/service/function being
screened.

Please state if this policy/service is rigidly

policy of Hold the Line.

Works to Hunstanton coastal area to replace or
repair existing sea defences to maintain current SMP

Annual monitoring of Cliffs will follow SMP of No
Active Intervention but will provide data on where
trigger point is and when preferred option should be

constrained by statutory obligations implemented.
Question Answer
1. Is there any reason to believe that the
policy/service/function could have a o g = o
specific impact on people from one or = ‘g = §
more of the following groups according to 08_ % % 5
their different protected characteristic,
for example, because they have particular Age X
needs, experiences, issues or priorities or
in terms of ability to access the service? Disability X
Gender X
Please tick the relevant box for each Gender Re-assignment X
group.
Marriage/civil partnership X
NB. Equality neutral means no negative Pregnancy & maternity X
impact on any group.
P y group Race X
Religion or belief X
Sexual orientation X
Other (eg low income) X

297




Question

Answer Comments

2. Is the proposed policy/service likely to
affect relations between certain equality
communities or to damage relations
between the equality communities and the
Council, for example because it is seen as
favouring a particular community or
denying opportunities to another?

¥Yes-/ No

3. Could this policy/service be perceived
as impacting on communities differently?

¥Yes-/ No

4. Is the policy/service specifically
designed to tackle evidence of
disadvantage or potential discrimination?

¥es-/ No

5. Are any impacts identified above minor
and if so, can these be eliminated or
reduced by minor actions?

If yes, please agree actions with a member
of the Corporate Equalities Working Group
and list agreed actions in the comments
section

¥es / No Actions: None

Actions agreed by EWG member:

Claire Dorgan

If ‘yes’ to questions 2 - 4 a full impact assessment will be required unless comments are
provided to explain why this is not felt necessary:

Decision agreed by EWG member: Claire Dorgan

Assessment completed by:

Dave Robson

Name
Job title Environmental Health Manager- Environment
Date 16.12.2019

298




Agenda Item 19
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A 9

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

299



	Agenda
	8 FORWARD DECISIONS
	10 Notice of Motion 5/19 Cllr de Whalley - Climate Change
	Motion to Council 5-19 Review Final v.04
	Climate Change Work Plan 2019 to 2020
	List of Current BCKLWN Climate Change Strategies

	11 Notice of Motion 4/19 - Cllr A Kemp - Hardings Way
	NOM 4-19 Appendix 1
	NOM 4-19 Appendix 2
	NOM 4-19 Appendix 3
	NOM 4-19 Appendix 4
	NOM 4-19 Appendix 5
	NOM 4-19 Appendix 6
	NOM 4-19 Appendix 7 Part1
	Binder4_Page_001
	Binder4_Page_002
	Binder4_Page_003
	Binder4_Page_004
	Binder4_Page_005
	Binder4_Page_006
	Binder4_Page_007
	Binder4_Page_008
	Binder4_Page_009
	Binder4_Page_010
	Binder4_Page_011
	Binder4_Page_012
	Binder4_Page_013
	Binder4_Page_014
	Binder4_Page_015
	Binder4_Page_016
	Binder4_Page_017
	Binder4_Page_018
	Binder4_Page_019
	Binder4_Page_020
	Binder4_Page_021
	Binder4_Page_022
	Binder4_Page_023
	Binder4_Page_024
	Binder4_Page_025
	Binder4_Page_026
	Binder4_Page_027
	Binder4_Page_028
	Binder4_Page_029
	Binder4_Page_030
	Binder4_Page_031
	Binder4_Page_032
	Binder4_Page_033
	Binder4_Page_034
	Binder4_Page_035
	Binder4_Page_036
	Binder4_Page_037
	Binder4_Page_038
	Binder4_Page_039
	Binder4_Page_040
	Binder4_Page_041
	Binder4_Page_042
	Binder4_Page_043
	Binder4_Page_044
	Binder4_Page_045
	Binder4_Page_046
	Binder4_Page_047
	Binder4_Page_048
	Binder4_Page_049
	Binder4_Page_050

	NOM 4-19 Appendix 7 Part2
	Binder4_Page_051
	Binder4_Page_052
	Binder4_Page_053
	Binder4_Page_054
	Binder4_Page_055
	Binder4_Page_056
	Binder4_Page_057
	Binder4_Page_058
	Binder4_Page_059
	Binder4_Page_060
	Binder4_Page_061
	Binder4_Page_062
	Binder4_Page_063
	Binder4_Page_064
	Binder4_Page_065
	Binder4_Page_066
	Binder4_Page_067
	Binder4_Page_068
	Binder4_Page_069
	Binder4_Page_070
	Binder4_Page_071
	Binder4_Page_072
	Binder4_Page_073
	Binder4_Page_074
	Binder4_Page_075
	Binder4_Page_076
	Binder4_Page_077
	Binder4_Page_078
	Binder4_Page_079
	Binder4_Page_080
	Binder4_Page_081
	Binder4_Page_082
	Binder4_Page_083
	Binder4_Page_084
	Binder4_Page_085
	Binder4_Page_086
	Binder4_Page_087
	Binder4_Page_088
	Binder4_Page_089
	Binder4_Page_090
	Binder4_Page_091
	Binder4_Page_092
	Binder4_Page_093
	Binder4_Page_094
	Binder4_Page_095
	Binder4_Page_096
	Binder4_Page_097
	Binder4_Page_098
	Binder4_Page_099
	Binder4_Page_100

	NOM 4-19 Appendix 7 Part3
	Binder4_Page_101
	Binder4_Page_102
	Binder4_Page_103
	Binder4_Page_104
	Binder4_Page_105
	Binder4_Page_106
	Binder4_Page_107
	Binder4_Page_108
	Binder4_Page_109
	Binder4_Page_110
	Binder4_Page_111
	Binder4_Page_112
	Binder4_Page_113
	Binder4_Page_114
	Binder4_Page_115
	Binder4_Page_116
	Binder4_Page_117
	Binder4_Page_118
	Binder4_Page_119
	Binder4_Page_120
	Binder4_Page_121
	Binder4_Page_122
	Binder4_Page_123
	Binder4_Page_124
	Binder4_Page_125
	Binder4_Page_126
	Binder4_Page_127
	Binder4_Page_128
	Binder4_Page_129
	Binder4_Page_130
	Binder4_Page_131
	Binder4_Page_132
	Binder4_Page_133
	Binder4_Page_134
	Binder4_Page_135
	Binder4_Page_136
	Binder4_Page_137
	Binder4_Page_138
	Binder4_Page_139
	Binder4_Page_140
	Binder4_Page_141
	Binder4_Page_142
	Binder4_Page_143
	Binder4_Page_144
	Binder4_Page_145
	Binder4_Page_146
	Binder4_Page_147
	Binder4_Page_148
	Binder4_Page_149
	Binder4_Page_150

	NOM 4-19 Appendix 8
	NOM 4-19 Appendix 9
	UPDATED  EIA for Notice of Motion 4-19 Cllr Kemp - cabinet report Jan 2020

	12 Notice of Motion 6/19 Cllr F Bone - Hardings Way
	16 King's Lynn Area Transport Study
	Appendix A_KLTS Implementation Plan

	17 Hunstanton Coastal Management Plan
	19 Nar Valley Phase 4 (Traditional Build)



